
 
 

EXECUTIVE 
 

Monday, 16 June 2014 6.30 pm Committee Room 1, City Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Ric Metcalfe (Chair), Donald Nannestad (Vice-Chair), 
Rosanne Kirk, Neil Murray, Fay Smith and Peter West 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Angela Andrews, John Bibby, Democratic Services, John Latham, 
Andrew Taylor and Carolyn Wheater 
 

A G E N D A 

PLEASE NOTE THE REVISED START TIME. 

SECTION A Page(s)  

MINUTES AND EXTRACTS 

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 6 May 2014  
 

3 - 6 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT & CUSTOMER SERVICES 

3.  Executive Work Programme  
 

7 - 14 

4.  Strategic Plan Progress - Outturn 2013/14  
 

15 - 22 

5.  Financial Performance - Outturn 2013/14  
 

23 - 50 

6.  Q4 2013-14 Operational Performance Report  
 

51 - 66 

7.  Strategic Risk Register - Quarterly Review  
 

67 - 78 

8.  Treasury Management Stewardship and Actual Prudential Indicators 
Report 2013/14 (Outturn)  
 

79 - 102 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES & PUBLIC PROTECTION 

9.  Public Toilets / Urinals: Proposed Closures  103 - 120 

Public Document Pack



 

 

HOUSING 

10.  Selective Buy Back Policy for Former Council Housing  
 

121 - 128 

11.  Municipal House Building Programme: Resources & Strategic Options  
 

129 - 138 

PLANNING POLICY & ECONOMIC REGENERATION 

12.  Lincoln Christmas Market Fees and Charges 2014/15  
 

139 - 152 

13.  Lincoln Growth Strategy: Building Our Future on Strong Foundations  
 

153 - 198 

14.  Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
You are asked to resolve that the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during the consideration of the following items because it is 
likely that if members of the press or public were present, there would be 
disclosure to them of 'exempt information'. 
 
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, 
notice is hereby given of items which will be considered in private, for 
which either 28 days' notice has been given or approval has been 
granted by the appropriate person specified in the Regulations. For 
further details please visit our website at http://www.lincoln.gov.uk or 
contact Democratic Services at City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln. 
 
Update on Major Capital Improvement Schemes/Loan of Two 
Railway Locomotives to Great Northern and Eastern Lincolnshire 
Railway Company PLC. These items are being considered in private as 
they are likely to disclose exempt information, as defined in Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972. No representations have been 
received in relation to the proposal to consider these items in private. 
 

199 - 200 

SECTION B 

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT & CUSTOMER SERVICES 

15.  Loan of Two Railway Locomotives to Great Northern and Eastern 
Lincolnshire Railway Company PLC 
 [Exempt Para(s) 3]

 

201 - 206 

16.  Update on Major Capital Improvement Schemes 
 [Exempt Para(s) 3]

 

207 - 214 

 



Executive 6 May 2014 

 
Present: Councillor Ric Metcalfe (in the Chair),  

Councillor Donald Nannestad, Councillor 
Brent Charlesworth, Councillor Neil Murray, Councillor 
Fay Smith and Councillor Peter West 
 

Apologies for Absence: None. 
 

 
171.  Confirmation of Minutes - 14 April 2014  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2014 be confirmed. 
 

172.  Declarations of Interest  
 

No declarations of interest were received. 
 

173.  Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Strategy 2014-2017  
 

Purpose of Report 
 
To seek approval for the updated and revised Tenant Involvement and 
Empowerment Strategy 2014–2017. 
 
Decision 
 
That the revised Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Strategy 2014–2017 and 
accompanying action plan be approved. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
None. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
Developing and delivering an improved tenant involvement and empowerment 
strategy would contribute to the Council’s strategic priority of improving the 
Council’s housing landlord function. 
 
In addition, the Regulatory Framework for Social Housing in England required the 
Council to ensure tenants were given a wide range of opportunities to influence 
and be involved in the management of their homes and the formulation of policies 
and the making of decisions about how housing landlord services are delivered.  
The revised strategy set out the processes and opportunities for tenant 
involvement in compliance with the framework. 
 
The strategy had been developed in consultation with tenants and had been 
formally endorsed by the Lincoln Tenants Panel on 19 March 2014. Wider 
consultation also saw support for the priorities included in the strategy and the 
tenant involvement activities available.  
 
 
 
 

Item No. 1

3



174.  Shuttleworth House Proposed Energy Efficiency Scheme  
 

Purpose of Report 
 
Executive approval was sought to authorise expenditure relating to the proposed 
Energy Company Obligation scheme (ECO) project, following a reduction in the 
level of potential ECO funding from the amount previously detailed within the 
Executive report dated 27 January 2014. The project would improve the thermal 
efficiency of the Shuttleworth House tower block with match funding from within 
the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
Decision 
 
1. That the anticipated reduced level of ECO Scheme funding likely to be 

available as a contribution to the cost of the project be noted. 
 
2. That the project be approved and the allocation of the full funding for 

the Shuttleworth House project from the Housing Investment 
Programme be confirmed. 

 
3. That the intention to submit a bid for contributory funding for the project 

under the ECO Scheme and the current level of potential funding 
available be noted. 

 
4. That the Director of Housing & Community Services be authorised to 

establish appropriate project management arrangements for delivery of 
the project in accordance with the Lincoln Project Management Model.  

 
5. That the intended monitoring of the delivery of the project by the Self-

financing Implementation Team and Strategic Plan Implementation 
Team be noted. 

 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
None. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
In originally approving the project at its meeting on 27 January 2014, the 
Executive had recognised the risk that the level of ECO funding had not yet been 
confirmed and therefore earmarked funding for the full cost of the project. The 
cost of the proposed scheme was estimated at £3.2 million. 
 
Following the Government’s Autumn Statement the level of available ECO 
funding calculated for the Shuttleworth House project has reduced from £1.4m to 
a revised figure of £560,239; details of the calculated changes in proposed 
funding were considered within the report provided and resulted in a reduction of 
£916,484. 
 
Noting the continuing benefits of the scheme to residents, as summarised in the 
decision of 27 January 2014, the progression of the scheme was confirmed. 
 
 
 
 

4



175.  Joint Protocol on Unauthorised Encampments in Lincolnshire  
 

Purpose of Report 
 
To seek Executive’s approval for the adoption of the Lincolnshire County 
Council’s Joint Protocol for Dealing with Unauthorised Encampments in 
Lincolnshire. 
 
Decision 
 
That the joint protocol document dealing with unauthorised encampments in 
Lincolnshire be adopted. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
None. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
Lincolnshire County Council had sought to regularise the way in which local 
authorities within the county dealt with unauthorised encampments in accordance 
with the law and best practice. Unauthorised Gypsy and Traveller encampments 
provided an occasional problem in Lincoln and while the frequency and scale of 
these unauthorised encampments was not great, without an agreed approach the 
amount of officer time lost and disruption caused could be relatively large. 
 
By adopting the protocol, members noted the benefits of a shared approach to 
unauthorised encampments.  This would enable the use of standard documents, 
assessment procedures and processes thereby aiding a consistent approach 
across Lincolnshire.  The Council would also have a prepared reaction to 
unauthorised encampments, which built upon the work already undertaken by the 
Council’s legal services. 
 
Members further noted that the Equality Act 2010 made it unlawful for a public 
authority to discriminate against anyone with a protected characteristic as well as 
imposing the duty to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment or 
victimisation. As outlined in the equality assessment undertaken for the protocol, 
there were no negative impacts on individuals which could not be mitigated, while 
the potential harm to individuals was outweighed by the risk of not implementing 
the protocol. The protocol further supported the promotion of the welfare of 
Travellers and Gypsies and would seek to increase tolerance by settled 
communities and understanding of these groups. 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally blank.



EXECUTIVE 16 JUNE 2014 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
EXECUTIVE WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CHARLIE MASON, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To present the items on the current edition of the Executive Work Programme for 

the coming year.  
 

2. Executive Summary     
 

2.1 The current Executive Work Programme is attached as Appendix A, for 
Executive’s consideration.  
 

2.2 Following the enactment of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, a number of 
changes were made to the way the council publicised key decisions and private 
decisions taken by the Executive, a committee of the Executive or a Member of 
the Executive during the period covered by the programme.   
 

2.3 
 

This report gives the Executive an opportunity to note the current items on the 
work programme, make any additions or amendments to the programme, and 
commission any items to the relevant Scrutiny Committees for pre-consideration. 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 
 

The Constitution states that the Council must publicise the Executive Work 
Programme on a monthly basis detailing key decisions/ private decisions due to be 
taken by the Executive, a committee of the Executive or a Member of the 
Executive during the period covered by the programme.   
 

3.2 
 

These provisions apply to all Executive committees, which currently includes the 
Executive, Asset Management Group and Shared Revenues and 
Benefits Joint Committee.  
 
When a decision is likely to be considered in private (i.e. Section B of the agenda) 
by an Executive committee, a notice will be published at least 28 days in advance 
of the meeting, thereby giving the public the opportunity to make any relevant 
representations. If it is not possible to give 28 days’ notice there is a provision for 
the chair of Policy Scrutiny Committee to agree to the item being considered in 
private if there were suitable reasons for not delaying the decision. 
 
If the Policy Scrutiny Committee determines that an Executive key decision had 
been taken without the decision being properly classified as a key decision, the 
committee could require the Executive to report to Council giving details of the 
decision and the reasons for its classification. 
 
All key decisions are now be recorded on the Executive Work Programme, which 

Item No. 3

7



is presented to Executive every three months, and also to Policy Scrutiny 
Committee on a regular basis to identify any items it may wish to scrutinise, in the 
same manner as the Forward Plan was previously presented. 
 
In addition to other statutory and common law rights as elected members, the 
Regulations set in place overview and scrutiny members’ additional rights to 
access information in the possession of the Executive. 
 
A member of a scrutiny committee is entitled to a copy of any document which is in 
the possession or under the control of the Executive and contains material relating 
to any Executive decisions (whether taken by the committee, a portfolio holder, or 
by an officer); any request for documents should be made through Democratic 
Services. 
 

4. Recommendations 
 

4.1 
 

That the Executive: 

 a) note the contents of the Executive Work Programme, 
 

 b) make any necessary additions or amendments to the programme, and 
commission any items to the relevant Scrutiny Committees for pre-
consideration as appropriate. 

 
Key Decision No 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply? 

No 

Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which Rule 
15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 

No 

How many appendices 
does the report contain? 

1 – Appendix A (Executive Work Programme) 

 

List of Background 
Papers: 

None 

Lead Officer: Charlie Mason, Democratic Services Officer 
Telephone 873533 

 

8



 
 
 
 

 

EXECUTIVE WORK PROGRAMME 

 

June 2014 - May 2015 
 
 

NOTES 

 
1. The Leader in consultation with the Chief Executive and Town Clerk 

prepares an Executive Work Programme to cover a period of twelve 
months.   

 
2. The Executive Work Programme contains matters which the Leader 

has reason to believe will be the subject of a key decision during the 
period covered by the Plan or Executive decisions which are likely to 
be taken in private. 

 
3. A Key Decision is one which is likely: 

 
a) to result in the Local Authority incurring expenditure which is , or 

the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
Local Authority’s budget for the service or function to which it 
relates; or 

 
b) to be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or 

working in an area comprising 2 or more wards in the area of the 
local authority. 

 
4. Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the meetings listed in 

the Executive Work Programme will be open to the public and media 
organisations to attend, there will be some business to be considered 
that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or 
person information. 

 
 This document serves as formal notice under the Local Authorities 

(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012 that certain items in the Executive Work 
Programme will be considered in private because the item contains 
exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) and that the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it. 
If an item is to be considered in private this will indicated on the 
individual decision notice. 

 
 If you have any queries, please telephone 01522 873387 or email 

democratic.services@lincoln.gov.uk. 

APPENDIX A 

9



EXECUTIVE WORK PROGRAMME SUMMARY 
 

Date of Decision Decision 
Decision: Summary  Decision Taken 

By 
Key 

Decision 
Exempt 

Information 

16 June 2014 
 

Loan of Two Railway 
Locomotives to Great Northern 
and Eastern Lincolnshire 
Railway Company PLC 
 
 

1. To seek approval to allow the 
ex British Railways Class 08 
number D3167 to remain in 
the custody of the Lincolnshire 
Wolds Railway under the 
terms of the current loan 
agreement with the Great 
Northern and Eastern 
Lincolnshire Railway 
Company plc. 

 
2. To seek approval for the 

disposal of the ex British 
Railways Ruston & Hornsby 
class 97 no 97650 locomotive. 

Executive 
 

No Private 

16 June 2014 
 

Financial Performance - Outturn 
 
 

To approve budget changes which 
may include budget virements, 
contributions to reserves, budget 
carry forwards, capital budget 
reprofiles and initiation of new capital 
projects.  
 
 
 

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

16 June 2014 
 

Strategic Plan Progress - 
Outturn 2013/14 
 
 

To note performance in delivery of 
Strategic Projects  
 
 

Executive 
 

No Private 

16 June 2014 
 

Planned Capital Maintenance 
Projects 
 
 

To approve amendments to the 
capital budgets for a number of 
planned capital maintenance projects 
(Lucy Tower Street MSCP, 

Executive 
 

Yes Private 

10



 

Thornbridge CP and Whitebridge)  

02 July 2014 
 

Property Review . 
 
 

Review of council properties across 
several wards in the city.  

Asset Management 
Group 
 

Yes Private 

07 July 2014 
 

Enforced Sale of Property 
 
 

That the instigation of legal 
proceedings for an order for enforced 
sale be agreed to facilitate the 
subsequent sale of the property on 
the open market in order to discharge 
the council tax debt owed.  
 

Executive 
 

No Private 

07 July 2014 
 

Review of Leisure Services - 
Birchwood Leisure Centre 
 
 

To give support to the 
commencement of negotiations with 
Active Nation in relation to extending 
the contract at Birchwood Lesiure 
Centre. 

Executive 
 

Yes Private 

07 July 2014 
 

ICT Detailed Business Case 
 
 

Approval of ICT detailed business 
case and revised structure for the 
service.  

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

07 July 2014 
 

Hartsholme Country Park - 
Request for Land Purchase 
 
 

Whether the Council would wish to 
sell an area of land, subject to 
statutory consultation  

Executive 
 

No Private 

28 July 2014 
 

Car Parking Strategy 
 
 

Endorsement of the City Council's 
approach to Car Parking as 
recommended in the Lincoln Parking 
Strategy Report.  

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

28 July 2014 
 

Withdrawal of the Private 
Housing Assistance Policy 
Grant Aid Scheme 
 
 

Approve withdrawal of the Withdrawal 
of the Private Housing Assistance 
Policy Grant Aid scheme in 
preparation for replacement with a 
more targeted scheme. 

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

28 July 2014 
 

Development of a Renewal 
Area Strategy and identification 
of the first Renewal Area 
 
 

To adopt a Renewal Area strategy 
approach to addressing the wider 
regeneration of areas of the City 
which suffer from a range of complex 
and inter-linked issues. Identification 

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

11



 

of the first area to adopt an holistic 
approach to renewal looking at 
housing, employment, skills, health, 
social cohesion, poverty and other 
related issues.  

28 July 2014 
 

HRA Business Plan 2012-2042 
 
 

To consider the publication of a 30-
year HRA Business Plan.  

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

26 August 2014 
 

Financial Performance - 
Quarterly Monitoring 
 
 

To approve budget changes which 
may include budget virements, 
contributions to reserves, budget 
carry forwards, capital budget 
reprofiles and initiation of new capital 
projects.  
 
 

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

26 August 2014 
 

Strategic Plan Progress - 
Quarterly Monitoring 
 
 

To note performance in delivery of 
Strategic Projects  

Executive 
 

No Private 

26 August 2014 
 

Public Conveniences Services 
 
 

Agree level of service to be provided 
in the future.  

Executive 
 

No Private 

24 November 2014 
 

Financial Performance - 
Quarterly Monitoring 
 
 

To approve budget changes which 
may include budget virements, 
contributions to reserves, budget 
carry forwards, capital budget 
reprofiles and initiation of new capital 
projects.  
 
 

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

24 November 2014 
 

Strategic Plan Progress - 
Quarterly Monitoring 
 
 

To note performance in delivery of 
Strategic Projects  
 
 

Executive 
 

No Private 

12



 

19 January 2015 
 

Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit - 
Council Tax and Non Domestic 
Rates 
 
 

Confirm the action of the Director of 
Resources in declaring a surplus or 
deficit for Council Tax and NNDR for 
the financial year 2013/14  

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

02 March 2015 
 

Financial Performance - 
Quarterly Monitoring 
 
 

To approve budget changes which 
may include budget virements, 
contributions to reserves, budget 
carry forwards, capital budget 
reprofiles and initiation of new capital 
projects.  
 
 

Executive 
 

Yes Public 

02 March 2015 
 

Strategic Plan Progress - 
Quarterly Monitoring 
 
 

To note performance in delivery of 
Strategic Projects  
 
 

Executive 
 

No Private 

13



14

This page is intentionally blank.



EXECUTIVE   16 JUNE 2014  
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN PROGRESS – OUTTURN 2013/14 

REPORT BY: 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPLEMENTATION TEAM 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

ROB BAXTER, ACTING FINANCIAL SERVICES MANAGER 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide the Executive with a progress report on strategic projects against their 

milestones for the final quarter of 2013/14 and a summary of the projects delivered 
during the year. 
 

2. Programme Summary 
 

2.1 SPIT is currently monitoring 32 strategic projects. 
 

2.2 13 projects are currently on track in terms of their physical and financial milestones 
and risk profiles.  
 

2.3 There are no projects off track in terms of all three of the areas of monitoring: 
physical progress, financial position or risk analysis.  
 

2.4 There are 19 projects currently off track in either one or two of the areas of 
monitoring.  SPIT have concluded that the following projects are of a concern to 
bring to the attention of the Executive: 
 

• Car Park Safety Works 

• Servitor system (CMS Depot Master Replacement) 
 
The Car Park Safety Works are subject to a separate report that appears 
elsewhere on this agenda.  Please refer to that report for further details of the 
variances and remedial actions being taken  
 
The reasons for the Servitor variances, and the remedial action being taken, are 
detailed below in section 3.  
 

3. Schemes Presently ‘Off Profile’ 
 

3.1 Highlighted below are the projects that SPIT is specifically bringing to the attention 
of Members, with the relevant remedial action being taken: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Item No. 4

15



Project Name – Servitor (CMS Depot Master Replacement) 
 

Red Red Green 

Risk 
 
Current system is no longer 
supported therefore 
represents a risk to CMS.   
 
 

Physical Slippage  
 
Testing and training has 
not been completed, due 
to continuing problems 
within the system resulting 
in the “go-live” date being 
missed. 
 

Financial Issues  
 
Scheme fully funded. 

Remedial Action being taken 
 
Internal testing is still on-going with various problem areas being addressed. 
 
There are several issues still outstanding which are preventing a revised “go-live” 
date being set.   Due to continuing problems arising with issues seen previously and 
thought fixed, there are also new issues arising possibly due to extensive testing, or 
originating from the suppliers programme changes. 
 
These are mainly affecting the mobile area and therefore would impact on the 
operatives’ ability to use the devices successfully and for the Council to provide an 
effective service to customers. 
 
The identified issues are impacting on the level of confidence within the Project 
Team and the team are awaiting a reply from the supplier after detailing the issues 
which they have failed to resolve within their timescales. 
 
Two previously proposed “go-live” dates, suggested by the supplier, have been 
rejected by the Council as being unrealistic in both the ability to resolve the issues 
and not taking into consideration all other remaining work to be carried out in-house. 
In both cases the supplier was subsequently unable to meet their obligations for 
those dates. 
 
The Director of Housing and Community Services and the Maintenance Manager are 
to meet with the system supplier to try and resolve these issues and it is hoped that 
the implementation will be complete by the end of June 2014. 
 
 

Change Control approved 
 
N/A 
 

 
 
 
4. New Projects Approved by SPIT 

 
4.1 1 new project was reviewed and recommended to the Executive for approval by 

SPIT in the final quarter. 
 

16



Allotment Improvement Works 
 
For some time tenants have been reporting their concerns about certain aspects of 
allotment sites, including the condition of access tracks and site security. Only 
limited work can be delivered through the use of the annual revenue budget and 
R&M budget. This has led to a deterioration of the general infrastructure for 
allotments across the board over time. Work on the allotments strategy (which was 
developed by external consultants and formally adopted in 2013) pulled together 
tenants’ concerns from sites across the city, along with comments from the 
frontline staff and the consultants’ own observations. 
 
Whilst the money available is not sufficient to address every concern, work has 
been undertaken to prioritise the required works, with a fair division of spend 
between allotment sites as far as is practically possible. 
 
The completion of these works would go some way to addressing the concerns of 
allotment tenants, and encouraging others to take on an allotment tenancy (we 
know that currently access and security issues are a concern to existing tenants, 
have contributed to some past tenants giving up their plot, and thus it is 
reasonable to assume that these widely voiced concerns may be deterring future 
tenants). 
 
The main advantages of undertaking this project are summarised below: 
 

- Address the concerns of allotment tenants relating to such issues as access 
and security at allotment sites (as far as is possible given the funding 
available) 

- Improve accessibility at allotment sites 
- Improve satisfaction of allotment tenants 

 
5. Completed Projects 

 
5.1 Where it is felt appropriate and beneficial for continuous improvement at the 

conclusion of a project SPIT will receive a completion report and post 
implementation review.  Once they are received and have been reviewed by SPIT 
a project is considered to be complete. 
 

5.2 There was 1 project signed off as completed, following its approved post 
implementation review, during the last quarter as detailed below:  
 
Crematorium Improvement Works 
 
This project was to supply and install a replacement canopy running over the 
walkway adjacent to the floral tribute area at the Crematorium. Following the 
completion of the project, a more modern and stable structure has successfully 
been built. Importantly frequent communication with the contractor allowed the 
works to be carried out with the least disruption due to the sensitive nature of the 
building and importance of providing a continued service was essential. 
 

6. Section 106 Group 
 

6.1 The Section 106 Group operates as a sub group of SPIT.  The group is 

17



responsible for the monitoring of the Council’s Section 106 agreements and to 
ensure that monies received are used for the correct purpose and spent by the 
critical expenditure date. 

 
 
 
 
 

  
7. Strategic Project Achievements 

 
7.1 
 

Identified below is a summary of previously reported Strategic Projects outcomes 
completed/achieved, following their approved post implementation reviews, during 
the financial year 2013/14. 
 

• Boultham Park Public Toilets Refurbishment 

• Website Replacement 

• Swanholme Lakes Heathland Restoration 

• Electric Vehicle Purchase for Car Parks 

• New Initiative – Communal Doors Replacement 

• Contaminated Land 

• Agresso Upgrade 

• CLS Partnership 
 

7.2 Identified below are details of outcomes of strategic projects achieved during the 
financial year where there has been physical delivery but the schemes are either 
on going or are yet to be formally signed off by SPIT. 
 
Disabled Facilities Grants 
 
During the year 47 homes were adapted for disabled persons. The mean grant 
was £5,221. The lowest grant was £1,008 and the greatest £40,000. 41 grants 
cost less than £10,000 and there were 5 grants between £10,000 and £20,000. 
 
After the cessation of the DFG Pilot Project a decision was taken in January this 

Classification 
 

Value of 
106 

agreed 

Value of 
106 

triggered 

Value of 
106 

received 

Spent/ 
Commit’d 

Balance 
to be 

allocated 

 £ 
 

£ 
 

£ 
 

£ 
 

£ 
 

Playing Fields 970,998 898,806 898,805 550,851 347,955 

Play Areas 787,550 742,394 742,394 455,652 286,742 

Open Spaces & 
Adoption 214,412 135,719 135,719 11,194 124,525 

Highways/ 
Footpath 
Improvement 1,549,146 1,026,353 1,026,353 840,492 185,861 

Sculpture & 
Public Arts 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 10,000 

Education 774,779 417,042 417,042 255,487 161,555 

Affordable 
Housing 870,000 870,000 870,000 507,500 362,500 

Other 67,454 13,531 13,531 300 13,231 

Total 5,244,339 4,113,845 4,113,845 2,621,476 1,492,369 

18



year to bring the administration of DFGs back in-house, but without filling the 
vacant positions. This was to be subject to review.  
 
The Exchequer contribution for DFGs is part of the Integration Transformation 
Fund. This means that the County Council has a significant role to play in financial 
distribution and it may be that the statutory duty to approve applications for DFGs 
will pass to the Social Services Authorities  (locally, Lincolnshire County Council) 
 
Delivering decent homes in the private sector 
 
Reducing the number of non-decent homes in the private housing stock, and 
increasing the proportion of “vulnerable households” living in decent homes were 
primary aims of housing strategy and policy.  Previously housing assistance made 
a significant contribution to achieving these corporate targets. For the year 
2013/14 just 20 properties were made decent using grant aid. This reduction in 
performance reflects the maintenance of 3 vacant posts over a long period. The 
role of housing assistance in achieving corporate aims is to be re-examined and it 
may be that the approach to “non-decent” housing is re-appraised.  
 
Maintaining Decent Homes Programme (within the Housing Investment 
Programme) 
 
The programme of works, where access by the tenant was permitted, was 
completed in 2010/11 enabling Housing properties to be classed as decent under 
the “Decent Homes Standard” set by the Government. 
 
During 2013/14 there were : 

 

• 1,971 properties were programmed for improvement works during 
2013/14, of which 1,971 were completed on site.  

 

• Further properties received improvement works through the void 
scheme, and 

 

• 97 tenants refused the proposed improvement works. 
 
Local Authority Mortgage Scheme 
 
In April 2012 the Council committed to participating in a Local Authority Mortgage 
Scheme.  The scheme is designed to help increase the supply of affordable 
housing for those who need it, and to help the local housing market and thereby 
the local economy. 
 
The first phase of a £1m indemnity scheme was launched in June 2012 in 
partnership with Lloyds TSB Bank.  This covered all areas in the City, with a 
maximum loan value of £125,000.  It was anticipated that this would enable 
support to be provided to a minimum of 38 first time buyers. 
 
As at 31st March 2014 a total of 39 mortgages have completed using £735,837 of 
the original £1m indemnity. 3 property purchases are progressing with a further 8 
properties progressing through application and mortgage offer stages. 
 

19



Based on mortgages completed to date the average mortgage is £98,224 and 
average indemnity is £18,868, suggesting a total of 52 property purchases could 
be supported under the £1m scheme.  With completions to date and applications 
progressing this suggest there remains an opportunity for 2 more applicants. 
 
King George V Pavilion Improvement Works 
 
Improvement works to the pavilion were identified through a condition survey and 
the service area.  The pavilion was non-operational and facilities were poor.  
During 2013/14 works were undertaken to improve the changing facilities and to 
improve the DDA access to the building. 
 
Telephony/Unified Comms 
 
The telephone system is business critical for providing services.  The previous 
system had reached its end of life and had developed a number of reliability issues 
which could only be resolved by upgrading to a newer modern system.  During 
2013/14 a new telephony system was procured and implemented across the 
authority. 
 
Network Upgrade 
 
During 2013/14 the authority’s aging Information and Communications Technology 
(ICT) Network was upgraded in order to provide increased resilience and a fit for 
purpose infrastructure, which is business critical. 
 
Replacement of the White Bridge at Hartsholme Park 
 
The original bridge was removed as reports from Consultants engaged by the 
authority confirmed that it was unsafe. The bridge was in frequent use before it 
was demolished, as it forms part of a public right of way.  The replacement bridge 
was installed and re-opened to the public in March 2014. 
 
Supply of new burial land 
 
In order to ensure the maintenance of an adequate supply of burial land to meet 
the city’s needs a site was identified at Long Leys Road for the provision of new 
burial space.  Work on-site commenced in May 2012 and was completed during 
the 2013/14 financial year.  The post implementation review for this project will be 
presented to a future SPIT meeting. 
 
In addition to the above outcomes major works have taken place at Lucy Tower 
Street Car Park (structural works), Thornbridge Car Park (structural works), 
Stapleford Avenue New Build and Newport Arch Restoration Project. 
 

8. Organisational Impacts  
 

8.1 Finance (including whole life costs where applicable) 
 
There are no financial implications arising as a direct result of this report. However 
the Executive is asked to refer to the Financial Performance Outturn Report, which 
appears elsewhere on this agenda, for details of performance against budgets. 

20



 
8.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules  

 
There are no legal implications arising as a direct result of this report. 
 

8.3 Equality, Diversity & Human Rights (including the outcome of the EA attached, if 
required) 
 
There are no equality, diversity and human rights implications arising as a direct 
result of this report. 
 

9. Risk Implications 
 

9.1 The risk implications are covered in section 3 of this report.  
 

10. Recommendation  
 

10.1 
 

The Executive note the progress in delivery of strategic projects, in particular the 
specific issues, as highlighted in section 3 and appropriate actions being taken. 
. 

  
Key Decision 
 

No 
 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply? 
 

No 
 

Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which Rule 
15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

No 

How many appendices 
does the report contain? 
 
 

N/A 
 

List of Background 
Papers: 
 

None. 
 

Lead Officer: Rob Baxter, Acting Financial Services Manager 
Telephone 873867 
 

 
 
 
 

21



22

This page is intentionally blank.



  
EXECUTIVE 
 

16 JUNE 2014 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE – OUTTURN 2013/14 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

ROB BAXTER, ACTING FINANCIAL SERVICES MANAGER 

 

 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 To present to the Executive the provisional 2013/14 financial outturn position on 
the Council’s revenue and capital budgets, including: 

• General Fund 

• Housing Revenue Account 

• City Maintenance Services 

• Capital Programmes 
And, to provide a review of the key budget risk assessments. 
 

1.2 This report will provide the Executive with a summary of actual income and 
expenditure compared to the revised budget and how any surpluses have been 
allocated to reserves. 
 

1.3 The Executive should note that the financial outturn is still subject to audit by 
KPMG, the Council’s external auditors. 
 

2. 

 

Executive Summary 

 
2.1 This section of the report provides a summary briefing on the financial position of 

the Council for the financial year 2013/14.  

 
 

 2013/14 

 Budget 

£’000 

Actual 

£’000 

Variance  

£’000 

Revenue Accounts    

General Fund – use of 
balances 
 

(148) 245 393 

Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) (Surplus)/Deficit in 
year 

375 69 (306) 

City Maintenance Service 
(surplus)/deficit 
 

0 (226) (226) 

Capital Programmes    

General Fund Investment 
Programme 

3,434 3,234 (200) 

Housing Investment 
Programme 

9,495 10,298 803 

Item No. 5

23



     
 2013/14 

 Budget 

£’000 

Actual 

£’000 

Variance  

£’000 

Capital Receipts    

General Fund  

 

0 29 (29) 

HRA (non Right To Buy)  
 

0 0 0 

HRA Right to Buy  
 

(164) (835) (671) 

Reserves & Balances    

General Fund Balances 
 

1,458 1,852 393 

HRA Balances 
 

1,004 1,310 (306) 

CMS Balances 
 

25 25 0 

General Fund Earmarked 
Reserves 
 

4,047 5,266 1,219 

HRA Earmarked Reserves 
 

1,536 1,061 (475) 

 
2.2 The detailed financial position is shown in sections 3-7 and accompanying 

appendices. 
 

3. General Fund Revenue Account 

 
3.1 For 2013/14 the Council’s net General Fund revenue budget was set at 

£14,037,361, including a planned contribution from balances of £148,459 
(resulting in an estimated level of general balances at the year-end of 
£1,458,451). 
 

3.2 The financial performance quarterly monitoring report for the 3
rd

 quarter predicted 
a variance against the revised budget (exclusive of approved carry forwards) of 
£200,920 surplus. The provisional outturn for 2013/14 now indicates that an 
increase in that surplus of £192,254 has occurred, resulting in an overall variance 
of £393,174 surplus. This variance represents an under spend against the 
revised budget of 2.8%. 
 

3.3 The General Fund Summary is currently projecting a forecast under spend of 
£393,174, prior to any carry forward requests (appendix A provides a forecast 
General Fund Summary). This forecast variance is the result of a number of 
forecast year-end variations in income and expenditure against the approved 
budget.  Full details of the main variances are provided in appendix B while the 
key variances are summarised below: 

• Homeless Bed & Breakfast £123,120 increased expenditure 

• Town Planning £76,540 reduced income 

• Car Parking £448,820 reduced income 

• Car Parking £207,320 reduced expenditure on contractual arrangements 

• Yarborough Leisure Centre £118,300 reduced expenditure on ring-fenced 

24



     
R&M (carry forward requested) 

• Planning and Regeneration, savings on posts due to the phasing of 
Towards Financial Sustainability programme restructure of £155,270 
(carry forward requested) 

• Localised Business Rates £94,890 increased income/ reduction in levy 
 

3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4.3 

Localisation of Business Rates– The Executive will be aware that 2013/14 saw 
significant changes to the way the Council’s General Fund is financed through the 
localisation of business rates.  This has resulted in previously fixed annual 
external funding becoming volatile within year and presenting a funding risk to the 
Council. 
 
The Council is still in the early days of the scheme and officers continue to 
develop models to monitor fluctuations in this complex system that has many 
variables and influences and is by its nature volatile. The two key variances on 
NNDR fund that have had an impact on the General Fund in 2013/14 are: 
 

• Reduction in the levy payment to Government for Business Rate growth – 
saving of £192k 

• Additional Government grant to cover the extension of the Small Business 
Rates Relief scheme through 2013/14 – additional income £352k 

 
As a result of higher than expected rating appeals and the temporary removal of a 
number of high revenue earning properties from the valuation list   (e.g. Lucy 
Tower car park and shops affected by the Waterside development) Business 
Rates collected for 2013/14 are lower than budgeted.  While this has reduced the 
levy payable to Government in 2013/14 (as highlighted above) and is somewhat 
compensated by the additional government grant, there will still be a deficit on the 
Collection Fund for 2013/14.    As at January 2014 a forecast deficit on the 
business rate element of the Collection Fund for the City Council’s share was 
declared as £562k, to be distributed in 2014/15, and was subsequently included in 
the MTFS 2014-19.   
 
The MTFS 2014-19 also assumed that the reduction in the levy payable and 
additional Government grant would be an estimated £450k (based on quarter 3 
information) and as such provided for this amount to be transferred to an 
earmarked reserve to contribute towards the deficit of £562k in 2014/15. The 
provisional outturn position shows an increase of £94k in this position to £544k 
(as per 3.4.1). 
 

3.5 Included within the provisional outturn in paragraph 3.2 is an additional 
contribution from an earmarked reserve that the Director of Resources (in 
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules) has identified as being required. This 
being: 
 

• Contribution from the Invest to Save reserve of £35,000 to fund the LED 
lighting at Lucy Tower Car Park.  

 
3.6 Financial Procedure Rules state that Assistant Directors are able to carry forward 

any budget provision not utilised during the financial year, subject to their 
Directorate as a whole not being overspent.  A provisional list of proposed carry 

25



     
forwards was reported as part of the 3rd quarter’s monitoring, that list has 
subsequently been revised following the confirmation of the final cash limit 
outturns for each Directorate for 2013/14.  
 

3.7 Four further carry forward requests have been identified, these consist of a 
community building event, which was due to take place in Q4 but due to the 
elections had to be postponed until 2014/15, communications training due to take 
place in 13/14 but due to demand is now scheduled for 2014/15, and 
reimbursements received from the Land Registry and Individual Electoral 
Registration grant both of which were not notified/received until Q4. The final list 
of requests for amounts be transferred from the surplus to earmarked reserves for 
drawdown in future years (to be determined by the nature and profiling of the 
scheme) is shown below.  The Executive should note that the Council is 
contractually committed to carry forward the underspends on repairs and 
maintenance at both Yarbrough and Birchwood Leisure Centres: 
 

3.8  
Directorate Reason for Carry Forward £ 

DDES   
Planning & Regeneration To retain an element of the £174k one 

off savings achieved, due to phasing of 
the ToFS review, for any backlog/ 
capacity issues within the service. 
 

45,330 

Yarborough Leisure Centre Ring fenced R&M budget under-
spend, earmarked to fund planned 
expenditure in 2014/15.  
 

118,300 

Birchwood Leisure Centre Ring fenced R&M budget under-
spend, earmarked to fund planned 
expenditure in 2014/15.  
 

3,580 

Christmas Decorations Contribution towards cost of replacing/ 
repairing current decorations. 

6,000 

CX   
Corporate Policy To fund the strategic plan in 2014/15. 

 
3,000 

Corporate Policy To fund Community Building event in 

2014/15 (not requested at Q3) 
3,000 

Corporate Policy Communications training (not 

requested at Q3) 

2,450 

DOR   

Legal Services To fund additional legal expenses 
forecast in 2014/15. 

8,590 

Legal Services Land Registry reimbursement 
received, to fund ongoing Land 

Registry payments. (not requested at 

Q3) 

17,710 

Elections Individual Electoral Registration grant 
received, to fund expenditure in 

2014/15 (not requested at Q3) 

15,400 

Total  223,360 

 
 

26



     
3.9 By approving all the proposed carry forwards there will be a surplus on the 

General Fund for 2013/14 of £169,814 or a variance of 1.2% against the revised 
budget.  

 
3.10 It is proposed that the remaining surplus of £169,814 is transferred into specific  

earmarked reserves to provide future capacity to respond to some of the 
emerging issues that the Council is facing, as follows: 

 

• Christmas Market £90,000 

• The Lawn £50,000 

• City Hall lease implications £29,814 
 

3.11 The level of each of the current earmarked reserves, as at 31
st
 March 2014 is 

attached at Appendix G.  The appendix takes account of the contributions to 
earmarked reserves agreed as part of the revised budget and the drawdown of 
funding to cover expenditure as well as the additional contribution recommended 
by the Director of Resources in paragraph 3.5.  It does not reflect any proposed 
transfer to reserves for carry forwards or the transfers proposed at paragraph 
3.10. 
 

4. Housing Revenue Account 

 
4.1 For 2013/14 the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA) net revenue budget 

was set at £374,960, resulting in an estimated level of general balances at the 
year-end of £1,003,774. 

 
4.2 The financial performance quarterly monitoring report for the 3rd quarter 

predicted a variance against the revised budget of a £92,100 surplus. The 
provisional outturn for 2013/14 now indicates that an increase on the predicted 
figure, of £213,620 has occurred, resulting in an overall surplus of £305,720.  
 

4.3 This underspend has resulted from a number of both, under and overspends.  
These are detailed in Appendix D, the key variances being: 
 

• Increased income £75,580 

• Contingencies £77,110 reduced expenditure 

• Subsidy Limitation Transfer £214,246 increased expenditure 

• Bad debt contribution  £187,850 reduction in contribution required 

• CMS repatriated surplus of £240,379 
 

4.4 The Repairs Account resulted in an overspend of £482,342, against a total 
budget of £8,014,800, or 6%.  This has reduced the balance on the Repairs 
Account Reserve to £274,829, against a prudent minimum balance of £750,000.  
 

4.5 It is proposed that the overall surplus on the HRA of £305,720 is transferred to 
the Repairs Account Reserve in order to bring the balance back up to £580,549, 
with a view to monitoring the situation in 2014/15. 
 

27



     
4.6 The level of each of the current earmarked reserves, as at 31

st
 March 2014 is 

attached at Appendix G.  The appendix takes account of the contributions to 
earmarked reserves agreed as part of the revised budget and the drawdown of 
funding to cover expenditure.  
 

5. City Maintenance Services 

 
5.1 For 2013/14 the Council’s City Maintenance Service (CMS) net revenue budget 

was set at zero, reflecting its full cost recovery nature. In addition there is £25,000 
in balances to be used to fund staff training in relation to the replacement 
computer system due to be implemented in 2013, as well as a programme of 
training for Team Leaders and Operatives. 
 

5.2 The financial performance quarterly monitoring report for the 3
rd

 quarter predicted 
a £239,300 surplus against the revised CMS budget for 2013/14.  The provisional 
outturn for 2013/14 now shows a decrease on the predicted surplus of £13,029 
has occurred, resulting in an overall surplus of £226,271.  
 

5.3 This over-recovery is the result of a number of year-end variations in income and 
expenditure against the approved budget.  Full details of the main variances are 
provided in Appendix F while the key variances are summarised below: 
 

• Non-rechargeable time by CMS staff equated to a reduction in income of 
£294,058.  

• Profit element on recharging of voids subcontracting costs £479,663 
 

5.4 The surplus of £226,271 is to be repatriated to service users (HRA surplus 
£240,378, General Fund deficit £14,107), which is reflected in both HRA and 
General Fund outturns within this report. 
 

6. Earmarked Reserves 

 
6.1 The details of all the earmarked reserves and their balance as at 31st March 

2014 are attached in Appendix G.   In summary: 
 

 Opening 

Balance 

Increase  Decrease Closing Balance  

 01/04/13   31/03/14 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

General Fund 4,389  3,009 (2,132) 5,266 

HRA 1,625  8,242  (8,806) 1,061 

     

Capital Resources 12,250 13,506 (12,297) 13,459 

 
 
7. Capital Programme 

 
7.1 General Investment Programme 

 
7.2 The revised General Fund Investment Programme for 2013/14 as approved in 

the MTFS 2014-19 amounted to £3,433,685.  Movements in the programme 

28



     
since the approval of the revised budget decreased actual capital expenditure in 
2013/14 to £3,234,323.  A summary of the changes are shown below: 
 

7.3 The Director of Resources has delegated authority to approve financial changes 
up to an approved limit as set out under Financial Procedure Rules.  All changes 
over the approved limit require approval by the Executive.  
 
Detailed at Appendix I, under the heading of ‘Approved under DOR Delegated 
Authority’ are the changes approved by the Director of Resources during the final 
quarter in conjunction with the Strategic Plan Implementation Team (SPIT). 
 
Changes that require Executive approval for the final quarter are also detailed at 
Appendix I, under the heading of ‘Approvals required from Executive’. The 
scheme changes requiring Executive approval are: 
 

• Boultham Park Masterplan – Increase in budget by £200,000 in 2015/16 
from the ring-fenced funding from the Sale of Former Boultham Park 
Depot in June 2010. 

 

• John Deere Pro Gator – New vehicle for Hartsholme Country Park 
procured at the end of March 2014 for £24,020.  This was too late in the 
financial year to arrange a vehicle lease drawdown.  The drawdown will be 
completed in 2014/15. 

 

• Disabled Facilities Grants – Increase in 2014/15 budget of £101,079.  
Additional funding of £171,079 received from Department of Communities 
and Local Government as part of the 2014/15 Grant Allocation.  This has 
enabled the release of £70,000 internal funding from this scheme towards 
the General Investment Programme contingency. 

 

• Non Disabled Facilities Grants – Reallocation of £47,514 to the General 
Investment Programme contingency following an under spend on the 
2013/14 Non Disabled Facilities Grants budget. 

 
7.4 N New projects agreed at SPIT are then subject to Executive Approval.  The 

following project was put forward by SPIT for approval during the final quarter: 

• Allotment Improvement Works - Improvement works to allotment sites 
across the city as part of the Allotments Strategy.  The budget for this 
scheme is £147,600 in 2014/15 and funded through £75,000 existing 
capital receipts and £72,600 from Section 106 funding. 

 
7.5 The table below provides a summary of the provisional outturn position for the 

General Investment Programme: 
 

29



     

 
 
 

 MTFS 

2014-19 

Budget 

£’000 

Outturn 

 

 

 £’000 

Variance 

 

 

£’000 

Re-profiles 

to 2014/15 

 

£’000 

Economic Sustainability 13 11 (2) (2) 

Planning Services 113 99 (14) (14) 

Environmental Sustainability 3 1 (2) 0 

Business Development & 
Finance 

328 304 (24) (17) 

Corporate Support Services 1,960 2,097 137 (58) 

Housing 596 551 (45) 0 

Community Services, Sports & 
Leisure 

201 171 (30) (55) 

Contingency 220 0 (220) (172) 

Total Capital Programme 3,434 3,234 (200) (318) 

7.6 The overall spending on the General Investment Programme for 2013/14 was 
£3,234,323, which is 94.19% of the revised 2013/14 programme as per the MTFS 
2014-19. 
 

7.7 Issues surrounding the financing of the General Investment Programme 

 
7.8 Contained within the provisional outturn position above are a number of schemes 

which have significant overspends based on their final account position or the 
latest estimate of final accounts.  These schemes are the Whitebridge 
replacement at Hartsholme Country Park, Lucy Tower MSCP refurbishment and 
surface decking replacement at Thornbridge MSCP.  A separate report appears 
elsewhere on this agenda providing the details of these overspends and the 
proposed financing arrangements. 
 

7.9 The financing of the General Investment Programme (GIP) is heavily dependant 
on generating capital receipts over the period of the MTFS. 
 

7.10 The capital receipts target for 2013/14, following the previous years’ outturn, was 
£2,220,890. However, pending the development of the Asset Review Programme 
under the Council’s Towards Financial Sustainability programme, no assets were 
brought forward for disposal in 2013/14. The capital receipts targets for 2013/14 
through to 2016/17 were replaced by borrowing in the MTFS 14-19. The outturn 
position for 2013/14 gave rise to a borrowing need of £631,444 in 2013/14.  
  

7.11 This borrowing need was met from existing resources as internal borrowing, 
rather than externally. This has had a minimal revenue impact in 2013/14, 
consisting only of lost investment income for the final quarter of the year. Current 
cash flow forecasts show that the borrowing need can continue to be resourced 
internally, thereby reducing the cost of borrowing. However, cash flow 
requirements will be kept under constant review so that should it become 
necessary to take external borrowing, this will be taken at the most advantageous 
time for borrowing rates. 

30



     
 

7.12 Housing Investment Programme 

 
7.13 The revised Housing Investment Programme for 2013/14 as approved in the 

MTFS 2014-19 amounted to £9,494,594.  Movements in the programme since 
the approval of the revised budget increased actual capital expenditure to 
£10,297,741 in 2013/14. 
 

7.14 The Director of Resources has delegated authority to approve financial changes 
up to an approved limit as set out under Financial Procedure Rules.  All changes 
over the approved limit require approval by the Executive. There were no 
changes approved by the Director of Resources for the final quarter. 
 

7.15 Summarised at Appendix J is the revised programme for 2013/14 based on the 
revisions endorsed by the officer HRA Self Financing Implementation Team (S-
FIT).  The presentation of this programme is different to previous programmes as 
a result of the base information now coming directly from the Estate-Pro database 
maintained by the Maintenance and Investment Team. 
 
The changes requiring approval from the Executive are detailed in Appendix J 
and summarised below:  
  

• Additional funding received in the financial year (Lines 1 to 40, column G) 

• The movements in the financial year (Lines 1 to 40, column H) 

• Various re-profiles to and from future financial years (Lines 1 to 40, 
column I) 

 
7.16 The table below provides a summary of the projected outturn position: 

 
 

 Approved 

Budget  

 £’000 

Outturn 

 

£’000 

Variance 

 

£’000 

Re-profiles 

to 2014/15 

£’000 

Decent Homes 7,123 8,908 1,785 (276)

Environmental Improvements 175 0 (175) (175)

Health and Safety 881 707 (174) (142)

Other Current Developments 359 280 (79) (113)

Contingent Major Repairs/Works 218 0 (218) 0

New build programme 605 390 (215) (215)

Computer Fund 134 13 (121) (121)

Total Capital Programme 9,495 10,298 803 (1,042)

7.17 The overall spending on the Housing Investment Programme for 2013/14 was 
£10,297,741 which is 108.46% of the revised 2013/14 programme as per MTFS 
2014-19. 
 

8. Resource Implications 
 

8.1 The financial implications are contained throughout the report.  
 

8.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

31



     
 

8.3 There are no equality and diversity implications as a direct result of this report. 
 

9. Risk Implications 
 

9.1 A full financial risk assessment is included in the Medium Financial Strategy 
2013-18. 
 

10. 

 

Recommendation 
 

10.1 The Executive note the provisional 2013/14 financial outturn for the General 
Fund, Housing Revenue Account, City Maintenance Services and Capital 
Programmes as set out in sections 3 – 7, and in particular the reasons for any 
variances. 
 

10.2 The Executive approve the proposed transfers to/ from General Fund earmarked 
reserves as requested by Officers, detailed in paragraphs 3.5, 3.9, 3.10 and the 
proposed transfer to the HRA earmarked reserve detailed in paragraph 4.5. 
 

10.3 The Executive approve the financial changes to both the General Investment 
Programme and the Housing Investment Programme (paragraphs 7.3, 7.4 and 
7.15) that are above the 10% budget variance limit delegated to the Director of 
Resources 
 

10.4 The Executive note the outturn level internal borrowing of £631,444 in paragraph 
7.10 replacing capital receipts funding. 
  

10.5 The Executive note the nature and current level of earmarked reserves and in-
year movements between revenue, as set out Appendix G, prior to any further 
allocations being approved by the Executive. 
 

 
Key Decision 

 

No 

Key Decision Reference 

No. 

 

N/A 

Do the Exempt 

Information Categories 

Apply 

 

No 

Call in and Urgency: Is 
the decision one to which 
Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 

 

No 

Does the report contain 

Appendices? 

 

 

Yes 
 
 

List of Background None. 

32



     
Papers: 
 

 

Lead Officer: Rob Baxter, Acting Financial Services Manager 
Telephone 873867. 

33



Appendix A 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY – OUTTURN  2013/14 

 

 
Ref 

Revised 

Budget 
Actual Variance 

  £ £ £ 

Chief Executive and Town Clerk A             274             265               (9)  

Corporate Review and Development B             316             293             (23)  

Director of Development & Environmental Services C             (41)             (27)                14  

Health and Environmental Services D          3,493          3,413             (79)  

Planning and Regeneration E          2,367          2,420                52  

Communities and Street Scene F          4,338          4,745              407  

Housing G             799             724             (74)  

Business Development & Finance H             143           (344)           (486)  

Director of Resources I             849          1,003              155  

Legal and Corporate Support Services J          1,021          1,029                  8  

         13,558         3,521             (37)  

     

Corporate Expenditure K          1,919          1,192           (727)  

     

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE          5,476        14,713           (764)  

     

IAS 19 Pension & compensated absences entries                  0             (76)             (76)  

Capital Accounting Adjustment                37          1,087           1,050  

NNDR - spreading adjustment of backdated provision for 
appeals 

                 0           (556)           (556)  

Specific Grants L        (1,724)        (1,846)           (122)  

Contingencies M             663  0           (663)  

Savings Targets N               47                 0             (47)  

Earmarked Reserves            (342)             877           1,219  

Insurance Reserve                28             114                86  

Contribution to/ from CMS                  0               24                24  

TOTAL EXPENDITURE         14,186        14,338  152 

     

USE OF BALANCES            (148)             245              393  

     

NET REQUIREMENT         14,037        14,582              545  

     

Retained Business Rates Income          16,479        16,479  0  

Tariff       (12,348)      (12,348)  0  

Section 31 Grant                 0             352              352  

Levy            (399)           (207)              193  

Revenue Support Grant           5,008          5,008                  0  

Council Tax           5,298          5,298                  0  

TOTAL RESOURCES         14,037        14,582              545  

     

BALANCES B/F 1ST APRIL            1,607          1,607                 0  

(USE OF)/CONTRIBUTION TO BALANCES            (148)             245              393  

BALANCES C/F 31ST MARCH 2014           1,458          1,852              393  

 

34



       
 

 

General Fund Forecast Variances  - Outturn 2013/14 

 
The variances analysed in the table below exclude any technical adjustments and only 
cover the true under or over spends. Figures in brackets indicate an under spend of 
expenditure or additional income. 
 
Ref  £ Reason for variance 

 Additional Spending   

G Homeless Bed & Breakfast 
(addressed in MTFS) 

32,120 The Q3 Financial Performance report quoted 
an over spend of £119k against the budget, 
since then officers in Housing have worked 
closely with Housing Benefit colleagues in order 
to recover a proportion of these costs through 
HB claims, there is still a shortfall however and 
this is shown below against ‘Housing Benefits’. 
The resultant over spend shown here relates to 
the breakfast element and the eligibility of the 
tenant for receipt of subsidy. Total over spend 
to the Council across the two service areas is 
£123,120. 
 

I Housing Benefits 91,000 Loss of subsidy on B&B cases due to long term 
tenancy. (Net position on benefits is an under 
spend of £10,800) 
 

K Provision for Bad Debt 
(One-off) 

125,000 Following the annual impairment review it has 
been necessary to increase the budgeted 
contribution into the bad debt provision. (please 
also refer to the increase in HB overpayments 
in the increased income section)  
 

F Refuse/ Street Cleansing 
contract 

57,010 2013/14 has seen a considerable increase in 
fly-tipping, dumping and graffiti requiring 
additional reactive works. Officers are working 
with the contractor to analyse the causes of 
this. 
 

ALL Corporate R&M 37,310 Over spend on corporate R&M, representing 
7.4% of the annual budget, which relates to an 
increase in responsive repairs in Q4. Improved 
reporting is to be implemented for 2014/15.  
 

 Reduced  Income   

E Town Planning 76,540 The shortfall (reduced from projected £111k at 
Q3) is a result of the reduction of mid-range 
applications which have been replaced by a 
larger volume of smaller applications which 
attract a smaller fee. This could be symptomatic 
of the financial climate but also can be a 
seasonal variation with more developments 
tending to come through the system in the 
spring.  
 

APPENDIX B 

35



       
Ref  £ Reason for variance 
F Car Parking 

(addressed in MTFS) 
448,820 Pay and Display income, including scratch 

cards, under-achieved by £380k. This can be 
mainly attributed to car park closures at Lucy 
Tower and Thornbridge, whilst figures suggest 
that City Hall benefited from substantial 
displacement. 
In addition, there were reductions in season 
tickets and PCNs of £25k and £22k 
respectively. Following the introduction of CPE, 
the provision for recovery of outstanding PCNs 
from prior years has been reduced by £21k. 
However, fewer penalty charges were issued 
during the year. 
 

H Industrial Estates 
(one off) 

41,170 All Sadler Road Units were empty during 
2013/14, this is partially offset by the 6% void 
allowance but still there is £41k loss of rent 
against the budget. A new tenant for all of the 
units has been secured from 2014/15.. 
 

H The Lawn (net) 49,180 Rental income has decreased significantly with 
the last tenant having vacated at the end of 
November. This has meant rent and re-
imbursements are down by £108k, which is 
offset by £32k saving on the Mouchel 
management fee, £16k on business rates and 
an anticipated saving of £11k in utilities. 
 

E Christmas Market (net) 76,830 The infrastructure that the Lincoln Christmas 
Market requires to ensure that is it a safe event 
relies on significant financial support. These 
costs include policing and stewarding the 4 day 
event. Due to the continued refurbishment of 
the Castle area there where less stalls in this 
area and therefore reduced income as a result. 
This is an increase of £4,720 on the 20

th
 March 

PSC report, which projected a deficit of 
£72,110. Please refer to Appendix C for detail. 
 

 Reduced Spending   

F Car Parking 
(one off) 

(207,320) There was a substantial reduction in operational 
costs (£167k) as a result of the closure of Lucy 
Tower car park. In addition, the provision for 
support of the CPE initiative underspent by 
£23.5k. Furthermore, as a result of capital 
works to Lucy Tower, revenue maintenance 
underspent by £20k. 
 

F Public Conveniences 
(included within Towards 
Financial Sustainability 
programme) 

(21,000) Under spend of £13k on unused overtime and 
£8k on utilities. 
 

36



       
Ref  £ Reason for variance 
E The Terrace (net) (28,930) Under spends on electricity, business rates 

(including small business rates relief) and 
cleaning, partially offset by a reduction in 
income. 
 

D Yarborough Leisure Centre 
(one off) 

(118,300) Underspend on ring fenced R&M budget, 
requested to be carried forward to fund planned 
expenditure in 2014/15. 
 

I Housing Benefits (101,000) Under spend due to budget set aside for post 
audit subsidy adjustments, there remains a 
balance of £100k in the earmarked reserve, 
which is considered to be adequate, therefore a 
top up is not required this year. (Net position on 
benefits is an under spend of £10,800) 
 

M Staff advertising (35,480) Year-end under spend on contingency set aside 
to fund staff advertising. 
 

M City Hall Improvement 
(one off) 
 

(65,000) Release of a contingency budget to cover 
capital financing costs of essential works to City 
Hall following the Council’s purchase of the 
building. The current year works to the building 
are being funded from existing capital budgets. 
 

N Towards Financial 
Sustainability programme 
(one off) 

(46,930) Over achievement of the Next Steps savings 
target in 2013/14 (£1,046,930 achieved against 
target of £1,000,000)  
 

E Planning & Regeneration 
(one off) 

(155,270) Under spends on staffing due to the phasing of 
the Planning & Regeneration restructure in 
2013/14. (£45k of this has been requested to 
be carried forward to fund capacity/ backlog 
issues within the service) 
 

M Strategic priority 
programme – revenue costs 
at Long Leys Road 
cemetery 
(one off) 

(32,000) Year-end under spend on the budget allocated 
to fund the additional grounds maintenance 
costs of the new cemetery, as the site is not 
due to open until after the financial year. 
 

ALL Vacancy Savings over 
achievement 
 

(52,980) Vacancies overachieved against the 1% annual 
target of £130,640. 
 

M Corporate contingency 
budget 
(One off) 

(93,810) Year-end under spend on corporate 
contingency budget, set aside following the 
revision of the budget, during the development 
of the MTFS 14-19.  

 Additional Income    

D Yarborough Leisure Centre  
(addressed in MTFS) 

(28,730) Tripartite agreement with the County Council 
and Lincoln Castle Academy, income budget 
has not been inflated historically.  
 

37



       
Ref  £ Reason for variance 
I Council Tax – court cost 

income 
(56,250) Over achievement of income against the 

budget due to an increase in summons and 
liability orders issued.  

L Capital Provision re-
distribution grant 
(One off) 

(26,410) The Council’s share of Central Government 
grant previously held back but not subsequently 
required that has now been redistributed based 
on the 2013/14 Start-Up Funding Assessment. 
 

I Housing Benefits (125,000) An increase in benefit overpayments.  Benefit 
overpayments are reclaimed through debtors 
and an element of overpayments attract 
subsidy.      The annual debtor impairment 
review, which includes benefit overpayment 
debtors, shows a requirement to increase the 
budgeted contribution into the bad debt 
provision (please refer to the increased 
spending section above). (Net position on 
benefits is an under spend of £10,800) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



Appendix C 

 
CHRISTMAS MARKET SUMMARY – OUTTURN  2013/14 

 
 
 

  

Revised 

Budget 
Actual Variance 

  £ £ £ 
Employees           38,930            23,182          (15,748)  
Premises              7,430              4,679            (2,751)  
Transport                200                 976                 776  
Supplies and Services          168,290            75,560          (92,730)  

Third Party Payments          265,250  
         

385,590  
         

120,340  

Income 
       

(560,730)  
       

(493,783)            66,947  

Total Inside Cash Limit 

Budget         (80,630)            (3,796)            76,834  
        
Employees 0                 269                 269  
Supplies and Services           96,100            86,515            (9,585)  
Support Services                  30                    1                 (29)  

Total Outside Cash Limit 

Budget           96,130            86,785            (9,345)  
        

Total Overall           15,500            82,989            67,489  

 
 

39



Appendix D 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT FUND SUMMARY – OUTTURN 2013/14 
 

HRA OUTTURN - 2013/14 

          

    Revised  Outturn  Variance 

    Budget     

     £’000 £’000  £’000 

          

          

Gross Rental Income A (27,047) (27,137) (90) 

Supporting People Grant B (335) (331) 4  

Charges for Services & Facilities C (584) (548) 36  

Contribs towards Expenditure D (27) (53) (26) 

Repairs & Maintenance E 8,015  8,497  482  

Supervision & Management: F 5,794  6,018  224  

S&M IAS19 Pension Adjustment G 0  (545) (545) 

Rents, Rates and Other Premises H 15  32  17  

Increase in Bad Debt Provisions I 453  265  (188) 

Subsidy Limitation Transfer J 59  274  215  

Depreciation  K 9,634  9,646  12  

Impairments L 0  (2,426) (2,426) 

Debt Management Expenses M 62  60  (2) 

Net Cost of Service N (3,961) (6,248) (2,287) 

Loan Charges Interest O 2,372  2,372  0  

Investment/Mortgage Interest P (65) (65) 0  

Net Operating Inc/Exp Q (1,654) (3,941) (2,287) 

Premiums & Discounts R 11  10  (1) 

Capital Accounting Adjustments S 2  2,420  2,418  

Major Repairs Reserve Adjustment T 2,003  2,003  0  

CMS Repatriation U       

- Trading surplus V 0  (240) (240) 

- IAS19 only W 0  182  182  

Pension Reserve X 0  95  95  

Transfers to/from reserves Y 13  (460) (473) 

(Surplus)/Deficit in Year Z 375  69  (306) 

         

Balances  b/f @ 1st April  (1,379) (1,379) 0  

(Increase)/Decrease in Balances  375  69  (306) 

Balances c/f @ 31st March  (1,004) (1,310) (306) 

 
 

40



  APPENDIX E     

Housing Revenue Account Variances  - Outturn 2013/14 

 
The variances analysed in the table below exclude any technical adjustments and only 
cover the true under or over spends. Figures in brackets indicate an under spend of 
expenditure or additional income. 
 
 
Ref  £ Reason for variance 

    

 Increased Income   

A Rents (90,269) • Dwelling Rents were up by £62k on 
budget (0.2%) including a marginal 
improvement on the allowance for ‘void’ 
rents 

• Other rents, in respect of Garages, Shops 
and Land were up by £28k on budget 
(5.5%) 

    

 Reduced Spending   

F Supervision & Mngmnt (77,110) Within S&M was a ‘contingency’ savings target  
in respect of Vacancies, and TOFS.  During the 
year there was an overachievement  on 
Vacancies, of £104k, but an underachievement 
on TOFS of £27K. 

I Bad Debt Provision (187,850) Whilst the budget was increased significantly, to 
reflect the anticipated effect on the collection of 
Council Rents following the implementation of 
the Govts Welfare Reform policy, the required 
set aside this year, at £265k, was not as high as 
expected 

V CMS Repatriation (240,379) This is the HRA share of the surplus made within 
the CMS Repairs Service. 

    

 Increased Spending   

J Subsidy Limitation 214,246 We received notification from DCLG, in Feb 
2013, of their ‘Limit Rent’, for Lincoln.  This is the 
level to which Benefit Grant will be reimbursed to 
the Council, with any payments in excess of the 
‘limit’ having to be met by the HRA.  On the basis 
of that notification, a saving on our Subsidy 
Limitation budget was expected, and this was 
duly reported, and actioned within the Q02 
budget monitoring report.   However, it was only 
‘discovered’ after the year end that DCLG had in 
fact issued an amendment to their ‘final’ figures 
shortly after their original notificationKwhich 
unfortunately had not been received.  

 
 

41



Appendix F 

CITY MAINTENANCE SERVICES SUMMARY - OUTTURN 2013/14 
 
 

 

  

Revised 

Budget Actual Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Employees 2,284 2,104 (180) 

Premises 21 24 3 

Transport 445 430 (15) 

Supplies & Services 2,049 3,658 1,609 

Central Support Costs 596 589 (7) 

Capital Charges 2 2 0 

Total Expenditure 5,397 6,807 1,410 

Income (5,397) (7,033) (1,636) 

(Surplus)/Deficit 0 (226) (226) 

 

42



Appendix F 

City Maintenance Services Variances  - Outturn 2013/14 
 
 
The table below provides a summary of the provisional outturn position. 
 
 

£ Reason for Variance 

Increased Income 
Recharges  (1,635,780) High usage of Sub Contractors on Voids and Capital 

works in particular. This in turn has led to Client 
recharges going up. This includes additional income 
of £497,650 related to the profit element on 
recharging of voids subcontracting costs.  
 

  

Increased Spending  

Sub Contractors  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Direct Materials 

1,527,920 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29,580 

Coupled with the number of vacancies in the service, 
and the rise in cost of Void repairs compared to last 
year, there has been an increased reliance on Sub 
Contractors this financial year. With an increase in 
Void repairs, this in turn has led to a rise in 
Capitalised works. These are recharged to the HRA 
repairs account before being capitalised on a monthly 
basis and ultimately transferred to the HIP.  
 
The City Maintenance team undertook in excess of 
28,000 jobs in the last financial year, around 1,000 
more than the previous year. This, plus an increase in 
the average cost of a void repair has led to an 
overspend on material usage 
 

  

Reduced Spending  

Employees  (179,510) There have been a number of vacancies throughout 
the year, it is anticipated the majority of these will be 
appointed to during the new financial year. In 
addition, overtime has also under spent against the 
budget. 
 

Transport (14,390) fddfgUnder spends on fuel and repairs 

 

43



Appendix G 

 

EARMARKED RESERVES – OUTTURN 2013/14 
 

 Opening 

Balance 

Increase  Decrease Closing 

Balance  
 01/04/2013   31/03/2014 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

General Fund     
Yarborough Leisure Centre 20  0  (20) 0  
Budget Carry Forwards  89  0  (17) 72  
Unused DRF 94  36  (86) 44  
IT Reserve 407  107  (203) 311  
Invest to Save (GF) 1,620  140  (822) 938  
Mayoral car 32  8  0  40  
Member training 6  0  (3) 3  
Managed Workspace 70  0  (35) 35  
Car Parking Strategy 25  0  (25) 0  
Planning Delivery Grant (rev) 52  0  0  52  
Private Sector Stock Condition 
Survey 

52  0  (3) 49  

Uphill/ Dowhill Bus 93  0  0  93  
Mercury Abatement 269  80  (67) 282  
Boston Audit Contract 13  4  0  17  
Commons Parking 9  0  0  9  
Backdated pay claim 141  0  (141) 0  
Loss of income on asset Sales 141  0  (141) 0  
Grants & Contributions 527  111  (198) 440  
Community Right to bid/ 
challenge 

13  16  0  29  

Equality & Diversity 2  0  (1) 1  
Revenues & Benefits shared 
service 

46  127  (127) 46  

Tree Risk Assessment 117  20  (14) 123  
Olympic Event  (Infrastructure) 32  0  (32) 0  
Backdated rent review 100  40  0  140  
Funding for Strategic Priorities 39  0  (3) 36  
County Wide Broadband 
Initiative 

34  0  0  34  

MA Reserve 19  7  0  26  
LAMS Interest 33  42  0  75  
Business Rates Volatility 0  1,101  0  1,101  
Section 106 interest 19  7  (19) 7 
Benefits - subsidy adjustment 100  0  0  100  
Car Parks loss of income 175  0  (175) 0  
Electric Van replacement 0  4  0  4  
Western Growth Corridor 0  274  0  274  
Asset Improvement 0  329  0  329  
NNDR Backdated Appeals 0  556  0  556  

 4,389  3,009 (2,132) 5,266 

HRA     
Western Growth Corridor 
(HRA) 

0  467  0  467  

HRA Invest to Save 473  0  (309) 164  
HRA Repairs Account 1,000  7,772  (8,497) 275  
HRA Survey Works 130  3  0  133  

44



      Appendix G 

 Opening 

Balance 

Increase  Decrease Closing 

Balance  
 01/04/2013   31/03/2014 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Stock Retention 22  0  0  22  

 1,625  8,242  (8,806) 1,061  

     

Total Earmarked 

Reserves 

6,014  11,251  (10,938) 6,327  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



Appendix H 

 

 

CAPITAL RESOURCES – OUTTURN 2013/14 
 

 Opening 

Balance 

Contributions  Used in 

Financing 

Forecast 

Balance  
 01/04/2013   31/03/2014 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Capital Grants 246 567 (547) 266 
Capital Receipts 2,118 29 (1,799) 348 
Capital Receipts (HRA) 2,189 517 0 2,706 
Capital Receipts (HRA 1-4-1 
receipts) 

 
162 

 
320 

 
0 

 
482 

Major Repairs Reserve 6,680 11,644 (9,812) 8,512 
Section 106  855 429 (139) 1,145 

Total Capital Resources 12,250 13,506 (12,297) 13,459 

 
 
 
 

46



Appendix I 
GENERAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2013/14 to 2018/19 - CHANGES FOR APPROVAL AND 

NOTING    

        

GIP Summary 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Comments 

 £ £ £ £ £ £  

        

Budget Approved as part of MTFS 2014/19 3,433,685  3,883,671  900,000  900,000  900,000  900,000   

Revised Budget as at Quarter 4 3,234,323  4,403,248  1,100,000  900,000  900,000  900,000   

 199,362  (519,577) (200,000) 0  0  0   
        
        

Approved under DOR delegated authority:        

Newport Arch Restoration Project (9,708) 9,708          

Full or part of 2013/14 budget reprofiled  
to/(from) 2014/15 to reflect more 
realistic  
delivery timescales. 

Northgate  (4,468) 4,468         

Payroll system (1,027) 1,027         

Network upgrade (6,200) 6,200         

Revs & Bens system (10,498) 10,498         

FM Works Asbestos removal (31,646) 31,646         

DDA legislation compliance (15,700) 15,700         

English Heritage (10,118) 10,118         

Flood alleviation (10,271) 10,271         

Burial space land (16,861) 16,861         

The Terrace (1,500) 1,500         

Capital Contingencies (159,459) 159,459         

Disabled Facilities Grants 3,596  (3,596)        

Thornbridge Car Park 95,203  (95,203)        

White Bridge 950  (950)        

Cemetery drainage works 703  (703)        

Crematorium canopy works 3,075  (3,075)        

Skate Park 748  (748)         

              

Various overspends on Planned 
Capitalised Works schemes funded 
from the GIP Contingency 

White Bridge 55,002          

Lucy Tower Street Car Park 2,464          

Thornbridge Car Park 3,075          

GIP Contingency (60,541)         

              

            
Contribution from Invest to Save Fund 
towards LED lighting at the car park. Lucy Tower Street Car Park 35,000          

            

47



Appendix I 
 
 
GENERAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2013/14 to 2018/19 - CHANGES FOR APPROVAL AND 

NOTING    

        

GIP Summary 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Comments 

 £ £ £ £ £ £  

        

Budget Approved as part of MTFS 2014/19 3,433,685  3,883,671  900,000  900,000  900,000  900,000   

Revised Budget as at Quarter 4 3,234,323  4,403,248  1,100,000  900,000  900,000  900,000   

 199,362  (519,577) (200,000) 0  0  0   
        
        

Approved under DOR delegated authority:        

              

Schemes completed with underspends. 
Electric Vehicle (194)         

Contaminated Land Roman Wharf (1,952)         

              

              Underspend projected on Mercury 
Abatement scheme.  £1,000 required for 
2014/15 and £7,004 required for Newport 
Arch Restoration Project 

Mercury Abatement (27,967) 1,000         

Newport Arch Restoration Project   7,004         

              

            
Scheme completed with a small overspend 
funded from s106 interest. King George V Pavilion Works 193          

            

              New funding identified through funding 
switches during final account process and 
additional "capital receipts" in 2013/14. 

GIP Contingency   47,199         

              

              
Projected underspend on scheme released 
back to the IT Reserve. Network Upgrade (7,767)         

              

         

Approvals required from Executive:         

              
Ringfenced funding from Sale of Former 
Boultham Park Depot. Boultham Park Masterplan    200,000       

              

            Increase in scheme funding of £72,600 
(from Section 106 funding) towards the 
delivery of Allotment Improvement Works 

Allotment Improvement Works   72,600         

            

48



Appendix I 
 
 
GENERAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2013/14 to 2018/19 - CHANGES FOR APPROVAL AND NOTING    

        

GIP Summary 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Comments 

 £ £ £ £ £ £  

        

Budget Approved as part of MTFS 2014/19 3,433,685  3,883,671  900,000  900,000  900,000  900,000   

Revised Budget as at Quarter 4 3,234,323  4,403,248  1,100,000  900,000  900,000  900,000   

 199,362  (519,577) (200,000) 0  0  0   
        
         

Approvals required from Executive:         

              New budget required for purchase of 
vehicle at the end of March 2014.  Vehicle 
will be leased out in 2014/15. 

New Vehicle - John Deere Pro Gator 24,020          

              

            
Additional funding of £171,079 from DCLG.  
This has facilitated the release of £70,000 
internal funding towards the GIP 
Contingency. 

Disabled Facilities Grants   171,079         

Disabled Facilities Grants   (70,000)        

GIP Contingency   70,000         

            

              Release of resources to Contingency 
following an underspend on the Non 
Disabled Facilities Grants scheme in 
2013/14 

Non Disabled Facilities Grants (47,514)         

GIP Contingency   47,514         

              

Total Budget Changes at SPIT for Q4 (199,362) 519,577  200,000  0  0  0   

Movement in Available Resources (245,348)            

49



Appendix J 

HOUSING INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2013/14 - SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL CHANGES

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F) (G) (H) (I)

2013/14 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14

Line 

No

HRA 

SF Ref
HRA SF Project Name

Approved 

MTFS 14-19
Outturn

(Under)/   

Overspend

Additional 

Resources

Movements 

Within 

Financial 

Year

Reprofile 

(to)/from 

2014/15

£ £ £ £ £ £

1 DH Bathrooms & WC's 523,985 525,587 1,602 0 0 1,602

2 DH DH Central Heating Upgrades 982,035 1,006,109 24,074 0 24,074 0

3 DH
Responsive Capitalised Heating 

Replacements
255,000 209,258 (45,742) 0 (45,742) 0

4 DH
Shuttleworth House Energy Efficiency Works

138,272 44,870 (93,402) 0 0 (93,402)

5 DH Thermal Comfort Works 41,490 35,392 (6,098) 0 (6,098) 0

6 DH Kitchen Improvements 793,950 758,242 (35,708) 0 (35,708) 0

7 DH Decent Homes Modernisations 112,800 54,266 (58,534) 0 (58,534) 0

8 DH Rewiring 506,454 413,601 (92,853) 0 (92,853) 0

9 DH Re-roofing 1,435,689 2,753,306 1,317,617 0 203,901 1,113,716

10 DH Lincoln Standard Windows Replacement 50,000 2,003 (47,997) 0 (47,997) 0

11 DH Structural Defects 272,215 81,173 (191,042) 0 (191,042) 0

12 DH Wall Structure Repairs 220,074 43,104 (176,970) 0 0 (176,970)

13 DH Door Replacement 423,597 271,679 (151,918) 0 (151,918) 0

14 DH Decent Homes Decoration Allowance 14,000 12,276 (1,724) 0 0 (1,724)

15 DH Landscaping and Boundaries 1,337,184 2,595,415 1,258,231 0 564,224 694,007

16 DH Decent Homes Prelim/Exceptionals Kier 0 76,560 76,560 0 76,560 0

17 Decent Homes Sub Total 7,106,745 8,882,841 1,776,096 0 238,867 1,537,229

18 HS Asbestos Removal 404,384 326,207 (78,177) 0 (78,177) 0

19 HS Replacement Door Entry Systems 125,672 26,146 (99,526) 0 0 (99,526)

20 HS Renew Stair Structure 170,720 128,293 (42,427) 0 0 (42,427)

21 HS Plastering (HHSRS) 180,000 226,017 46,017 0 46,017 0

22 Health and Safety Sub Total 880,776 706,663 (174,113) 0 (32,160) (141,953)

23 OT Communal TV Aerials 2,100 0 (2,100) 0 (2,100) 0

24 OT Garage Maintenance 71,771 71,065 (706) 0 (706) 0

25 OT Stapleford Avenue New Build Programme 605,000 390,292 (214,708) 0 0 (214,708)

26 OT Environmental new works 175,000 0 (175,000) 0 0 (175,000)

27 OT 9 Gregg Hall Crescent 25,000 0 (25,000) 0 0 (25,000)

28 OT Alterations to De Wint Court 4,000 507 (3,493) 0 0 (3,493)

29 OT Alterations to St Botolphs Court 12,375 24,150 11,775 0 0 11,775

30 OT Windsor House Security Improvement 11,517 13,507 1,990 0 1,990 0

31 OT Tom Ward Court Mobility Scooter Storage 11,517 3,031 (8,486) 0 0 (8,486)

32 Other Schemes Sub Total 918,280 502,552 (415,728) 0 (816) (414,912)

33 CS Contingency Reserve 218,181 0 (218,181) 0 (218,181) 0

34 Contingency Schemes 218,181 0 (218,181) 0 (218,181) 0

35 OS Housing Support Services Computer Fund 134,286 13,219 (121,067) 0 0 (121,067)

36 OS Servitor (Depotmaster Replacement) 139,476 59,642 (79,834) 0 0 (79,834)

37 OS Hamilton House Extension 79,000 102,683 23,683 23,683 0 0

38 OS Fire Alarm System - St Botolphs Court/De Wint 17,850 30,140 12,290 0 12,290 0

Other Schemes 370,612 205,685 (164,927) 23,683 12,290 (200,901)

39 Movement to Available Resources 0 0 0 0 0 0

40 TOTAL 9,494,594 10,297,741 803,147 23,683 0 779,463

Key: Changes to be approved - Increase or (reductions) in 2013/14 budget  
  

50



1 

EXECUTIVE   16 JUNE 2014 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
Q4 2013-2014 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

REPORT BY: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

PAT JUKES, SENIOR POLICY OFFICER 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To present to the Executive a summary of the operational performance position 

for quarter 4 of the financial year 2013/14 (from January to March 2014). Where 
figures are cumulative, this will be the full year outturn. 

 

1.2 Regular monitoring of the Council’s operational performance is a key component 
of the Council’s local performance management framework. This report covers 
performance of day to day service delivery. A separate reporting framework has 
been developed to monitor service projects in the Strategic Plan delivery plan.    
 

1.3 This report gives an integrated look at value for money at service level - 
incorporating the dynamics of cost, performance and satisfaction. However, it 
should be read alongside the Finance report for additional financial information.  
 
The combination of financial/budget information and performance progress will 
enable senior managers and Members to identify the cost of delivering services 
and to highlight the impact on performance in strategic areas.  It will also be of 
use to External Audit when determining their Value for Money conclusion for the 
authority, as part of their audit programme. 
 

1.4 The report is in the following format: 

• Executive Summary – highlighting key points of note 

• Background – explanation of this transitional period  

• Operational performance overview  

• Value for Money review of defined services with detailed data at individual 
measure level (APPENDIX A) 

 
2. Executive Summary 

 
2.1 The report includes four corporate measures – sickness; Towards Financial 

Sustainability income and savings; corporate complaints and  employee FTE 
headcount, vacancies & turnover. 
 

2.2 Key headlines from the corporate measures include: 
 

• The total amount secured through the Towards Financial Sustainability 
savings and income programme reached £1,046,930 at the end of Q4, an 
overachievement against the £1m 2013/14 target. Focus has now moved 
towards the 2014/15 target of £2m  

 

• In Q4 the average time across all directorates to respond to formal 

Item No. 6

51



2 

complaints was 6.9 days, leading to a cumulative year to date average of 
7.1 days. There were 4 LGO complaints received in DHCS in Q4; these 
were responded to in an average of 9.2 days. 

 

• The number of FTE employees has dropped at the end of quarter 4 to 
625.86 FTE employees, which is a reduction of 8.62 FTE’s compared to 
the last quarter, and 9.93 FTE’s compared to the same period last year. 
(this is people in posts i.e. excludes vacancies) 

 

• The cumulative average number of sick days taken across all staff by the 
end of Q4 was 10.78 days per FTE, which is 1.08 days higher than at the 
same time last year, largely due to an increase in long term sickness in 
DHCS and DDES 

 
2.3 There have been some very positive results this quarter such as : 

 
� Customer services – the number of existing and new users logged into 
MyInfo has continued to rise with 3620 logging in during Q4 

� Housing Benefits Administration – the average days to process housing 
benefit changes in circumstance has seen an encouraging reduction in the 
last quarter to just 6.97 days 

� Housing voids – the average re-let time has continued to drop across the 
year to 32.8 days, moving closer to the 28 day target  

� Recreation and Leisure services – long term growth in the use of our leisure 
facilities of around 10% per annum over the last 4 years 

� Revenues – both the council tax and business tax collection outturn have 
exceeded 2012/13 outturn – Council Tax up by 0.24% (£67k), and Business 
tax up by 0.23% (£83k) 

  
2.4 Strategic Context 

 
 Whilst there are some signs of growth in many areas, and central government 

communications continue to indicate that the economy is improving steadily, the 
lasting effect of the economic decline from 2008 can still be seen in some of our 
key welfare services. 
 
We are still facing increasing level of homelessness - applications have risen 
steadily from a ‘low’ of 97 in 2010/11 to the current level of 248 taken during 
2013/14. This means that we are still using some Bed & Breakfast 
accommodation where all other solutions fail, an expensive, but necessary cost. 
 
In addition our Housing Benefits and Council Tax support teams are facing an 
increasing level of people awaiting assessment due to demands on the service. At 
2396 – this is some 392 up compared to the same period last year, but this is 
being tackled and is reducing in the early part of 2014/15. 
 
Housing rent arrears at the year end stood at 3.36%, which translates financially 
into arrears of £925,453.46. This continues the general rise in arrears that we have 
been witnessing for over a year. Week 52 last year saw end-of-year arrears at 
3.1% or £835,394.58. Therefore, over the past year arrears have risen by 8.39% or 
£90,058.88, a large proportion of which is believed to be as a result of under-
occupation charges. 

52



3 

 
Builders are also still feeling the effects of the recession and as a result the 
situation with affordable housing continues to be bleak. None of the 49 
completions in Q4 were considered to be affordable housing, and of the 225 
homes built this year - just 9 were affordable housing – that’s a rate of 4%. 
 

2.5 In response to forecasted financial outturns CMT is monitoring mitigation action 
plans for Homelessness B&B and Car Parking income on a monthly basis. 

3. Background 
 

3.1 
 

The 2010/11 year end report to Executive marked the end of reporting 
performance against a set of indicators prescribed by national government. From 
that point the onus was placed on local authorities to select appropriate sets of 
performance indicators to report locally. 
 
The requirement to be externally audited each year remains in place and re-
affirms the necessity to have a performance framework covering all service areas 
to meet the ‘Transparency Agenda’ and also to demonstrate value for money. 
 

4. Operational performance overview  
 

4.1 ACHIEVEMENTS DURING Q4 
 

• British Parking Awards 2014 - On Friday 7th March 2014, Parking Team 
representatives attended the British Parking Awards 2014 in London, and 
were commended as joint second in the team of the year, with their entry 
being recognised as the most enterprising. British Parking Awards entry. 
Presented in the form of a diary, it set out what had happened in the historic 
city month-by-month. The layout guaranteed the judges had to read the 
whole document to see what happened. Together with this achievement, 
Rod Williamson was personally commended equal second with 3 others for 
Parking Person of the year.  

 

• Lincoln Poverty Conference - more than 100 people representing 
charities, voluntary organisations, schools and councils attended the first 
Lincoln Poverty Conference. The event looked at the issue of poverty and 
its significant effects on the lives of people in the city, after it was found that 
one in four children live in poverty and one in five households are estimated 
to be in fuel poverty. The aim of the event (on Wednesday, February 26) 
was to focus on how the council and partners can approach the issue of 
poverty in a fresh way. The conference was the culmination of nine months 
work by the Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee, examining all 
aspects of poverty as it impacts people in the city. The conference proved to 
be so successful that delegates voted unanimously for an annual event 

 
In addition, the Anti-Poverty team has been short-listed for three categories 
awards by the Centre for Public Scrutiny: 

• Influence beyond boundaries 

• Economic resilience 

• Overall winner from all categories 
           The award ceremony will be held at the annual conference dinner on  

53



4 

           10th June 2014 
 

• Customer Services Excellence standard – the Housing Services Team 
were awarded the Customer Service Excellence Award, which is the 
standard given to organisations which demonstrate high quality 
performance in a number of areas, including customer insight, culture, 
access to information, service delivery and timeliness. In achieving the 
award the team had to demonstrate compliance to an independent 
certification body against five criterion and 57 elements set out in the 
Customer Services Excellence Standard - with just four of the elements 
identified as needing further work. The award recognises our commitment to 
ensuring we deliver the highest standards to our customers. 

 
4.2 Key positive points to note this quarter include: 

 
4.3 Customer Services 

 
The number of face to face enquiries during the final quarter of 2013/14 was 
10,522. Although this is an increase of 1,414 on quarter 3, this is still much lower 
than the same period last year, which includes high demand for travel 
concessions; however this is in line with the average of previous quarters. 
 
Whilst face to face enquiries have slightly increased, it is encouraging to see the 
number of users logged into the self service system MyInfo has continued to rise, 
with 3,620 users logging in during quarter 4. This is a significant increase on the 
previous quarter of 1,013 and also a rise of 934 when compared to the same 
quarter last year.  
 
It is also encouraging to see that the number of new users of this system also 
continues to rise. During quarter 4, there were 1,622 new users of MyInfo, which is 
a rise from 1,218 in the previous quarter. When compared to the same quarter in 
2012/13, this is an increase of 221. 
 
The average time to answer a call to customer services has continued to drop 
across the year, with the quarter 4 outturn standing at just 58 seconds. When 
compared to the same quarter in 2012/13, where the average time was 163 
seconds, this is a significant drop of over 100 seconds. This is in part due to the 
new phone system, which enables customer service assistants to be aware of 
demand in real time. 
 

4.4 Housing Benefits Administration 
 
The average (YTD) days to process housing benefit claim changes of 
circumstances from date received, has significantly dropped in the final quarter of 
2013/14 when compared to the previous quarter. The quarter 4 outturn of 6.97 
days is 12.16 days lower than the quarter 3 outturn, as well as being 1.13 days 
lower than the year end outturn in 2012/13. This drop in the final quarter is partly 
due to annual rent and income increases, which when completed in advance and 
counted as 1 day changes. Performance has also improved due to more changes 
being reported and processed from customer telephone calls. 
 
 

54



5 

4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 

Housing Voids 
 
After a disappointing start to the year, when the average relet time stood at 41.99 
days at the end of the first quarter, the relet time has continuously dropped through 
the rest of 2013/14. It is encouraging to see that processes put in place at the 
beginning of the year have continued to reduce the re-let time.  
 
At the end of the final quarter, the average relet time had dropped to 32.84 days, 
which is similar to the relet time for the same quarter in 2012/13. Although this is a 
good improvement to date, it must be remembered that the re-let target is still 28 
days, and the team will continue to push towards this goal. 
 
Recreation and Leisure Services 
 
The national target for growth in participation in sport is 1% per annum. In context 
most Districts have failed to grow their participation year on year by this level. The 
Yarborough and Birchwood Leisure centres have experienced a growth at an 
average of close to 10% per annum in the last 4 years. During quarter 4, 166,259 
visits were made to Yarborough Leisure Centre, with 25,447 visits being made to 
Birchwood Leisure Centre. In comparison to the same quarter last year, both of 
these figures are substantially greater at the end of the financial year. 
This growth has also been evident on our recreation pitches and play areas, but 
has been more difficult to evidence. 
 

4.7 Revenues Administration 
 
At the end of quarter 3 this year, the council tax collection rate was 0.48% below 
the same position in 2012/13; it is encouraging to see the figure at the end of 
quarter 4 has risen to 96.56%, which in comparison to the same position in the 
previous year is actually 0.24% (£67k) higher. In addition the in-year collection rate 
for business tax has also ended the year on a positive note achieving 99.31%, 
which is 0.23% (£83k) higher than the outturn at the end of the final quarter in 
2012/13.  
 
The revenues team has also reduced the level of outstanding customer changes 
from the end of quarter 3 (761), with 683 changes outstanding at the end of Q4. 
This figure is particularly encouraging as the final quarter outturn is always affected 
by the additional work generated by annual billing.  

  
 Areas of concern this quarter include: 
  

4.8 Affordable Housing 

At the end of the final quarter of 2013/14, the total number of affordable homes 
delivered over the year stood at just 9 homes. Of these 2 were delivered in the first 
quarter, with the remaining 7 being delivered in quarter 3. The 7 delivered in the 
third quarter, were all housing association properties which were built on Manby 
Street.  

Last year 43 affordable homes were delivered - the drop to just 9 is due to a 
number of factors including a decrease in the number of sites which hit the 
threshold for affordable housing contributions and the various changes in funding 
mechanisms, particularly those administered by the Homes and Communities 

55



6 

Agency.  

 

4.9 Housing Benefit Administration 
 
The number of Housing Benefits and Council Tax support customers awaiting 
assessment has increased by 392 customers at the end of the final quarter, when 
compared to the same position in 2012/13. This takes the number of customers 
awaiting assessment to 2,396. This rise is as a result of increased work demands 
at the financial year end. However, the outstanding work is being managed, with 
the number of outstanding customers reducing post March 2014. 
 
The percentage of risk-based quality checks made where Benefit entitlement is 
correct has remained steady at 77% into the final quarter of 2013/14. Although this 
figure has improved by over 4% across the past year, this is still not at the desired 
level. A specific project around subsidy and quality control checking has 
commenced from January 2014, to try and improve this percentage further. 
 

4.10 Housing Solutions 

The number of homelessness applications accepted within the housing team at the 
end of the financial year reached 248. This is an increase of 30 applications when 
compared to the same position in 2012/13. Of these applications, 81 were received 
in the final quarter, which is nearly double the number received in the same period 
in 2012/13.  

The homelessness prevention team have also given advice to a further 734 cases 
where they successfully helped avoid a homeless situation, a huge 58% increase 
on the previous year. 

Inevitably this has led to increased financial costs for managing the situation, and 
whilst some of this has been offset through the benefits system, there is a £32k 
overspend on the ‘breakfast’ element of B&B costs. 

 
4.11 
 
 

 
Rent arrears 
 
Rent arrears in week 53 were 3.36% compared to 3.34% in week 48 and 3.84% 
when the present structure and housing officer management patches came into 
being. The 3.36% translates into £925,453.46. This continues the general rise in 
arrears that we have been witnessing for over a year. Week 52 last year saw end-
of-year arrears at 3.1% or £835,394.58. Therefore, over the past year arrears have 
risen by 8.39% or £90,058.88. 
 
The fact that under occupation arrears at week 1 started out at £84,834 and ended 
up at the end of year at £150,346, an increase of £65,512 one could deduce from 
that that there has only been an increase in ‘normal’ arrears of just over £24,500 
over the course of the year. (That is the £90,058 - £65,512 estimated under 
occupancy arrears).This is a tenuous correlation but an indicative one nonetheless. 
 
The cumulative rent collection rate ended the year at 101.31%, which is over four 
percentage points above target. This equates to our having collected £360,964 
more than was due. This is because credits on tenants’ rent accounts have risen 

56



7 

by £101,445 over the year and, secondly, although the data used to calculate rent 
due does not include garage rents (these are included in the dwelling rent account) 
the amount received does. These cannot be separated at the moment, although a 
project to separate this and other extraneous elements from the main dwelling rent 
account will begin in May 2014. 

  
4.12 Corporate Measures - Sickness Indicators – cumulative to Q4 

 

 
 The total sickness for the year 2013/14 at the end of Q4 stands at 10.78 days per 

FTE, which is 1.08 days greater than at the same position last year. 
As can be seen in the charts above, long term sickness (i.e. sickness over 14 
days) was 1.28 days per FTE lower in 2012/13 at this point.  
 
Between the 1st April 2013 and the 31st March 2014 the total sickness per FTE 
was 10.78.  
 
During this time 105 employees have left the Council and they contributed 1015 
days absence to the above figures. Ten of these employees contributed 560 days 
to these absence figures distributed as follows: 
DDES – 267 days 
DOR –  56 days                            
DHCS –  131 days 
CX –  106 days 
 

In relation to long term sickness (more than 15 days) the main reason causing long 
term sickness is ‘Muscular Skeletal’ as 1201 days were lost due to this reason. 
 
In relation to short term sickness (less than 15 days) the main reasons causing 
short term sickness is Infections (643 days lost) and Stomach, Liver, kidney and 

57



8 

Digestion (580 days lost).  
 
Human Resources are currently consulting on a revised Sickness Absence Policy 
with detailed guidance to support both managers and employees who experience 
periods of absence 
 

4.13 Corporate Measures – Towards Financial Sustainability 
        

 
 
As part of the Towards Financial Sustainability programme, the cumulative 
savings and additional income figure at the end of Q4 has secured £1,046,930 
towards the £1m target for 2013/14, and contributed significantly towards the 
savings for 2014/15. 
 
The focus has now moved towards achieving the 2014/15 target of £2m. Further 
business cases are now being prepared to cover the gap to the £2m target. 
 

4.14 Corporate Measures – Employees (FTE, vacancies and turnover) 
 

58



9 

 
 
The total number of FTE employees has dropped at the end of quarter 4 to 625.86 
FTE employees, which is a reduction of 8.32 FTE’s compared to the last quarter, 
and 9.93 compared to Q4 last year. 
 
The number of vacancies at the end of the third quarter was 72.50 FTE 
employees. There is no back data for this new measure – it will be built up over 
time.  
 
The percentage of employee turnover at the end of quarter 4 was 3.68%. In 
comparison to the previous two quarters, this has risen from 3.43% in quarter 2 
but dropped from 4.51% in quarter 3.  
 
Nb – note that CX FTE includes the apprentices FTE for all the council, and so will 
fluctuate as they come and go. 
 
Within the period 01/04/2013 - 31/03/14 105 employees left the council; the main 
reason provided for leaving was resignation which represents 48% all the leavers. 
Quarter 4 alone saw 19 leavers; the main reasons were due to resignations (with 
13 employees). There is no particular trend linked to service area or Directorate.  
 

4.15 Corporate Complaints – cumulative to Q4 
 
In total there were 126 formal complaints received in Q4 and the average time 
across all directorates to respond to them was 6.9 days. Year to date complaints 
are being responded to in an average of 7.1 days 
 
There were 4 ombudsman complaints received in DHCS in quarter 4, with an 

59



10 

average of 9.2 days to respond to these complaints.  
 

 
 

4.16 APPENDIX A  
 
Contains the value for money details for each service that has been highlighted 
with a concern. That is the cost, performance and satisfaction measures that 
together make up the overall performance level. This is shown in a chart showing 
detailed information at individual measure level. 
 

5. Organisational Impacts 
 

5.1 Finance (including whole life costs where applicable) 
These are covered in the report and in more depth in the financial report 
 

5.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules  -  
None 
 

5.3 Equality, Diversity & Human Rights –  
Not applicable 
 

6. 
 
6.1 
 

Risk Implications –  
 
Not applicable 
 

7. Recommendation  
 

7.1 
 

Executive is recommended to: 
 
a) Note and comment on the achievements and outcomes at Quarter 4 2012/2013 
 
b) Ensure there is a local focus placed on highlighted areas showing deteriorating 

60



11 

performance. This may mean taking appropriate action such as: 
o Referring to the appropriate Portfolio Holder for action 
o Referring back to the Director for action 
o Referring to PSC with a request for more investigation 
 

  
Key Decision 
 

No 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply? 
 

No 
 

Call in and Urgency: Is 
the decision one to which 
Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

No 

How many appendices 
does the report contain? 
 

 
One 

List of Background 
Papers: 
 

None. 

Lead Officer: Pat Jukes Telephone 873657 
 

61



12 

APPENDIX A - contains the value for money summary and details for each service. That is the cost, performance 
and satisfaction measures that together make up the overall performance level indicated in the Strategic Priority 
summary, with detailed data following 
 

Key: GREEN – indicates improving performance; TURQUOISE - indicates performance within normal boundaries; 
RED – indicates deteriorating performance 
 

 

 
 
Affordable Housing 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62



13 

Housing Benefit Administration 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 

63



14 

Housing Solutions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

64



15 

Rent Collection 
 

 

65



66

This page is intentionally blank.



EXECUTIVE  
 

16 JUNE 2014 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER  -  QUARTERLY REVIEW 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

LEAD 
OFFICER:  

JACLYN GIBSON, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT & FINANCE 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide Members with a status report of the Strategic Risk Register as at the end 

of the financial year 2013/14.  
 

2. Executive Summary 
 

2.1 An update of the Strategic Risk Register, developed under a new risk management 
approach of ‘risk appetite’, was last presented to the Performance Scrutiny 
Committee and the Executive in February 2014 and contained five strategic risks. 
 

2.2 Since reporting in February 2014, the Strategic Risk Register has been reviewed and 
updated by the relevant Assistant Directors and considered by the Corporate 
Management Team. This review has identified that there have been some positive 
movement in the status of the Risk Register. 
 

2.3 The updated Register is attached at Appendix A. 
 

3. Movement in the Strategic Risk Register 
 

3.1 A number of further control actions have now been progressed or completed and the 
key movements are outlined as follows: 
 

• Risk No. 1) To deliver progress against the Council’s 3 re-focused 
priorities. The theme groups for Growth and Anti Poverty have now 
developed their strategies with the Affordable Housing Group also making 
progress. Service plans, reflecting these strategies and priority activity, across 
the organisation are now being finalised. The revised delivery plan for the 
remaining period of the Strategic Plan is to be published in June 2014 
following approval by Executive and Full Council. This risk has improved this 
quarter and has reached its target risk score. 

 
• Risk No. 2) To deliver a sustainable Medium Term Financial Strategy 

(MTFS).  The latest MTFS, 2014-19, was approved by Full Council in March 
2014, this included the savings targets remaining as previous and with reserve 
balances set to remain above prudent levels. Subsequent to this a revised 
Asset Review Programme has been agreed, taking into consideration capital 
receipts target and outstanding repairs liabilities, this will now move to the 
delivery stage.  Further work is continuing in respect of the Housing 
Investment Programme requirements, full stock condition surveys are to be 
undertaken to fully inform this work.  Further work is also still required in 
respect of the monitoring and forecasting arrangements for localised business 

Item No. 7

67



rates. The level of control assurance for this risk has now been assessed as 
substantial.  

 
3.2 The above movement in control actions has resulted in a change to the assessed 

levels of likelihood and impact of risk No. 1, reducing it’s overall rating from amber to 
green, as shown below; 
 
 Risk Rating Likelihood Impact 

As previously reported Medium/Amber Low Critical 
As per Q4 review Low/Green Very Low Critical 
 
The remaining strategic risks have remained static at this quarter however control 
actions continue to be implemented and the risks managed accordingly. 
 

3.3 An updated Strategic Risk Register is attached at Appendix A, all amendments since 
the third quarter are coloured in italics for ease of reference. 
 

3.4 A revised Strategic Risk Register for 2014/15 is currently being developed and will be 
presented to Members as part of quarter one performance monitoring. 
 

4. Strategic Priorities  
 

4.1 Sound risk management is one way in which the Council ensures that it discharges 
its functions in accordance with its expressed priorities, as set out in the Strategic 
Plan, and that it does so in accordance with statutory requirements. 
 

5. Organisational Impacts  
 

5.1 Finance – There are no direct financial implications arising as a result of this report.  
The Council’s Strategic Risk Register contains two specific risks in relation to the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and the Towards Financial Sustainability 
Programme. 
 

5.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules – The Council is required under the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 to have a sound system of Internal Control 
which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk.  The maintenance of a Strategic Risk 
Register and the control actions which the Council undertakes are part of the way in 
which the Council fulfils this duty. 
 

6. Risk Implications 
 

6.1 The Strategic Risk Register contains the key strategic risks to the delivery of the 
Council’s medium and longer term priorities.  A failure to monitor the action that is 
being taken to manage these risks would undermine the Council’s governance 
arrangements. 
 

7. Recommendations 
 

7.1 Members are asked to note the Strategic Risk Register as at the end of the financial 
year 2013/14. 
 

68



 
 
Key Decision 
 

No 
 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply? 
 

No 
 

Call in and Urgency: Is 
the decision one to 
which Rule 15 of the 
Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules apply? 
 

No 

How many appendices 
does the report contain? 
 
 

 
Strategic Risk Register – Appendix A 

List of Background 
Papers: 
 

N/A 

Lead Officer: Jaclyn Gibson 
Assistant Director – Business Development and Finance 
Telephone 873258 

 

69



70

This page is intentionally blank.



CITY OF LINCOLN COUNCIL               RISK IDENTIFICATION AND ASSESSMENT 

  
 

 L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

A 
Very .High 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  

  
 

 Corporate /Strategic Risk Register – as at April 2014 
 

All the objectives on this Register are linked to the Council’s Strategic Plan.  
Although the Council has five Strategic Priorities, in light of the financial 
pressures it is facing and the requirement to deliver a significant level of 
savings it was recognised that during the early years of the Strategic Plan 
efforts should concentrate on: 
 

• Growing the local economy – to do what the Council can do to bring 
employment to the City and help people, particularly in deprived areas, 
compete successfully in a very competitive labour market and hence 
help lift them out of a cycle of poverty and its associated negative 
impacts on health and well being. 

 

• Protecting the poorest people in Lincoln from the hardship effects 
of the current recession. 

 

• Increasing the supply of affordable housing to meet increasing 
demand. 

 

In formulating this Register consideration is also given to Towards Financial 
Sustainability Programme focussing on  ‘5 Strands’ of work . These 5 strands 
are as follows:- 
 

1. Withdrawal from services 
2. Charging regimes for services 
3. Procurement and commissioning activity 
4. Redesigning and modernising services 
5. Rationalising the City’s land and property portfolio 

 

The risk challenges shown on the Register are identified below 
    

B 
High 

    2.   

C 
Significant 

 
 
 
 
 

   4.  

D 
Low 

 
 
 
 

  5.   

E 
Very  Low 

 
 
 
 
 

 1. 3.   

F 
Almost 

Impossible 

  
 

 

 

     

 IV 

Negligible 

III 

Marginal 

II 

Critical 

I 

Catastrophic 

 

 

 Impact  

 

 

APPENDIX A 

71



 

 

 

Risk Challenge 
 

Risk Appetite  
 

(How much risk are we 
prepared to take and the 
total impact of the risk we 
are prepared to accept) 

Key Controls/Actions 
 

Risk 
Owner 

Current Risk 
Score 

Target Risk 
Score 

Assurance -
Status  

 

(Full, 
Substantial, 
Limited, No) 

Assurance – 
Direction of 

Travel 

(Improving, 
Static, 

Declining) 

No. 1) To deliver progress 
against the Council’s 3 re-
focused priorities; 

 

• Growing the local 
economy 

• Protecting the 
poorest people in 
Lincoln 

• Increasing the supply 
of affordable housing 

 

Hungry  
 

Reputation & Public 
Confidence – 

Comfortable with taking 
decisions that are likely 
to bring scrutiny of the 
Council but where 
potential benefits 
outweigh risks. 

 
Open & Aware 

 
Projects & Major 
Change – support 

innovation and seek out 
opportunities that are 
most likely to result in 

successful delivery while 
also providing a good 

level of reward. 
 
 
 

Controls in place 

• Extensive research/public 
engagement exercise undertaken to 
develop Strategic Plan 

• Revised vision, strategic priorities 
and core values agreed. 

• 5 Year Strategic plan now in place 
with 2012/14 biennial delivery plan to 
implement (which itself has been 
reviewed in late 2012  to reflect the 
re-focussed priorities) , supported by 
MTFS 

• Delivery plan schemes monitored via 
SPIT, DMT’s, TFS and other relevant 
programme boards to track action.  

• Overall decision making structure of 
the authority has been reviewed to 
ensure focussed theme group for 
each strategic priority  and progress 
being made by each group to an 
agreed timetable 

• Overall Project/performance against 
the delivery plan reported to 
Performance Scrutiny twice per year  
(reporting process and template in 
place for reporting- latest was 
January  2014).  

• Delivery of Strategic Priorities 
reported in the autumn 2013 Annual 
Report 

• Timetable for the production of a 
delivery plan beyond 2014 in place 
which commenced in January 2014 

• Limited new revenue resources 
identified in the MTFS 2014-19 along 
with capital resources available for 
re-prioritisation. 

• Theme groups for Growth and Anti 
Poverty have developed their 

Andrew 
Taylor 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

    

    

  X  

    

 Impact 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

    

    

  X  

    

 Impact 

Substantial  
 
 

72



strategies  
Affordable Housing Group also 
making progress.  

• Service plans across the organisation 
being finalised 

 
Further actions required 
 

• Revised delivery plan to be published 
in June 2014 following approval by 
Executive and Full Council. 

• Delivery of Strategic Priorities will be 
reported in the next Annual Report. 

 
No. 2) To deliver a 
sustainable Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

Open & Aware 
 

Finance & Money – No 
surprises – prepared to 
invest for reward and 

minimise the possibility of 
financial loss by well 
measured risk taking – 
allocating resources in 
order to capitalise on 
potential opportunities 

 
  

Controls in place 
 

• 5 Year MTFS in place which includes 
identification of key risks and 
controls/actions in place. 

• Good financial management with 
o Quarterly monitoring and 

reporting to Corporate 
Management Team, Executive 
and Performance Scrutiny 
Committee (including specific 
risks) 

o SPIT monitoring of capital 
programme 

o SFIT monitoring of Housing 
Revenue Account and capital 
programme. 

o Savings targets monitored 
through Towards Financial 
Sustainability (See Risk No 4) 

• Budget flexibility to deal with in year 
changes 

• Spending Round 2013 impacts 
assessed. 

• Revised assumptions used for the 
development of the MTFS 14-19  

• Monitoring arrangements in place 
following introduction of Localised 
Council Tax Support Scheme, 
reported quarterly to Committee 

• Executive approval agreed to enter 
into a business rate pool for 2014/15. 

• Draft MTFS 2014-2019 prepared and 
released for consultation and 
scrutiny, based on provisional 

Angela 
Andrews 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

   X 

    

    

    

    

 Impact 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

  X  

    

    

    

 Impact 

Substantial 

 

 73



Finance Settlement and impacts of 
Autumn Statement 2013. 

• MTFS 2014-19 approved by Full 
Council March 2014.  Savings targets 
remain as previous – reserve 
balances remain above prudent 
levels 

• Impact of Chancellor’s Budget 2014 
assessed.  

• Revised Asset Review Programme 
agreed, taking into consideration 
capital receipts target and 
outstanding repairs liabilities 

 
Further action required 
 

• Monitoring and forecasting 
arrangements to be further 
developed for localised business 
rates (revised guidance issued in 
respective of detailed year end 
procedures). 

• Continued development of HIP 
requirements, full stock condition 
survey to be undertaken. 

 
 

No. 3) To manage any 
significant governance 
issues identified in the 
Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement; 
 

• IT Security 

• Information 
Management 

• Business Continuity 

• Housing Benefit Data 
Quality 

• Health and Safety 

• Partnership 
Monitoring 

 

Hungry 
 

Reputation & public 
confidence - 

Comfortable with taking 
decisions that are likely 
to bring scrutiny of the 
Council but where 
potential benefits 
outweigh risks.  

  
Open & Aware 

 
Regulatory standing & 

legal compliance – 
Even if challenge will be 
problematic – it’s an 

acceptable risk where we 
are likely to win and the 
gain will outweigh the 
adverse consequences 

 

Controls in place 
 

• Annual review of AGS undertaken 
prior to publication 

• Action plan/milestones developed for 
all significant issues,  delivery of 
which is monitored quarterly  through 
the Risk Advisory Group/Safety 
Matters Review Group 

• Separate internal audit reviews 
undertaken as part of annual audit 
plan 

• Reporting to Audit Committee, 
Performance Scrutiny and the 
Executive 

• Annual review undertaken and 
reported to Audit Committee in July 
2013 –issues moving forward are: 

 

• IT Security 

• Information Management 

• Housing Benefit Data Quality 

Angela 
Andrews 
 
John 
Latham 
 
Andrew 
Taylor 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

    

    

  X  

    

 Impact 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

    

    

  X  

    

 Impact 

Full  
 

74



Cautious 
 

Business Continuity – 
all business activities 

should be fully resilient in 
the event of a disaster or 

service disruption. 

• Health and Safety 

• AGS approved by Full Council 
on 24

th
 Sept 2013 

• Further action plan to monitor 
progress of AGS items 
developed and to be reported to 
Audit Committee in April 2014 

• Work on the 2013/14 backward 
AGS report has begun - due to 
be reported into RAG on 28

th
 

April 2014 
 
Further actions required 
 

• All controls in place 
 

No. 4) Deliver the Towards 
Financial Sustainability 
Programme 

Open &  Aware 
 

Projects & Major 
Change –  

support innovation and 
seek out opportunities 
that are most likely to 
result in successful 
delivery while also 

providing a good level of 
reward. 

 
Hungry 

 
Reputation & Public 

Confidence – 
Comfortable with taking 
decisions that are likely 
to bring scrutiny of the 
Council but where 
potential benefits 
outweigh risks.   

Controls in place 
 

• TFS Steering Group and Programme 
Team in place. 

• Established procedures and 
monitoring arrangements from 
Service Review and Next Steps 
Programmes 

• Project plan developed for year one 
(2013/14) – schemes all scoped and 
in progress 

• Reporting of achievement against 
targets included within quarterly 
financial monitoring/performance 
monitoring reports to 
Executive/Performance Scrutiny 
Committee  

• Development of detailed programme 
for year two complete, 
communications with affected service 
areas are in progress and detailed 
scopes for the reviews are near 
completion, immediate start projects 
have commenced. 

•  
 
Further actions required 
 

• Final scopes for year two projects to 
be completed. 

• Overall project plan for year two to be 
finalised with reporting timescales etc 

• Education for managers of leaned 

Andrew 
Taylor/ 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

   X 

    

    

    

 Impact 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

    

  X  

    

    

 Impact 

Full – current 
year targets. 

 
 
 

Substantial – 
future years 

targets 

 
 

75



services to assist in the maintenance 
of improvements/performance to be 
provided. 

 

No. 5) Responding 
positively to the changing 
landscape of service 
delivery, including; 
 

• Welfare Reform 

• Big Society 

• Localism Act 

• Public Health 

Open & Aware 
 

Projects & Major 
Change – support 

innovation and seek out 
opportunities that are 
most likely to result in 

successful delivery while 
also providing a good 

level of reward. 
 

Cautious 
 

Partnerships – willing to 
engage in partnerships 

but expect solid 
governance 

arrangements to be in 
place and robustly 

monitored 
 

Controls in place 
 

o CMT commenced a process of 
engagement with key strategic 
partners to identify opportunities 
– Police/Crime Commissioner, 
Director of Public Health, 
University vice chancellor, 
Manager of Citizen Advice 
Bureau already engaged. 

o Welfare reform – regular 
updates scheduled for CMT with 
input from CAB 

o AD-CRD sits on the steering 
group of the County Council’s 
county wide response to Big 
Society 

o City Council has approved a 
new strategy for neighbourhood 
management with particular 
focus on capacity building in 
local communities 

o Audit has been completed on 
council’s response to Localism 
Act 

o Re formatted quarterly 
Leadership meetings now focus 
on key emerging issues arising 
from more effective horizon 
scanning to spot and develop 
key opportunities as they 
emerge 

o CX is taking on a more external 
focus in 2013/14 engaging a 
range of strategic partners to  
deliver against the city’s needs 

o CLSC taken on development of 
a city wide anti-poverty strategy 

Andrew 
Taylor 
 
Angela 
Andrews 
 
 
 
 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

    

  X  

    

    

 Impact 

 

L
ik

e
li
h
o
o
d
 

    

    

    

  X  

    

    

 Impact 

Substantial   

 

76



with partners with a focus on 
welfare reform – supported by 
further specialist meetings 
between the council, DWP and 
other agencies involved in 
universal credit 

 
 
Further actions required 
 

o Deliver the actions from the 
Audit report on Localism  

o Full implications of the transfer 
of public health yet to be felt/ 
understood  coupled with the 
need for an in depth analysis of 
the latest Health profiles 
published in Sept  

o Development of policies to 
respond to enhanced rights of 
communities, specifically 
community right to bid and 
community asset transfer. 

 

 

77



78

T
his page is intentionally blank.



EXECUTIVE  16 JUNE 2014 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STEWARDSHIP AND ACTUAL 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS REPORT 2013/14 (OUTTURN) 
 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

SHARON CLARK – GROUP ACCOUNTANT (TECHNICAL & 
EXCHEQUER) 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 The annual Treasury Management stewardship report is a requirement of the 

Council’s reporting procedures under regulations issued under the Local 
Government Act 2003. It covers the treasury management activities and the actual 
prudential and treasury indicators for 2013/14. This report meets the requirements 
of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the 
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential 
Code).  
 

2. Executive Summary     
 

2.1 During 2013/14 the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory 
requirements.  The key prudential indicators for the year, with comparators, are as 
follows: 

 

* This excludes the 5 year fixed deposit of £1M in respect of the Local Authority Mortgage Scheme. 
This is considered to be a service deposit and not a treasury investment. 

Actual Prudential Indicators 2012/13 

£000 

2013/14 

£000 

Actual Capital Expenditure * 13,024 13,532 

Capital Financing Requirement 

General Fund 

HRA 

Total 

 

23,494 

58,298 

81,792 

 

24,532 

58,524 

83,056 

Net borrowing (borrowing less 
investments) 

57,311 56,189 

External debt (borrowing) 75,442 75,406 

Investments 

• Longer than 1 year* 

• Under 1 year 
 

• Total 

 

0 

18,131 

  18,131 

 

1,000 

18,217 

19,217 

Item No. 8

79



 

Other prudential and treasury indicators are to be found in section 4. 

 
3. Background 

 
3.1 
 

The prudential system for capital expenditure is now well established.  One of the 
requirements of the Prudential Code is to ensure adequate monitoring of the 
capital expenditure plans, prudential indicators (PIs) and treasury management 
response to these plans. This report fulfils that requirement and shows the status 
of the Prudential Indicators at 31st March 2014.  For the 2013/14 financial year the 
minimum reporting requirements were that members should receive the following 
reports: 
 

• an annual Treasury Management Strategy in advance of the year (Council 
5th March 2013) 

• a mid year Treasury Update report (Executive 25th November 2013) 

• an annual report following the year describing the activity compared to the 
strategy (this report)  

 
3.2 
 

Recent changes in the regulatory environment place a much greater onus on 
members for the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  
This report is important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position 
for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies 
previously approved by members.   

 
3.3 
 

In compliance with the Prudential Code treasury management reports are 
scrutinised by Performance Scrutiny Committee and reviewed by the Executive 
prior to reporting to full Council.   Member training for the Performance Scrutiny 
Committee was undertaken on 19th November 2013 to support their role in 
scrutinising the half yearly report. Member training for the Audit Committee on 
treasury management issues was undertaken during the year on 4th February 
2014 in order to support their role in scrutinising the treasury management 
strategy and policies. 

 
4. Summary of Performance against Treasury Management Strategy 2012/13 

4.1 The full details of transactions in the year and performance against the Prudential 
Indicators are included at Appendices A and B. 
 

80



4.2 
 

 

 
 

Actual Prudential Indicators 2012/13 2013/14 

Actual Capital Expenditure 13,024 13,532 

Capital Financing Requirement 

General Fund 

HRA 

Total 

 

23,494 

58,298 

81,792 

 

24,532 

58,524 

83,056 

Financing Costs as a proportion of Net 
Revenue Stream 

General Fund 

HRA 

 

 

12.9% 

45.8% 

 

 

12.5% 

43.5% 

4.3 
 

The Director of Resources confirms that borrowing was only undertaken for a 
capital purpose and the statutory borrowing limit, the Authorised Limit was not 
breached. 

No additional borrowing taken in 2013/14.  

At 31st March 2014, the principal value of the Council’s external debt was 
£75.406m (£75.442m at 31st March 2013) and that of its investments was 
£19.217m (£18.131m at 31st March 2013).  

 
4.4 
 

The small decrease in the non-HRA financing costs as a % of net revenue stream 
in 2013/14 is due to an increase in the net revenue stream. The actual financing 
cost for the general fund was materially unchanged from the previous year. 
 
The small decrease in the HRA financing cost as a % of net revenue stream in 
2013/14 is again largely due to an increase in the net revenue stream, whilst the 
financing costs increased marginally due to a higher depreciation charge. 
 

4.5 
 

The financial year 2013/14 continued the challenging environment of previous 
years; low investment returns and continuing counterparty risk were the main 
features. 

 
4.6 
 

Key issues to note from activity during 2013/14: 
 

• The Council’s total debt (including leases and lease-type arrangements) at 
31st March 2014 was £77.143m (Appendix A section 4.4) compared with the 
Capital Financing Requirement of £83.056m (Appendix A section 3.5).  This 
represents an under-borrowing position of £5.913m, which is currently being 
supported by internal resources. Additional long-term borrowing will be taken 
in 2014/15 or future years to bring levels up to the Capital Financing 
Requirement, subject to liquidity requirements, if preferential interest rates 
are available. 

• The Council’s Investments at the 31st March 2014 were £19.217m (Appendix 
A section 4.3), which is £1.086m higher than at 31st March 2013.  Average 

81



investment balances for 2013/14 were £22.5m, which was higher than 
estimated average balances of £20.7m in the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2013-18. It should be noted that this refers to the principal amounts 
of investments held, whereas the investment values included in the balance 
sheet are based on fair value. In most cases, this will simply be equal to the 
principal invested, unless the investment has been impaired.   

• Actual investment interest earned on balances was £128k compared to 
£102k estimated in the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2013-18 (Appendix 
A section 10.2).   

• The interest rate achieved on investments was 0.64% which was 0.29% 
above the target 7-day LIBID rate. This equated to an additional £65k 
investment income during 2013/14. 

 
4.7 
 

Risk Benchmarking 
 
The following reports the outturn position against the security and liquidity 
benchmarks in the Treasury Management Strategy. 
 
Security  

• The Council’s actual security risk for the portfolio as at 31st March 2014 is 
0.010%, compared with 0.020% for the budgeted portfolio. This gives the 
estimated default rate on the investment counterparties which comprise the 
portfolio at 31.03.2014. This equates to a potential financial loss of £1,870 
on the investment portfolio of £19.217m. 

  

• Specified Investments are high security sterling investments (i.e. high credit 
quality) with a maturity of no more than one year. Non-specified 
investments are all other investments representing a potentially greater 
risk; however the risk is still minimal due to the stringent controls over 
counterparty credit quality contained within the Investment Strategy. The 
2013/14 strategy set a maximum limit of 75% of the portfolio to be held in 
non-specified investments. At 31st March 2014, 95% of the investment 
portfolio was held in specified investments. The Director of Resources can 
report that the investment portfolio was maintained within this limit 
throughout the year. 

 
Liquidity  
 In respect of this area the Council set liquidity benchmarks to maintain: 
 

• Liquid short term deposits of at least £3 million available with a week’s 
notice. 

• Weighted Average Life benchmark was expected to be 0.26 years (94 
days) with a maximum of 0.50 years. 

 
The actual liquidity indicators at 31st March 2014 were as follows: 
 

• Liquid short term deposits of £12.217 million as at 31st March 2014. 

• Weighted Average Life of the investment portfolio was 0.21 years (75 days) 
 
The Director of Resources can report that liquidity arrangements were adequate 
throughout the year. 

82



 
4.8 
 

Benchmarking 
 
The Council participates in the following benchmarking club: 

 

• The Capita Asset Services benchmarking club.  Capita Asset Services is 
the Council’s treasury management advisors and they offer a benchmarking 
club for their clients. This is organised on a regional group basis. The group 
to which City of Lincoln belongs has 9 members within the East Midlands 
region.  

• The latest report (March 2014) shows that City of Lincoln Council achieved 
a weighted average return of 0.60% on its investments compared with the 
group average of 0.91% and the average for all non-metropolitan districts of 
0.73%. The group average return is being skewed by one member, who is 
investing for longer periods and is accepting a higher counterparty risk in 
order to achieve higher returns. In the light of this, the Council’s 
performance is acceptable as the Council had a lower average level of 
funds invested during the year compared with the group average and has a 
lower appetite for risk than those authorities who are achieving higher 
returns. 

• Capita also provides a measure of the credit risk of the investment portfolio. 
The lower the credit risk score, the lower the risk of default within the 
portfolio. 

• The Council’s portfolio at 31 March 2014 had an average credit risk score 
which was only 56% of the group average score and a lower than average 
Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) of 75 days compared with 127 days for 
the group. This shows that the Council is achieving a reasonable rate of 
return on the funds invested, considering the short maturity of the portfolio 
and low level of risk. 

 
5. Organisational Impacts (nb. Finance, Legal and E & D sections below are 

mandatory, others to be completed only where there is an impact) 
 

5.1 The financial impacts are contained within appendices A and B. 
 

5.2 There are no legal impacts arising from this report. 
 

6. Risk Implications 
 

6.1 (i)        Options Explored  
 

6.2 (ii)        Key risks associated with the preferred approach 
 

7. Recommendation  
 

7.1 
 

That the Executive note the actual prudential indicators contained within 
appendices A and B and refers them to Council for approval. 
 

7.2 
 

That the Executive note the annual treasury management report for 2013/14. 
 

  
Key Decision No 

83



 . 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply? 
 

No 
 

Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which Rule 
15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

No 

How many appendices 
does the report contain? 
 
 

2 
 

List of Background 
Papers: 
 

 

None 
. 

Lead Officer: Sharon Clark – Group Accountant, Technical & Exchequer 
Telephone 873839 

 

84



Appendix A 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities 

can be: 
 

• Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources 
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no 
resultant impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

• If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply 
resources, the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.   

Capital expenditure activity is regulated by the CIPFA Prudential Code, which 
requires actual outturn to be reported in the following areas: - 
 

• Capital expenditure; 

• Capital Financing Requirement; 

• Debt; 

• Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream. 

The remaining prudential indicators are included to make the annual reporting 
comprehensive and to comply with the requirements of the Treasury Management 
Code. 
 

1.2 
 

Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address any borrowing need, either 
through borrowing from external bodies, or utilising temporary cash resources 
within the Council.  The wider treasury activities also include managing the 
Council’s cash flows, its previous borrowing activities and the investment of 
surplus funds.  These activities are structured to manage risk foremost, and then 
optimise performance.  This area of activity is regulated by the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management.   
 

1.3 
 

Wider information on the regulatory requirements is shown in section 12. 

2. The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing 2013/14 

2.1 This forms one of the required prudential indicators and shows total capital 
expenditure for the year and how this was financed.  

Annual Report on the Treasury Management Service and Actual 

Prudential Indicators 2012/13 

85



Appendix A 

 

 

 

 2012/13 

Actual 
£’000 

2013/14 

Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

2013/14 

Actual 
£’000 

General Fund capital expenditure 5,128 3,434 3,234 

HRA capital expenditure 7,896 9,645 10,298 

Total capital expenditure 13,024 13,079 13,532 

Resourced by:    

Capital receipts 2,416 2,117 1,799 

Capital grants & contributions 1,147 522 547 

Direct Revenue Financing 0 333 353 

Major repairs reserve - 
depreciation 

 

2,811 

 

6,710 

 

7,555 

Major repairs reserve - revenue 5,149 2,257 2,257 

Un-financed capital expenditure 
(additional need to borrow) 

1,501 1,140 1,021 

2.2 Further details on 2013/14 Capital Expenditure and Financing can be found in the 
Financial Performance Detailed Outturn 2013/14 report elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

3. The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need 

3.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow is called the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge for the Council’s debt position and 
represents 2013/14 and prior years’ net capital expenditure that has not yet been 
charged to revenue or other resources. 
 

3.2 Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address this borrowing need, either 
through borrowing from external bodies, or utilising temporary cash resources 
within the Council. 
 

3.3 The General Fund element of the CFR is reduced each year by a statutory 
revenue charge (called the Minimum Revenue Provision - MRP).  The total CFR 
can also be reduced by: 

•  the application of additional capital resources (such as unapplied 
capital receipts); or  

• charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year 
through a Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP) or depreciation.  

 
3.4 The Council’s MRP policy for 2013/14 was approved by Council on 5th March 2013 

as part of the Prudential Indicators 2013/14 – 2016/17 and Treasury Management 

86



Appendix A 

Strategy 2013/14.   
 

3.5 The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential 
indicator.  The CFR includes leasing schemes which increase the Council’s 
borrowing need.  No borrowing is actually required against these schemes as a 
borrowing facility is included in the contract. 

 

Capital Financing Requirement 

General Fund 

31 March 
2013 

 

Actual 
£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

31 March 
2014 

 

Actual 
£’000 

Opening balance 1 April  23,031 23,494 23,494 

Plus un-financed capital 
expenditure 

1,501 535 631 

Finance leases 0 0 1,341 

Less MRP/VRP* (1,038) (847) (934) 

Closing balance 31 March  23,494 23,182 24,532 

 

Capital Financing Requirement 

HRA 

31 March 
2013 

 

Actual 
£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

31 March 
2014 

 

Actual 
£’000 

Opening balance 1 April  58,460 58,298 58,298 

Plus un-financed capital 
expenditure 

0 605 390 

Less MRP/VRP* (162) (164) (164) 

Closing balance 31 March  58,298 58,739 58,524 

* includes finance lease repayments 

 
4. Treasury Position at 31 March 2014 

4.1 Whilst the Council’s gauge of its underlying need to borrow is the CFR, the 
Director of Resources and the treasury team manage the Council’s actual 
borrowing position by either: 

• borrowing to the CFR,  

• choosing to temporarily utilise some flow funds instead of borrowing 
(under-borrowing) 

• borrowing for future increases in the CFR (borrowing in advance of need).   

 

87



Appendix A 

4.2 It should be noted that the figures in this report are based on the principal amounts 
borrowed and invested and so may differ from those in the final accounts by items 
such as accrued interest (outstanding interest due to be paid and received as at 
31st March), or where the carrying amount is based on fair values . 
 

4.3 During 2013/14 the Director of Resources managed the borrowing position to 
£75.406 million. The treasury position at the 31st March 2014 compared with the 
previous year was: 

 
 
 

31 March 2013 31 March 2014 

 
Principal 
£’000 

Average 
Rate (full 

year) 

Principal 
£’000 

Average 
Rate (full 

year) 

Borrowing Position     

Fixed Interest Rate 
Debt 

75,442 4.14% 75,406 4.14% 

Variable Interest Rate 
Debt 

0 N/A 0 N/A 

Total Debt 
(borrowing) * 

75,442 4.14% 75,406 4.14% 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 
(borrowing only) 

80,986 N/A 81,320 N/A 

Over/(under) 
borrowing 

(5,544) N/A (5,913) N/A 

Investment Position     

Fixed Interest 
Investments 

6,000 1.77% 7,000 0.98% 

Variable Interest 
Investments 

12,131 0.62% 12,217 0.47% 

Total Investments  18,131 0.85% 19,217 0.64% 

Net Borrowing 
Position 

57,311  56,189  

* Excludes local Bonds & Mortgages and other long-term liabilities ( e.g. finance  leases) 

 
4.4 The total debt position also includes other long term liabilities such as finance 

leases and embedded leases within service contracts. The total debt position at 
31st March 2014 was £77.143 million as shown below:  

 

 

 

88



Appendix A 

 31 March 
2013 

Actual 
£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Actual 
£’000 

Gross borrowing 75,442 75,406 75,406 

Other long term liabilities 807 483 1,737 

Total External debt 76,249 75,889 77,143 

 

 
4.5 The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows: 

 31 March 
2013 

Actual 
£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Revised  

£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Actual 
£’000 

Under 12 months  35 31 31 

12 months and within 24 months 31 17 17 

24 months and within 5 years 22 5 5 

5 years and within 10 years 5,000 7,500 7,500 

10 years and above 70,354 67,853 67,853 

Total 75,442 75,406 75,406 

 
 

4.6 The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows: 

 31 March 
2013 

Actual 
£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Revised  

£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Actual 
£’000 

Longer than 1 year 0 0 1,000 

Under 1 year 18,131 21,783 18,217 

Total 18,131 21,783 19,217 
 

5. The Strategy for 2013/14 

5.1 The Council’s overall core borrowing objectives are: 

• To reduce the revenue costs of debt in line with the targets set for the 
Director of Resources by Council (see local indicators). 

• To manage the Council's debt maturity profile, leaving no one future year 
with a high level of repayments that might cause problems in re-borrowing. 

• To effect funding at the cheapest cost commensurate with future risk. 

89



Appendix A 

• To forecast average future interest rates and borrow accordingly i.e. short 
term/variable when rates are 'high', long term/fixed when rates are 'low'.   

• To monitor and review the level of variable rate loans in order to take greater 
advantage of interest rate movements. 

• To proactively reschedule debt in order to take advantage of potential 
savings as interest rates change. Each rescheduling exercise will be 
considered in terms of the effect of premiums and discounts on the General 
Fund and the Housing Revenue Account. 

• To manage the day-to-day cash flow of the Authority in order to, where 
possible, negate the need for short-term borrowing. However, short-term 
borrowing will be incurred, if it is deemed prudent to take advantage of good 
investment rates.  

 
6. Actual Debt Management Activity during 2013/14 

6.1 Borrowing 

6.1.1 No long term borrowing was taken in 2013/14. 

  

6.1.2 The average rate achieved for long-term borrowing (excluding finance and 
embedded leases) in 2013/14 was 4.14%, which compares favourably to the 
target of 4.75% (2012/13 4.14%).  

 

 31 March 
2013 

Actual  

 

£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Revised 
Estimate 

 £’000 

31 March 
2014 

Actual  

£’000 

Interest payable on borrowing 3,126 3,126 3,126 

  -  General Fund 774 774 774 

  -  HRA 2,352 2,352 2,352 

Interest payable on finance leases 115 72 128 

  - General Fund 78 52 108 

  - HRA 37 20 20 

 

The small increase in interest payable since the previous year is due to the 
replacement of a number of lease vehicles within the Waste and Street Cleansing 
contracts, the costs of which are borne by the general fund.  

 

6.2 Rescheduling 

6.2.1 No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between 
PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling 

90



Appendix A 

unviable. 

7. Prudential Indicators and Compliance Issues 

7.1 Some of the required prudential indicators provide either an overview or specific 
limits on treasury activity.  These are shown below: 

 

7.2 Net Borrowing and the CFR  
 

7.2.1 In order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the medium term the 
Council’s external borrowing, net of investments, must only be for a capital 
purpose.  This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support 
revenue expenditure.  Net borrowing should not therefore, except in the short 
term, have exceeded the CFR for 2013/14 plus the expected changes to the CFR 
over 2014/15 and 2015/16 from financing the capital programme.  This indicator 
allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital 
needs in 2013/14.  The table below highlights the Council’s net borrowing position 
against the CFR.  The Council has complied with this prudential indicator. 

 

 31 March 
2013 

Actual 
£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

31 March 
2014 

Actual 
£’000 

Net borrowing position 57,311 53,623 56,189 

Capital Financing Requirement 81,792 81,920 83,057 
 

7.3 The Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary 

7.3.1 The Authorised Limit is the “Affordable Borrowing Limit” required by section 3 of 
the Local Government Act 2003.  The Council does not have the power to borrow 
above this level.  The table below demonstrates that during 2013/14 the Council 
has maintained gross borrowing within its Authorised Limit.   
 

7.3.2 The Operational Boundary is the expected borrowing position of the Council during 
the year, and periods where the actual position is either below or over the 
Boundary is acceptable subject to the Authorised Limit not being breached. 
 

7.3.3 The table below shows the highest borrowing position reached in the year 
(including temporary borrowing and other long term liabilities) compared to the 
Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary. 

 

 

 

 

91



Appendix A 

 2013/14 
£’000 

 

Authorised Limit 84,990 

Maximum gross borrowing position during 2013/14 77,143 

Operational Boundary 82,889 

Average gross borrowing position during 2013/14 76,696 

Minimum gross borrowing position during the year 76,248 

 
 

7.4 Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream 

7.4.1 This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-
term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 

Financing costs as a proportion of 
net revenue stream -  

 

2012/13 

Actual  

%  

2013/14 

Revised 
Estimate 

% 

2013/14 

Actual  

%  

General Fund 12.9% 11.5% 12.5% 

HRA 45.8% 43.4% 43.5% 

 
The small decrease in the non-HRA financing costs as a % of net revenue stream 
in 2013/14 is due to an increase in the net revenue stream. The actual financing 
cost for the general fund was materially unchanged from the previous year. 
 
The small decrease in the HRA financing cost as a % of net revenue stream in 
2013/14 is again largely due to an increase in the net revenue stream, whilst the 
financing costs increased marginally due to a higher depreciation charge. 
 

8. Economic Background for 2013/14 

The following commentary on the economic conditions for 2013/14 is provided by 
Capita Asset Services, the Council’s treasury management advisers. 
 

8.1 The original expectation for 2013/14 was that Bank Rate would not rise during the 
year and for it only to start gently rising from quarter 1 2015.  This forecast rise has 
now been pushed back to a start in quarter 3 2015.  Economic growth (GDP) in 
the UK was virtually flat during 2012/13 but surged strongly during the year.  
Consequently there was no additional quantitative easing during 2013/14 and 
Bank Rate ended the year unchanged at 0.5% for the fifth successive year.  While 
CPI inflation had remained stubbornly high and substantially above the 2% target 
during 2012, by January 2014 it had, at last, fallen below the target rate to 1.9% 
and then fell further to 1.7% in February.  It is also expected to remain slightly 
below the target rate for most of the two years ahead.   
 

92



Appendix A 

8.2 Gilt yields were on a sharply rising trend during 2013 but volatility returned in the 
first quarter of 2014 as various fears sparked a flight to quality (see paragraph 4.)  
The Funding for Lending Scheme, announced in July 2012, resulted in a flood of 
cheap credit being made available to banks which then resulted in money market 
investment rates falling drastically in the second half of that year and continuing 
into 2013/14.  That part of the Scheme which supported the provision of credit for 
mortgages was terminated in the first quarter of 2014 as concerns rose over 
resurging house prices.   
 

8.3 The UK coalition Government maintained its tight fiscal policy stance but recent 
strong economic growth has led to a cumulative, (in the Autumn Statement and 
the March Budget), reduction in the forecasts for total borrowing, of £97bn over the 
next five years, culminating in a £5bn surplus in 2018-19.  
 

8.4 The EU sovereign debt crisis subsided during the year and confidence in the 
ability of the Eurozone to remain intact increased substantially.  Perceptions of 
counterparty risk improved after the ECB statement in July 2012 that it would do 
“whatever it takes” to support struggling Eurozone countries; this led to a return of 
confidence in its banking system which has continued into 2013/14 and led to a 
move away from only very short term investing.  However, this is not to say that 
the problems of the Eurozone, or its banks, have ended as the zone faces the 
likelihood of weak growth over the next few years at a time when the total size of 
government debt for some nations is likely to continue rising.  Upcoming stress 
tests of Eurozone banks could also reveal some areas of concern. 
 

9. Investment Position 
 

9.1 The Council’s investment policy is governed by DCLG Guidance, which has been 
implemented in the Annual Investment Strategy approved by Council on 6th March 
2012.  This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment counterparties, 
and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating agencies 
supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit default 
swaps, bank share prices etc.). The investment activity during the year conformed 
to the approved strategy, and the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

 

9.2 The Council’s longer-term cash balances comprise primarily revenue and capital 
resources, although these will be influenced by cash flow considerations.  The 
Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows, and meet the expectations of 
the budget: 

 

Balance Sheet Resources  

- General Fund 

31 March 2013 

£’000 

31 March 2014 

£’000 

Balances 1,610 1,852 

Earmarked reserves  4,389 5,266 

Provisions 1,092 587 

Usable capital receipts 2,118 348 

93



Appendix A 

Total 9.941 8,053 

Balance Sheet Resources  

- HRA 

31 March 2013 

£’000 

31 March 2014 

£’000 

Balances 1,538 1,310 

Earmarked reserves 8,146 5,266 

Provisions 66 87 

Usable capital receipts 2,353 3,187 

Total 13,644 9,850 

Total General Fund & HRA 

 

23,605 17,903 

 
 

10. Investments Held by the Council  

10.1 The Council does not have the expertise or resources to actively use a wide range 
of investment products and therefore performance tends to be more stable but 
lower over the longer term than for professionally managed funds (whose 
performance may fluctuate more).  The Council maintained an average balance of 
£22.5m and received an average return of 0.64%.  The comparable performance 
indicator is the average 7-day LIBID rate, which was 0.35%. Based on the average 
investment balance this performance margin of 0.29% in the Council’s favour 
equates to an additional £65K of interest over the year.   

10.2 In 2013/14, £128k interest was earned on balances (£172k in 2012/13).  This is 
£26k more than the £102k estimated in the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2013-
18. The analysis of this result is shown in the table below. 

 

 

MTFS  
2013-18 
Budget 
£’000 

Outturn 
2013/14 
£’000 

Interest earned  - General fund  38 63 

                          - HRA  64 65 

Total interest earned   

Average balance invested in year £20.7m £22.5 m 

Average interest rate achieved 0.57% 0.64% 

 

The Economic Background for 2013/14 (see Section 8) sets out the continuing 
difficult economic conditions during this period, resulting in constantly falling 
deposit rates, which impacted adversely on investment returns.  Counterparty 
security remains an issue, shown by falling credit ratings for the majority of 
financial institutions.  There remained few counterparties available to the Council 
for investment, which resulted in the Council keeping the majority of funds liquid in 
AAA rated money market funds, and utilising part-nationalised banks for short term 
fixed deposits. Rates of return on the money market funds have continued to fall 

94



Appendix A 

throughout the year in line with the 7 day LIBID and are now below the bank base 
rate. However, the Council did achieve an improvement over the budgeted level of 
investment income by lending to local authorities, giving an enhanced return at 
very low risk.  

10.3 Risk Benchmarking 
The regulatory framework also requires the consideration and approval of security 
and liquidity benchmarks. Yield benchmarks are currently widely used to assess 
investment performance (i.e. rate achieved compared with the 7-day LIBID). 
Security and liquidity benchmarks are used to asses the level of risk in the 
investment portfolio and whether sufficient liquidity is being maintained.  

 The following reports the current position against the benchmarks originally 
approved in the 2013/14 Treasury Management Strategy. 
 
Security  

• The Council’s security risk for the portfolio as at 31st March 2014 is 
0.010%, compared with 0.020% for the budgeted portfolio. This gives the 
estimated default rate on the investment counterparties which comprise the 
portfolio at 31st March 2014. This equates to a potential financial loss of 
£1,870 on the investment portfolio of £19.217m. 

  

• Specified Investments are high security sterling investments (i.e. high credit 
quality) with a maturity of no more than one year. Non-specified 
investments are all other investments representing a potentially greater risk 
however the risk is still minimal due to the stringent controls over 
counterparty credit quality contained within the Investment Strategy. The 
2013/14 strategy set a maximum limit of 75% of the portfolio to be held in 
non-specified investments. At 31st March 2014, 95% of the investment 
portfolio was held in specified investments. The Director of Resources can 
report that the investment portfolio was maintained within this limit 
throughout the year. 

 
Liquidity  
 In respect of this area the Council set liquidity benchmarks to maintain: 
 

• Liquid short term deposits of at least £3 million available with a week’s 
notice. 

• Weighted Average Life benchmark was expected to be 0.26 years (94 
days) with a maximum of 0.50 years. 

 
The actual liquidity indicators at 31st March 2014 were as follows: 
 

• Liquid short term deposits of £12.217 million as at 31st March 2014. 

• Weighted Average Life of the investment portfolio was 0.21 years (75 days). 
 

11. Performance Indicators set for 2013/14 

11.1 The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the Council to set 
performance indicators to assess the adequacy of the treasury management 

95



Appendix A 

function over the year. The Director of Resources set 8 local indicators for 
2013/14, which aim to add value and assist the understanding of the main 
prudential indicators. These indicators, detailed in Appendix B, are: 

• Debt – Borrowing rate achieved against average 7 day LIBOR. 

• Investments – Investment rate achieved against average 7 day LIBID. 

• Average rate of interest paid on the Councils Debt during the year – this will 
evaluate performance in managing the debt portfolio to release revenue 
savings.   

• The amount of interest on debt as a percentage of gross revenue 
expenditure. 

• Limit on fixed interest rate investments 

• Limit on fixed interest rate debt 

• Limit on variable rate investments 

• Limit on variable rate debt 
 

12. Regulatory Framework, Risk and Performance 

12.1 The Council’s treasury management activities are regulated by a variety of 
professional codes, statutes and guidance: 

• The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act), which provides the powers to 
borrow and invest as well as providing controls and limits on this activity; 

• The Act permits the Secretary of State to set limits either on the Council or 
nationally on all local authorities restricting the amount of borrowing which 
may be undertaken (although no restrictions were made in 2013/14); 

• Statutory Instrument (SI) 3146 2003, as amended, develops the controls and 
powers within the Act; 

• The SI requires the Council to undertake any borrowing activity with regard 
to the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities; 

• The SI also requires the Council to operate the overall treasury function with 
regard to the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public 
Services; 

• Under the Act the ODPM has issued Investment Guidance to structure and 
regulate the Council’s investment activities; 

• Under section 238(2) of the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007 the Secretary of State has taken powers to issue guidance 
on accounting practices.  

12.2 The Council has complied with all of the above relevant statutory and regulatory 
requirements, which limit the levels of risk associated with its treasury 
management activities.  In particular its adoption and implementation of both the 
Prudential Code and the Code of Practice for Treasury Management means both 
that its capital expenditure is prudent, affordable and sustainable, and its treasury 
practices demonstrate a low risk approach. 

12.3 The Council is aware of the risks of passive management of the treasury portfolio 
and, with the support of Capita Asset Services, the Council’s advisers, has 
proactively managed its treasury position over the year.  The Council has 
continued to utilise historically low borrowing costs and has complied with its 

96



Appendix A 

internal and external procedural requirements. There is little risk of volatility of 
costs in the current debt portfolio as the interest rates are predominantly fixed, 
utilising long-term loans.   

12.4 Shorter-term variable rates and likely future movements in these rates 
predominantly determine the Council’s investment return.  These returns can 
therefore be volatile and, whilst the risk of loss of principal is minimised through 
the annual investment strategy, accurately forecasting future returns can be 
difficult. 

97



Appendix B 

 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2013/14 
 

1.  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

 Actual Revised Actual 

Capital Expenditure 
 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

    General Fund 5,128 3,434 3,234 

    HRA  7,896 9,645 10,298 

    TOTAL 13,024 13,079 13,532 
      

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue 
stream 

% % % 

    General Fund 12.9% 11.5% 12.5% 

    HRA  45.8% 43.4% 43.5% 

      

Borrowing requirement  General Fund £'000 £'000 £'000 

    Borrowing at 1 April 17,323 17,329 17,329 

    Borrowing requirement at 31 March 22,873 22,720 22,816 

    in year borrowing requirement 5,550 5,391 5,487 
     

Borrowing requirement HRA 
 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

    Borrowing at 1 April 58,113 58,113 58,113 

    Borrowing requirement at 31 March 58,113 58,718 58,503 

    in year borrowing requirement 0 605 390 

    

Net Debt £'000 £'000 £'000 

    General Fund 6,894 5,350 7,451 

    HRA  49,467 48,273 48,738 

    Total 56,311 53,623 56,189 

    

 CFR £'000 £'000 £'000 

    General Fund 23,494 23,181 24,532 

    HRA  58,298 58,739 58,524 

    TOTAL 81,792 81,920 83,056 

    

Annual change in Capital Financing 
Requirement  

£'000 £'000 £'000 

    General Fund 464 (313) 1,038 

    HRA  (162) 441 226 

    TOTAL 302 128 1,264 

       

Incremental impact of capital 
investment decisions  

£7.30 £10.27 £10.30 

 

98



Appendix B 

1.  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS  2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

 Actual Revised Actual 

    Increase in council tax (band D) per 
annum   

£7.29 £10.28 £10.27 

    Increase in average housing rent per 
week 

£0.01 £(0.01) £0.03 

 
 

2.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT  
INDICATORS  

2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 

 Actual Revised Actual 

Authorised Limit for external debt –  
 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Borrowing  82,442 82,935 75,406 
Other long term liabilities  928 2,055 1,737 
TOTAL 83,370 84,990 77,143 
     

Operational Boundary for external 
debt -  

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Borrowing   82,442 82,406 75,406 
Other long term liabilities   807 483 1,737 
TOTAL 83,249 82,889 77,143 
     

Actual external debt 
 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

General Fund 17,329 17,293 17,293 
HRA 58,113 58,113 58,113 
TOTAL 75,442 75,406 75,406 
    

Upper limit for fixed interest rate 
exposure 

£m  
Target 

£m 
£m 

     Net principal re fixed rate borrowing 
/ investments  

70.9 70.0 70.6 

     

Upper limit for variable rate 
exposure 

£m 
Target 

£m 
£m 

     Net principal re variable rate 
borrowing / investments  

30.2 30.2 30.2 

      

Upper limit for total principal sums 
invested for over 1 year 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

     (per maturity date) 0 5,000 1,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 

99



Appendix B 

Maturity structure of fixed rate 
borrowing during 2013/14 

 
Actual 

% 

Upper limit 
% 

Lower 
limit 
% 

under 12 months  0.04 40 0 

12 months and within 24 months 0.02 40 0 

24 months and within 5 years 0.01 60 0 

5 years and within 10 years 9.95 80 0 

10 years and above 89.98 100 10 

 

 
 

Local Indicators Treasury Management Indicators 
 

 2012/13 

Actual 

% 

2013/14 

Target  

% 

2013/14 

Actual 

% 

Debt - Borrowing rate achieved  

i.e. temporary borrowing (loans 
of less than 1 year) 

No 
temporary 
borrowing 
taken 

during year 

Less than 
average 7 
day LIBOR 

No 
temporary 
borrowing 
taken 

during year 

 

 2012/13 

Actual 

% 

2013/14 

Target  

% 

2013/14 

Actual 

% 

Investment rate achieved 
Achieved 
0.85% 
LIBID 
0.39% 
+0.46% 

Greater 
than 7 day 
LIBID 

 

Achieved 
0.64% 
LIBID 
0.35% 
+0.29% 

 

 2012/13 

Actual 

% 

2013/14 

Target  

% 

2013/14 

Actual 

% 

Average rate of Interest Paid on 
Council Debt (%) 

4.14% 4.75% 4.14% 

 
 
 
 
 

100



Appendix B 

 2012/13 

Actual 

% 

2013/14 

Target  

% 

2013/14 

Actual 

% 

Interest on Debt as a % of Gross 
Revenue Expenditure 

3.1% 3.7% 3.6% 

General Fund 1.1% 1.1% 1.1% 

HRA 9.6% 9.6% 9.6% 

 
 
 
 

 2012/13 

Actual 

% 

2013/14 

Target  

% 

2013/14 

Actual 

% 

Upper limits on fixed interest 
rate investments 

31.4% 100% 36.4% 

 

 2012/13 

Actual 

% 

2013/14 

Target  

% 

2013/14 

Actual 

% 

Upper limits on fixed interest 
rate debt 

100% 100% 100% 

 

 2012/13 

Actual 

% 

2013/14 

Target  

% 

2013/14 

Actual 

% 

Upper limits on variable interest 
rate investments 

68.8% 75% 63.6% 

 

 2012/13 

Actual 

% 

2013/14 

Target  

% 

2013/14 

Actual 

% 

Upper limits on variable interest 
rate debt 

0% 0% 0% 

 
 
 
 

101



102

This page is intentionally blank.



EXECUTIVE              16 JUNE 2014 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
PUBLIC TOILETS / URINALS: PROPOSED CLOSURES 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

STEVE BIRD, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR  COMMUNITIES AND 
STREET SCENE 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 

To seek agreement to permanently close the public urinals at Stamp End and 
Monks Road and the associated demolition and reinstatement works at these 
locations.  
 
To seek agreement to consult on a proposal to close the public ladies and gents 
toilet facilities at St Peter at Arches. 
 

2. Executive Summary     
 

2.1 The City Council owns and operates a number of public toilets across the city. The 
quality and accessibility of these facilities varies significantly. The Council operates 
three award winning accessible toilet facilities at Lucy Tower Street, Castle Square 
and Tentercroft Street but also has a number of older outdated and little used 
facilities which are not fully accessible and/or in some cases are misused and 
abused. 
 

2.2 The gents urinals at Monks Road and Stamp End have been closed since late 
2011 due to anti-social behaviour issues and in the case of the Monks Road 
facility, damage to an underground drain.  
 

2.3 St Peter at Arches ladies and gents toilets remain open, although the ladies is not 
easily accessible (DDA compliant) to all by virtue of the access being by staircase. 
The gents facility at St Peters at Arches in particular suffers a significant degree of 
misuse and the number of users at the ladies facility is extremely low when 
compared with other city centre toilets. The City Council’s longer term City Centre 
Toilets Strategy identified the need to consider closure of this facility and explore 
opportunities for provision of new public toilet facilities as new city centre 
developments come forward. 
 

2.4 This report seeks agreement to formally and permanently close these facilities, 
and in the case of the two urinal buildings, to demolish them and reinstate the 
areas. 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 

Monks Road Urinal – this facility was closed in November 2011 due to damage to 
the underground drains. Incidents of inappropriate and anti social behaviour were 
also ongoing. Alternative toilet provision is available in the locality at the 
Arboretum, albeit not 24 hours a day / 7 days a week. Since the end of 2011 very 
few issues have been raised regarding its closure. It is a single sex urinal of brick 

Item No. 9

103



 
 
 
3.2 

construction and is a poor facility with no running water for users or staff to clean 
the facility.   
 
It is not considered cost effective to undertake the required drain works (estimated 
cost between £5-£10,000) - as damage could reoccur in the future due to the 
locality of a large tree directly next to the facility - for the poor provision that is 
provided.   
 

3.3 Stamp End Urinal – this facility was closed in November 2011 due to ongoing 
incidents of inappropriate and anti social behaviour.  Since that time very few 
issues have been raised regarding its closure.  It is a single sex urinal of brick 
construction and is a poor facility, again difficult to clean and maintain.   
 

 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
3.5 

Consultation – Monks Road and Stamp End 
 
In 2012 notices were displayed at the Stamp End facility asking for comments on 
closure of the urinal. Officers also attended both the Monks Road Community 
Board and Monks Road Neighbourhood Initiative 
 
Eight written responses were received: 
 

• 7 from residents – 3 in favour of the permanent removal of the facilities and 
4 objecting (so broadly balanced) 

• 1 from the School of Architecture at University of Lincoln suggesting some 
form of alternative use for the building (not retaining toilet provision). 

 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
3.8 
 
 
 
 
3.9 
 
 
 
 
 
3.10 

St Peter at Arches Ladies and Gents Toilets 
 
Customer numbers and usage of the Council’s public toilets were assessed prior 
to the Toilets Service Lean Review in 2012. This showed that during one week in 
January there were 19,449 visits to the Council’s city centre public toilets. Around 
2,800 of those visits were to the St Peter at Arches gents facility and usage of the 
ladies toilets at St Peters at Arches was extremely low with only 218 users (an 
average of only 31 per day). 
 
A further count was carried out during the summer (August) and whilst numbers 
had predictably increased during that busier period, still only 492 visitors were 
recorded at the ladies toilets in a week (an average of only 70 per day). In 
comparison the modern facilities at Westgate had 966 users and Castle Hill 2373 
in the same period. 
 
The low usage at St Peters at Arches is attributed to both the lack of accessibility 
of the ladies facility (requiring a climb of more than 30 steps) and the location of 
the facility accessed as it is along an uninviting long and narrow passageway 
which is also the access to the problematic gents toilets. 
 
Furthermore, whilst the numbers using the gents facility is higher, both the City 
Council’s Public Protection & Anti-Social Behaviour Team and Lincolnshire Police 
are aware of complaints of abuse and misuse of these toilets and it is believed that 
a number of visitors to St Peter at Arches gents toilets are not necessarily using 
the toilets for their intended purpose. 
 
The Toilet Service Lean Review identified a need to consider whether the St Peter 

104



at Arches toilets should remain open, given their relatively low usage (particularly 
in the case of the ladies), high cost per use, lack of accessibility, and their ongoing 
abuse and misuse which is partly encouraged by their old design and relative 
isolation. 
 

 
 
3.11 
 
 
 
3.12 

City Centre Toilets Strategy 
 
In 2009 the Council adopted a strategy for the future provision and management of 
city centre toilets. The Strategy identified the poor quality of the facilities at St 
Peters at Arches and the Monks Road and Stamp End urinals. 
 
In relation to the St Peter at Arches toilets the strategy identified the need to 
consider development of new, fully accessible facilities in the area and identified 
the need to consider the future of the facilities at St Peters at Arches given their 
age, poor location, poor accessibility and poor quality. Specifically the report 
identified the gents toilets as being one of those suffering the most anti-social 
behaviour and identified that neither facility was fully accessible (DDA compliant) – 
particularly in the case of the ladies – highlighting that considerable costs would 
need to be incurred to make them accessible by provision of a lift or escalator or 
complete remodelling (if indeed that were physically possible).  
 

 
 
3.13 
 
 
 
 
3.14 

Consideration by the Council’s Asset Review Group (ARG) 
 
In the autumn of 2013 ARG considered the proposed closure of the Monks Road 
and Stamp End urinals, in light of the facts detailed above. ARG felt that the 
closure was appropriate, but that any demolition / making good costs should be 
met within existing service area budgets as and when this could be afforded. 
 
In January 2014 ARG considered the proposed closure of St Peter at Arches 
ladies and gents toilets and had no objections to the closure of this facility in light 
of the facts detailed above in the report. 
 

4. Proposal 
 

4.1 
 
 
 

The proposal is to decommission and demolish the urinals at Monks Road and 
Stamp End. 
 

• In the case of Stamp End, indicative costs have been provided for the 
demolition of the facility and reinstating the area to grass to blend with its 
surroundings. A budget of approximately £6,500 is required to undertake 
these works. 

 

• In the case of Monks Road, indicative costs have been provided for the 
demolition of the facility, realigning the fence around the adjoining Monks 
Abbey Park and restating the area to grass to blend with its surroundings.  
A budget of approximately £9,000 is required to undertake these works. 

 
4.2 It is also proposed to consult on a proposed closure of both the ladies and gents 

toilet facilities at St Peter at Arches. 
 

4.3 In doing so, to note the Council’s intent to identify opportunities to provide 
improved, fully accessible public toilet facilities in the lower city centre area as 
development opportunities arise through the City Centre Masterplan, including but 

105



not limited to, the proposed Lindongate development and any future improvement 
works at the Central Markets, in accordance with the adopted Toilets Strategy. 
 

5. Strategic Priorities 
 

 
 
5.1 

Fit for Purpose Council 
 
Presently the two urinals are of such poor quality they have needed to be closed 
for safety reasons. St Peter at Arches toilets are of poor quality and are not fully 
accessible. The Council’s strategy for toilet provision identified the need to 
consider closure of these facilities and supports the development of new improved 
facilities in the city centre as opportunity permits. 
 

6. Organisational Impacts  
 

 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.5 

(i) Finance  
 
Stamp End – there will be minimal insurance and maintenance cost savings. 
Business Rates are not payable on this location. Costs of demolition and 
reinstatement are estimated at £6.5k plus fees. 
 
Monks Road – there will be minimal insurance and maintenance cost savings.  
Business Rates are not payable on this location. Costs of demolition and 
reinstatement are estimated at £9k plus fees. 
 
It is suggested that the above costs be met by the public toilet revenue budget as 
and when they can be afforded. It is likely therefore that as there is no budget 
provision for such, demolition and reinstatement will be undertaken incrementally 
as budget provision allows.  
 
St Peter at Arches – closure would result in savings from operation in terms of 
utilities in the order of £3,200 pa. Minimal costs would be incurred in physically 
closing off the toilets and ensuring that access continues to be barred until the 
building is given over to another use. The savings would be available for release 
from the service budgets as a contribution to the Council’s overall savings targets 
set out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy subject to the potential future 
adoption of a new facility as considered by the City Centre Toilets Strategy.  
 
Subject to the outcome of public consultation on the proposed closure should a 
decision be taken to proceed with the proposed closure of the St Peter at Arches 
toilets then this would also provide an opportunity for a saving in the staffing 
budget. Should closure be confirmed this would be factored into the ongoing 
Public Conveniences Service Review which is looking at reconfiguring the staffing 
rota and reducing overtime costs in the staffing budget. Any actual saving would 
be factored into the financial implications of that report. 
 

 
 
6.6 

(ii) Legal Implications incl Procurement Rules  
 
The required works will be procured in accordance with the Council’s procurement 
policy. The relevant planning consents will be sought if required. 
 
 
 

106



 
 
6.7 
 
 
 
6.8 
 
 
 
6.9 
 
 
 
6.10 

(iii) Land, Property and Accommodation 
 
All 3 facilities are owned by the City of Lincoln Council. The Monks Road urinal is 
next door to the remains of Monks Abbey, but does not to require additional 
specific approvals. There are no specific issues at Stamp End.  
 
The closure of the St Peter at Arches facility would be subject to consultation and 
consideration of the feedback. If ultimately a decision was taken to close the 
facility, then this would lead to a disposal of the asset.  
 
A recent condition survey of the St Peter at Arches toilet facility has identified the 
need to carry out maintenance repairs of £17,816 within five years and £68,740 in 
the longer term.   
 
Should a decision be taken to close the toilet facility then a disposal options report 
will be submitted by Property Services which will also look at the potential of 
combining this property with adjacent landholdings to increase the level of capital 
receipt. 
 

 
 
6.11 
 
6.12 

(iv) Human Resources 
 
There are no staff implications relating to the closure of the two urinals. 
 
The proposed closure of St Peter at Arches if agreed will be taken into 
consideration in the ongoing Public Conveniences Service Review, and is 
expected to result in additional savings. Any resulting staffing implications will be 
subject to formal consultation with staff and unions and would be managed 
through the Council’s Management of Change process as a part of the Public 
Conveniences Service Review. 
 

7. Risk Implications 
 

 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(i)        Options Explored  
 
Monks Road 
 

1.   Re-Commission Facility – major works are required to rectify the broken 
drains (estimate (£5k - £10k) and even if repaired would still only provide a 
single sex, open air, facility. 

 
2.   Do Nothing – there will be ongoing minimal costs to inspect, maintain and 

insure the facility, however over time the fabric of the building will 
deteriorate. 

 
Stamp End 
 

1.   Re-Commission Facility – minimal works are required to reopen the facility 
but would still only provide a single sex, facility and the inappropriate and 
anti social behaviour is likely to return. 

 
2.   Do Nothing – there will be ongoing minimal costs to inspect, maintain and 

insure the facility, however over time the fabric of the building will 
deteriorate. 

107



 
7.3 

 
St Peter at Arches 
 

1. Improve Facility to Make Fully Accessible – this is not considered to be 
achievable at reasonable cost and even if it were the site and physical 
location of the toilets would still be unsatisfactory and it is suggested low 
usage and misuse would continue. 

2. Do Nothing – the toilets will continue to have severe access restrictions, be  
      the subject of abuse and misuse, and in the case of the ladies in 

particular, have a high cost per use. 
 

 
 
7.4 

(ii)        Key Risks Associated with the Preferred Approach 
 
1. Toilet facilities are being removed from the Council’s portfolio meaning a 

loss in provision and potential PR implications, however: 
 

• These toilet blocks have limited accessibility and limited facilities. 

• In the case of the two urinals they have been out of use for some time. 

• It is hoped that in the longer term St Peter at Arches will be replaced 
with a fully accessible, well equipped male and female facility in the city 
centre. 

 
 2. An initial equality analysis on the proposed closure of the St Peters at 

Arches facilities has been undertaken and is attached as Appendix A to this 
report. This will be further informed by the outcome of consultations on the 
proposed closure 

  
8. Recommendations  

 
8.1 
 

It is recommended that the Executive agree that: 
 

1. Stamp End and Monks Road urinals be decommissioned and be declared 
surplus to service requirements. 

 
2. Stamp End and Monks Road facilities be demolished and the ground 

reinstated to blend with the surrounding area at such a time when the 
necessary funding can be met from existing service budgets. 

 
3. A public consultation exercise be undertaken on the proposal to close St 

Peter at Arches toilets. 
 

4. A final decision on the closure of St Peter at Arches be delegated to the 
Director of Housing & Community Services in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder taking into account the outcome of public consultations. 

 
5. Should the closure of St Peter at Arches progress in line with the proposal, 

the Director of Resources’ Property Services Team be asked to provide an 
options paper for the future use or disposal of the building. 

 
 

Key Decision 
 

No 

Do the Exempt No 

108



Information Categories 
Apply 
 
Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which 
Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

No 

Does the report contain 
Appendices? 
 
 

Yes - one 
 
 

List of Background 
Papers: 
 

None. 

Lead Officer: Caroline Bird 
Telephone 873405 

 
 

109



110

This page is intentionally blank.



  

 

Equality with Human Rights Analysis Toolkit 
 
 
 
The Equality Act 2010 and Human Rights Act 1998 require us to consider the impact of our policies and practices in respect of 
equality and human rights. 
 
We should consider potential impact before any decisions are made or policies or practices are implemented. This analysis toolkit 
provides the template to ensure you consider all aspects and have a written record that you have done this. 
 
If you need any guidance or assistance completing your Equality and Human Rights Analysis contact: 
Alison Lewis (Equality and Diversity Officer) alison.lewis@lincoln.gov.uk or alternatively contact Legal Services on (01522 87)3840 
 
A diagram of the process you should follow is on page 2, and a glossary and guidance to help you complete the toolkit can be 
found on pages 6-9. 
 
Even after your policy, project or service has been implemented; it is recommended that analysis is undertaken every three years, 
and that this analysis is updated at any significant points in between. The purpose of any update is that the actual effects will only 
be known after the implementation of your policy, project or service. Additionally, area demographics could change, leading to 
different needs, alternative provision can become available, or new options to reduce an adverse effect could become apparent. 
 
 
Useful questions to consider when completing this toolkit 
1. What is the current situation? 
2. What are the drivers for change? 
3. What difference will the proposal make? 

APPENDIX A 

111



4. What are the assumptions about the benefits? 
5. How are you testing your assumptions about the benefits? 
6. What are the assumptions about any adverse impacts? 
7. How are you testing your assumptions about adverse impacts? 
8. Who are the stakeholders and how will they be affected? 
9. How are you assessing the risks and minimising the adverse impacts? 
10. What changes will the Council need to make as a result of introducing this policy / project / service / change? 
11. How will you undertake evaluation once the changes have been implemented? 
 

STEP BY STEP GUIDE TO EQUALITY ANALYSIS 
 
 

* Evidence could include information from consultations; voluntary group feedback; satisfaction and usage data (i.e. complaints, 
surveys, and service data); and reviews of previous strategies 
 
 

112



SECTION A 
 

Name of policy / project / service 
 
 
 

Public Toilets - Close St Peter at Arches Toilets 

Background and aims of policy / 
project / service at outset 
 
 
 
 

To improve the overall quality of public toilet provision.- removing poor quality facilities. 

Person(s) responsible for policy or 
decision, or advising on decision, 
and also responsible for equality 
analysis 
 

Executive, AMG,ARG. 

Key people involved i.e. decision-
makers, staff implementing it 
 
 
 
 

Executive, AMG,ARG, DHCS, AD- C&SS   

 
 

 
 
 

 

113



SECTION B 
This is to be completed and reviewed as policy / project / service development progresses 

 Is the likely effect positive or 
negative? (please tick all that 
apply) 

Please describe the effect and evidence 
that supports this?* 
 

Is action 
possible to 
mitigate 
adverse 
impacts? 

Details of action planned 
including dates, or why 
action is not possible 
 Positive Negative None 

Age 
 

 Yes  It is noted that the aged are likely to 
require to visit a toilet more often. The 
proposal removes access to public 
facilities in the St Peter at Arches area of 
the High Street.  
 
It is suggested that the genuine demand 
for the facilities is low, based on the 
footfall counts, and that therefore the 
impact is limited.  
 
 
The closure of St Peter at Arches toilets 
means that people will need to walk to the 
next nearest facilities, which are Sincil 
Street/ Bus Station. 
 
 

Yes At St Peter at Arches a full 
communications plan would 
support closure, ensuring 
that those who use these 
toilets would be aware well 
in advance and signposting 
to alternative toilets is put in 
place.  
A suitable lead in-time 
would be built into the 
implementation plan to 
provide opportunity for 
awareness building. 
 
 

Disability 
 

     Yes  It is noted that some people with 
disabilities are likely to require to visit a 
toilet more often. The proposal removes 
access to public facilities in the St Peter 

/NA At St Peter at Arches a full 
communications plan would 
support closure, ensuring 
that those who use these 

114



at Arches area of the High Street.  
 
It is suggested that the demand for the 
facilities is low, based on the footfall 
counts, and that therefore the impact is 
limited.  
 
It should be noted that the ladies toilets 
are not fully accessible, being accessed 
by around 30 steps.    
 
  
The closure of St Peter at Arches toilets 
means that people will need to walk to the 
next nearest facilities, which are Sincil 
Street/ Bus Station. 
 

toilets would be aware well 
in advance and signposting 
to alternative toilets is put in 
place.  
  
A suitable lead in-time 
would be built into the 
implementation plan to 
provide opportunity fro 
awareness building. 
Closure of these toilets is 
part of a longer term 
strategy to provide fully 
accessible toilets in the city 
centre. 
 

Gender re-
assignment 

 No   /NA  

Pregnancy 
and maternity 

    Yes  It is noted that the pregnant ladies are 
likely to require to visit a toilet more often. 
The proposal removes access to public 
facilities in the St Peter at Arches area of 
the High Street. It should also be noted 
that many new mothers cannot use the 
facilities as they are, as they are not able 
to accessing toilets with a pushchair. 
 
It is suggested that the demand for the 

/NA At St Peter at Arches a full 
communications plan would 
support closure, ensuring 
that those who use these 
toilets would be aware well 
in advance.  
A suitable lead in-time 
would be built into the 
implementation plan to 
provide opportunity fro 

115



facilities is low, based on the footfall 
counts, and that therefore the impact is 
limited.  
 
 
The closure of St Peter at Arches toilets 
means that people will need to walk to the 
next nearest facilities, which are Sincil 
Street/ Bus Station. 
 
 
 
 

awareness building. 
 
Closure of these toilets is 
part of a longer term 
strategy to provide fully 
accessible toilets in the city 
centre. 
 

Race 
 

 No   /NA  

Religion or 
belief 

 No   /NA  

Sex 
 

 No   /NA  

Sexual 
orientation 

 No   /NA  

Marriage / 
civil 
partnership 

 No   /NA  

Human 
Rights 
(see page 8) 

 

No 
  

/NA 
 

* Evidence could include information from consultations; voluntary group feedback; satisfaction and usage data (i.e. complaints, 
surveys, and service data); and reviews of previous strategies 

116



Did any information 
gaps exist? 

Y/N/NA If so what were they and what will you do to fill these? 

The usage is based on 
actual recorded footfall. 
It therefore measures 
quantity of use, and 
takes no account of the 
extent to which people 
value the facilities more 
generally, or their ability 
to access the 
alternatives.  
 
 

Y If a decision is taken to close the toilets in principle, then a public consultation exercise 
would be undertaken, providing opportunity for individuals to provide detailed 
comments. These would be considered prior to any final decision on closure.  

 

117



SECTION C 
Decision Point - Outcome of Assessment so far: 

 
Based on the information in section B, what is the decision of the responsible officer (please select one option below): 
                                                                                                                                                                                                             

•        No equality or human right Impact (your analysis shows there is no impact) -  sign assessment below                        
                  [  ]    

•        No major change required (your analysis shows no potential for discrimination, harassment)- sign assessment below          [  ]  

•        Adverse Impact but continue (record objective justification for continuing despite the impact)-complete sections below 
               [ x ] 

•        Adjust the policy (Change the proposal to mitigate potential effect) -progress below only AFTER changes made               [  ]  

•        Put Policy on hold (seek advice from the E&D officer as adverse effects cant be justified or mitigated) -STOP progress                

[  ] 
 
Conclusion of Equality Analysis 
(describe objective justification for 
continuing) 
 
 

Possible adverse impact for some categories, but having measured footfall both summer and winter 
figures show the impact will be limited.  
 
Customer numbers were assessed prior to the toilets service lean review in 2012. This showed that, 
during one week in January, there were 19,449 visits to the Council’s city centre public toilets. 
Around 2,800 of those visits were to the St Peter at Arches gents facility, but only 218 were to the 
ladies (31 per day) 
A further count was carried out during the summer (August) and whilst numbers had predictably 
increased during that busier period, still only 492 visitors were recorded at the ladies toilets in a 
week (70 per day). For comparison Westgate had 966 users, and Castle Hill 2373 in the same 
period. 
 
The low numbers appear to be related to both the lack of accessibility of the ladies facility (requiring 
a climb of more than 30 steps) and the location of the facility, along a passageway which is also the 
access to the problematic gents toilets. 

118



 
Furthermore, whilst the numbers using the gents facility is much higher, both the Council and 
Lincolnshire Police are aware of abuse and misuse of these toilets. It is suggested that a number of 
visitors to St Peter at Arches gents are not using the toilets for their intended purpose. 
 
An outcome of the Lean Review was a request to consider whether the St Peter at Arches toilets 
should remain open, given their relatively low usage (particularly in the case of the ladies) and 
therefore high cost per use, lack of accessibility, and their ongoing misuse. 

 
When and hw will you review and 
measure the impact after 
implementation?* 
 
 

Customer and staff feedback. Unit meetings. 

 
Checked and approved by 
responsible officer(s) 
(Sign and Print Name) 

Shane Harrison Date 11/1/2013 

Checked and approved by Assistant 
Director 
(Sign and Print Name) 

Steve Bird Date 19.3.14 
(following consultation with 
Policy/E&D unit staff) 

 
 

When completed, please send to info.equality@lincoln.gov.uk and include in Committee Reports which are to be sent to the relevant 
officer in Democratic Services 
The Equality and Human Rights Commission guidance to the Public Sector Equality Duty is available via: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/new-public-sector-equality-duty-guidance/ 

 
 

119



120

T
his page is intentionally blank.



EXECUTIVE 16 JUNE 2014 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
SELECTIVE BUY BACK POLICY FOR FORMER COUNCIL 
HOUSING  
 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND  COMMUNITY SERVICES 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

PAULA BURTON, HOUSING QUALITY & PERFORMANCE TEAM 
LEADER 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To seek the Executive’s views on the adoption of a discretionary and selective 

policy for the buying back of former Council properties where acquisition of the 
property would meet particular housing needs and represent value for money. 
 

2. Executive Summary     
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
2.5 

Under the latest Right to Buy (RTB) regulations owners of former council housing 
purchased under the RTB must, if they wish to re sell their property within ten 
years of their initial purchase, offer it to their former landlord (the Council), or 
another social landlord.  
 
The Council currently has a policy of not buying back any properties previously 
sold at discount under the RTB but, in cases of financial hardship, owners of such 
property have the right to appeal to the Housing Appeals Panel.  To date no 
appeal has been approved. 
 
Over the last few years more former Council properties have been placed on the 
sales market and many of these have been in private ownership for in excess of 
ten years which mean that the owners do not need to offer the property to the 
Council. 
 
Some of these properties are of the size and are located in areas of high demand 
from households on the housing waiting list where the availability of properties in 
the council housing stock of the particular type and size is limited.   
 
One option in providing more affordable housing (as an alternative and in addition 
to developing a programme of building new council housing) would be to consider 
selective purchasing of former RTB properties when they come onto the market 
subject to a case by case consideration of price, market value, condition (including 
costs of any renovation works to bring up to the Decent Homes Standard), location 
and housing need and demand.  However when such properties become available 
on the private housing market officers need to be able to work at the pace of the 
market if they are to secure additional properties to supplement the council 
housing property portfolio.  
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 A secure tenant’s Right To Buy (RTB) their home was formally introduced in Part I 

Item No. 10

121



 of the Housing Act 1980 and was subsequently incorporated into Part V of the 
Housing Act 1985.  The Act introduced regulations regarding qualifying periods, 
exceptions, discounts applicable and timescales for the process. 
 

3.2 
 

All properties sold under the RTB are valued at market value and sold at a 
prescribed RTB discount to that market value. The discount increases up to a 
maximum percentage the longer the applicant has been a tenant.  The latest RTB 
regulations were introduced on 1 April 2012 under the current governments 
“Rejuvenated RTB Scheme” when the maximum discount was raised to £75,000, 
subject to a maximum RTB discount cap of 70% of the market value. 
 

3.3 
 

Should the owner subsequently choose to sell the property within 10 years of 
completing the purchase of it from the Council they must offer the property back to 
the Council to determine if the Council wish to buy it back.  Should the sale take 
place within the first 5 years of their ownership they must also repay a percentage 
of the RTB discount they received. 
 

4. The City Council’s current housing stock 
 

4.1 As at 29th January 2014 the City Council had a housing stock of 7882 properties.  
This is made up of: 

• 3,715 flats 
o 2788 one bedroom, 
o 892 two bedroom,  
o 35 three bedroom  

• 4,167 bungalows and houses  
o 345 one bedroom,  
o 1,934 two bedroom 
o 1,759 three bedroom 
o 127 four or more bedroom   

 
5. Current housing need & demand  

 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

At 28th February 2014 the current demand for each property (by size) was as 
follows: 
 

Number of bedrooms Total households on the 
waiting list 

Households broken 
down by band (priority) 
 

One 1420 Band 1 – 36 
Band 2 – 142 
Band 3 – 774 
Band 4 – 468 

Two 797 Band 1 – 44 
Band 2 – 234 
Band 3 – 128 
Band 4 – 391 

Three 297 Band 1 – 17 
Band 2 – 110 
Band 3 – 33 
Band 4 – 137 

Four 48 Band 1 – 7 

122



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Band 2 – 18 
Band 3 – 8 
Band 4 – 15 

Five 9 Band 1 – 2 
Band 2 – 4 
Band 4 – 3 

Six 3 Band 1 – 2 
Band 2 – 1 

 

 
5.2 
 

 
The above figures do not take into account housing need or demand by property 
type (flat, houses, bungalow) or by particular location.  For example the Council 
has a stock of only 116 four bedroom houses which do not become vacant and 
available for re-let very often and although there are only 48 households on the 
waiting list in need of such accommodation currently living in overcrowded 
accommodation this results in long waiting times – particularly in certain locations. 
In the last municipal year only four 4 bedroom properties became available for 
letting and at that re-let rate it would take the best part of 24 years to re-house 
those currently on the waiting list for such properties. 
 

6. Former Right to Buy properties  
 

6.1 
 

A snapshot of properties on the sales market in January 2014 shows that the 
current average asking price (which is not necessarily the same as the sale price) 
for the Council’s former properties sold under the RTB are as follows: 
 
1 bedroom properties  - £67,590 
2 bedroom properties  - £96,691 
3 bedroom house       - £106,556 
4 bedroom house       - £122,450 
 

6.2 
 

Appendix A contains the list of former Council owned properties for sale at the 
time of compiling this report. 
 

7. Strategic Priorities  
 

 
 
7.1 

(i) Increasing the supply of affordable housing 
 
Changes to the council housing finance system in April 2012 means that the City 
Council now has the resources to develop a programme of building new council 
housing to help meet demand for affordable rented accommodation but the total 
resources available are limited by a “borrowing cap” on the Housing Revenue 
Account. The Council could consider introducing a limited and selective “buy back” 
policy for properties previously sold under the RTB to supplement the new council 
house building programme in helping meet need and demand for council housing 
and assist in meeting the Council’s strategic plan objective of delivering more 
affordable housing. Such a policy would assist in supplementing the Council’s 
council house building programme – particularly where there is a shortage of land 
in particular areas of high need to enable the building of new council housing. 
 
 
 
 

123



8. Organisational Impacts  
 

 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.2 

(ii) Finance  
 
Any purchase would require the purchase price and any associated costs e.g. 
Surveyor fees, legal fees etc being met from resources contained within the 
Housing Investment Programme (HIP) and/or met from the Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA), via a Direct Revenue Financing (DRF) contribution.  However, a 
‘buy-back’ transaction, as this would be, will generate a contribution of up to 50% 
of the cost through a reduction in the amount of Right to Buy receipts that the 
Council has to pay to DCLG in accordance with their current ‘Pooling of Capital 
Receipts’ regulations. 
 
All Council dwellings are subject to the secure tenant’s Right to Buy, even new 
dwellings and any that may be purchased under a “Buy Back Policy” However, the 
‘cost floor’ rules prevent properties from being sold for less than the investment 
made in the property.  This protection of the Council’s investment lasts for 15 
years.   The whole life costs would need to be considered on an individual property 
by property basis taking into account value, negotiated purchase price, cost of any 
refurbishment works & ongoing repairing responsibilities and rental income. 
 

 
 
8.3 

(ii) Legal Implications including Procurement Rules  
 
The Council’s Legal Services Team would be used for conveyancing, the cost of 
which would be contained within existing resources.  The Council could determine 
that the seller should meet the Council’s legal costs in purchasing the property 
(which may be offset by savings to the seller in not having to pay estate agents 
fees for marketing the property). 
 

 
 
8.4 

(iii) Land, property and accommodation 
 
The Directorate of Housing & Community Services Investment Team would carry 
out an inspection of any property being considered for purchase to determine any 
costs that may be incurred to bring the property up to the Decent Homes 
Standard.  If the property is considered suitable to buy the Director of Resources’ 
Property Services Team would be asked to value and negotiate a purchase price 
for the property. 
 

 
 
8.5 

(iv) Equality, Diversity & Human Rights  
 
Increasing the Council’s housing portfolio reflecting the local needs and demand 
(e.g. for larger accommodation, bungalows or property that is or could be readily 
adapted) would help to provide suitable accommodation for larger families and 
disabled people with specific needs. 
 

9. Risk Implications 
 

 
 
9.1 

(i)        Options Explored  
 
The option of introducing a Selective Buy Back Policy is just one of a range of 
options the Council can use to increase the supply of affordable housing.  Such a 
policy if approved would supplement the new council house building programme 

124



and partnership working with other social housing providers to provide additional 
low cost affordable housing in the city. 
 

 
 
9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3 

(ii)        Key risks associated with the preferred approach 
 
The risks associated with this initiative are minimal and it is proposed that the 
Director of Housing & Community Services be given delegated authority in 
consultation with the Director of Resources to negotiate and approve any such 
purchases on a case by case basis taking into account the price, market value, 
condition (including costs of any renovation works to bring up to the Decent 
Homes Standard), location and need and demand for the particular type and 
location of the individual property. 
 
The City Council cannot exclude any property purchased under a Selective Buy 
Back Policy (or indeed any new build property) from future Right To Buy. In 
considering the option to purchase the Council will need to take into account the 
whole life costs including the cost floor determination and the risk of a future 
tenant seeking to exercise their individual Right to Buy.  
 

10. Recommendation  
 

10.1 
 

Executive is recommended to approve a Selective Buy Back Policy and that:  
 

1. Officers consider the benefit to the Council of purchasing a former Council 
dwelling, on an individual property by property basis when either 

a. an owner is required to offer the property back to the Council i.e. if 
the sale takes place within ten years of the initial RTB sale, or 

b. a property is placed on the open market, after the ten years have 
elapsed 

 
2. The Director of Housing and Community Services be given delegated 

authority, in consultation with the Director of Resources, to consider and 
approve the terms for purchase of former Right to Buy properties on an 
individual property by property basis taking into account value, negotiated 
purchase price, cost of any refurbishment works & ongoing repairing 
responsibilities and future rental income. 

 
  
Key Decision 
 

No 
 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply? 
 

No 
 

Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which Rule 
15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

No 

How many appendices 
does the report contain? 
 

1 – list of former RTB properties for sale 
 

125



 
List of Background 
Papers: 
 

None. 

Lead Officer: Paula Burton/Denis Powell  Telephone 873572 
 

126



Appendix A 
 
Properties for Sale  
 
Address Area Property Type Bedrooms Market Price 

Scott Gardens St Giles House 2 £70,000 

St Botolphs 

Crescent 

City Centre Flat 1 £65,000 

Rolleston Close Ermine East House 3 £145,950 

Sudbrooke Drive Ermine East House 3 £79,950 

Woodfield 

Avenue 

Birchwood House 2 £109,950 

Fairfax Street Bracebridge House 2 £90,000 

Grainsby Close Boultham Bungalow 3 £69,950 

Camwood 

Crescent 

Birchwood House 2 £110,000 

Woodfield 

Avenue 

Birchwood House 3 £146,950 

Clematis 

Approach 

Birchwood House 3 £125,000 

Laughton Way 

North 

Ermine East House 2 £108,000 

Hemswell 

Avenue 

Hartsholme House 3 £120,000 

Dellfield Avenue Birchwood House 2 £104,950 

Hemswell 

Avenue 

Hartsholme House 2 £123,950 

Cross Street City Centre House 2 £80,000 

Woodfield 

Avenue 

Birchwood House 3 £139,950 

St Hugh Street Stamp End House 2 £84,950 

Tower Gardens Tower House 4 £130,000 

Ashtons Court City Centre Flat 1 £78,000 

Fairfax Street Bracebridge House 2 £110,000 

Keadby Close Hartsholme House 2 £99,950 

Snowberry 

Gardens 

Birchwood House 3 £85,950 

Lakeview Road Boultham House 3 £95,000 

Tower Avenue Tower House 4 £114,950 

Hermit Street City Centre Flat 1 £60,000 

Moorland 

Avenue 

Boultham House 4 £137,500 

Browning Dr. St Giles House 4 £100,000 

Browning Dr. St Giles House 4 £122,250 

Woodfield 

Avenue 

Birchwood House 3 £149,950 

127



Browning Drive St Giles House 2 £84,950 

Dellfield Avenue Birchwood House 4 £130,000 

Sheridan Close St Giles Flat 2 £67,500 

Gibson House Ermine East Flat 1 £65,000 

Baywood Close Birchwood House 3 £99,950 

De Wint Avenue Boultham House 3 £120,000 

Fairfax Street Bracebridge House 2 £90,000 

Keddington 

Avenue 

Ermine West House 2 £95,000 

Cross Street City Centre Flat 2 £119,950 

Anderby Drive Hartsholme House 2 £120,000 

Syringa Green Birchwood Flat 2 £79,950 

Ruskin Avenue St Giles House 3 £119,950 

Larchwood 

Crescent 

Birchwood House 2 £99,950 

Cross Street City Centre House 3 £100,000 

Shannon Avenue Boultham House 2 £100,000 

Birchwood 

Avenue 

Birchwood House 3 £154,950 

Prial Avenue Boultham House 2 £62,500 

Cannon Street Stamp End Flat 1 £69,950 

Laughton Way 

North 

Ermine East House 2 £124,950 

Prial Avenue Boultham House 2 £62,500 

Constable 

Avenue 

Boultham House 2 £109,950 

Snowberry 

Gardens 

Birchwood House 2 £80,000 

Westwick Drive Boultham House 3 £89,950 

De Wint Avenue Boultham House 3 £124,500 

Woodfield 

Avenue 

Birchwood House 3 £139,950 

Syringa Green Birchwood Flat 2 £89,500 

Hemswell 

Avenue 

Hartsholme House 2 £123,950 

Dellfield Avenue Birchwood House 2 £104,950 

 

128



EXECUTIVE  16 JUNE 2014  
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

MUNICIPAL HOUSE BUILDING PROGRAMME: RESOURCES 
& STRATEGIC OPTIONS 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY SERVICES 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

JOHN BIBBY, DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
1.1 To report on the resources available within the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

for the Council’s municipal house building programme and consider the strategic 
options available to the Council to maximise the supply of affordable housing for 
rent; including the option of building “outside the HRA”. 
 

2. Executive summary    
 

2.1 Changes to the system of financing council housing introduced in April 2012 under 
the so called “self-financing” arrangements opened up the opportunity for councils 
to build new council housing – something that had not been possible (and indeed 
had not been encouraged) under the former council housing finance system.   
 

2.2 The opportunity to build new council housing is limited to the amount of financial 
“headroom” in the “ HRA debt cap” (the HRA debt cap is the total amount that 
councils can borrow against the rental income stream) when existing borrowing 
and the need to fund investment in the existing housing stock to maintain the 
Decent Homes Standard is taken into account. 
 

2.3 In the City Council’s case the HRA debt cap prescribed by Government under the 
self-financing settlement is £66.016million and in the Council’s 2012 HRA 
Business Plan the Council was able to commit £5.25million against the borrowing 
headroom to develop a new council house building programme over the first 7 
years of the plan.  This level of resource was expected to deliver around 50 new 
council housing for rent over the period and the City Council has so far developed 
2 new housing schemes at Wellington Street and Stapleford Court. 
 

2.4 The 2012 HRA 30 year Business Plan identified that during the final 10 years of 
the business planning period projected resources available for investment are 
anticipated to be significantly higher than anticipated capital expenditure needs on 
the existing stock leading to significant resources being available for new council 
house building and other investment towards the later end of the programme.  The 
HRA Business Plan identified that in order to release resources in the short to 
medium term to undertake further improvements in the existing stock (over and 
above the Decent Homes Standard) and/or invest in new council housing the City 
Council would need to: 

• Ensure that a robust asset management plan is in place for the council 
housing stock 

Item No. 11

129



• Drive out efficiencies in operating costs 

• Look to maximise income streams available to the HRA – including the 
setting of rents in accordance with the Government’s Social Rent Policy and 
Rent Guidelines. 

 
2.5 By effective business planning and asset management the Council has been able 

to increase that headroom to £7.491million at 31 March 2014 of which 
£4.860million is already allocated to the existing new build programme budget, 
and can now  release (i.e. bring forward in the Business Plan) of a total of 
£15.070million for investment in new council housing over the next 6 years – 
without detriment to the investment required in the existing stock to meet the 
Decent Homes Standard and other associated works. 
 

2.6 Based on utilising the Council’s own land and at current development costs of 
circa £113,000 per dwelling this increased level of investment would enable the 
provision of 133 new council dwellings for rent at social rents although this could 
increase to up to 150 dwellings depending on dwelling type and procurement 
arrangements. 
  

2.7 This report examines the high level strategic options available to the City Council 
to maximise the supply of affordable housing for rent; including the option of 
building “outside the HRA”. 
 

3. The HRA New Build Programme in Context 
 

3.1 
 

The City Council has developed 2 small new build schemes to date on small infill 
sites (a former car park and a former garage site) owned by the City Council – to 
minimise any additional costs in land purchase: 

• Wellington Street – 5 dwellings 

• Stapleford Court – 5 dwellings 
 

3.2 These small “brownfield” infill sites are relatively costly to develop and the 
development costs per dwelling have been as follows: 

• Wellington Street -  £522,977 (Av £104,595 per dwelling) 

• Stapleford Court  -  £604,824 (Av £113,164 per dwelling) 
 

3.3 
 

If the City Council can reduce the unit cost of developing new housing it can 
obviously build more dwellings.  For example if the Council could reduce the unit 
cost of development to say £85,000 per dwelling for the total resources available 
of £15.070million it could develop 176 dwellings and achieve a higher rental yield 
which in turn would assist in sustaining the HRA Business Plan.  However lower 
unit costs can only be achieved, for example, through: 

• Developing larger numbers of dwellings on larger sites  

• Continuing to develop on existing Council owned HRA land to avoid land 
acquisition costs (However the City Council has very few large sites in its 
ownership with the exception of land in the Western Growth Corridor) 

• Building smaller, higher density dwellings (flats and apartments as 
opposed to houses) 

• Developing to a lower design standard (e.g.  Building Regulation standards 
as opposed to the higher Code for Sustainable Homes Standard) 

• Achieving economies of scale by developing smarter procurement options 

130



(e.g. in partnership with other local authorities).  
 

3.4 The new build programme must also be set within the wider context of the HRA 
Business Plan and the fact that, with few exceptions, all existing and any new build 
council housing is subject to the Right To Buy (RTB). Although the City Council 
has built 10 new homes since April 2012 (the first new council housing 
developments to be built since 1990) during that period the Council has been 
forced to sell 60 properties under the RTB – a net loss to the Council’s rented 
housing stock of 50 dwellings in the period. In the meantime the housing waiting 
list for council housing continues to grow with 2775 households currently in the 
waiting list. 
 

3.5 Any new general needs housing built in the HRA will be subject to the tenants’ 
Right To Buy but the “cost floor determination” means that for the first 15 years the 
discounted RTB sale price cannot fall below the cost of provision – even if the 
tenants personal RTB discount off the market valuation would otherwise reduce 
the discounted RTB sale price to below this figure. However for as long as the 
RTB remains a statutory right there is a long term risk that RTB sales of new 
houses and loss of rental income for houses built under the Council House 
Building Programme could have a negative impact on the viability of the new build 
programme. The only way to mitigate this risk would be to build “outside the HRA” 
(see section 4.4 below) or, at least in the short term, to build homes that are 
exempt from the RTB. 
     

4. Strategic Options 
 

4.1 The issue for the City Council in taking forward any significant municipal new build 
housing programme over the next 6 years is how to: 

• Provide as many additional homes as possible for the £15.070million 
available resources in the HRA Business Plan 

• Minimise the future loss of rental income as a result of the impact of the 
RTB. 

 
4.2 In responding to these challenges the City Council has two main strategic options: 

• Building “inside the HRA”    

• Building “outside the HRA”; or 

• A combination of both 
 

 (i) Building “inside the HRA” 
 

4.3 Essentially this option would see the Council continue to develop “traditional 
council housing” funded entirely from internal resources, such as capital receipts 
and revenue contributions from the HRA supplemented by borrowing within the 
HRA debt cap supported by the rental income stream. The RTB receipts retained 
under the “1 for 1” retention scheme must be used to build replacement housing 
under the conditions of the RTB receipts retention agreement with the Department 
of Communities & Local Government. 

• Governance and control would be exercised through the Council’s 
Executive as per the existing council housing stock. Ownership of the 
properties would remain with the City Council. 

• Regulation would be through the existing Regulatory Framework.  

• Rents would be fixed in accordance with the Governments Social Rent 

131



Policy (Formula Rent) In Lincoln’s case formula rents equate to around 60-
65% of market rents. 

• The number of properties built and financed would be limited by the amount 
the Council could borrow up to the HRA debt cap 

• Rental income would accrue to the HRA and any borrowing costs would be 
charged to the HRA and financed by the council house rental income 
stream. 

• Tenancies would be let on Secure Tenancies and tenants would have full 
security of tenure as council tenants 

• The properties built would be eligible for sale to sitting tenants under the 
RTB subject to the “cost floor determination” 

 
 (ii) Building “outside the HRA” – emerging partnership models 

 
4.4 A small but increasing number of councils are looking to build “outside the HRA” 

and there are various models coming forward most of which depend on borrowing 
through the local authority’s General Fund and/or putting in local authority assets 
(usually land) to some form of partnership or development company model (of 
which there are various types) through which additional borrowing or private 
finance can be accessed. The key elements to building outside the HRA may be 
summarised as follows: 

• Governance and control would be exercised through the Board of the 
development company. Ownership of the properties would vest in the 
development company although may revert to the Council in the long term 
(usually 25-30 years) depending on the model and the assets put into the 
company by the Council. 

• Regulation would not necessarily be through the existing Regulatory 
Framework unless the development company intended to access public 
(HCA) funds and become a Registered Provider of Social Housing (RP) 

• Rents would require to be set at higher “affordable rent” levels (usually 80% 
of market rents) and any development may need to include elements of 
market renting to secure a sufficient rental income stream to support the 
borrowing. 

• The number of properties built and financed is not limited by the HRA debt 
cap but by prudential borrowing determined by the development model, 
projected rental income stream, borrowing costs and management & 
maintenance costs 

• Rental income would not accrue to the HRA but to the development 
company. 

• Tenancies would be let on Assured Shorthold Tenancies to nominations 
from the Council’s housing waiting list but management and maintenance 
could be contracted to be delivered by the Council. 

• The homes built would not be subject to the RTB. 
 

4.5 The various emerging models for building outside the HRA are examined in outline 
in section 5 of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 

132



5. Building outside the HRA 
 

 (i) Partnership models 
 

5.1 At a national level the key to enable councils to build more council housing is to 
remove the HRA debt cap that currently limits HRA borrowing and through the 
Association of Council Housing the Council will continue to make this case to 
government.  Nationally it has been estimated that stock retained councils have 
the financial capacity to support an additional £20-25billion investment from 
planned rental income alone without any external subsidy and giving councils 
explicit powers to build for sale and market rent within the HRA would enable them 
to use the financial strength of the HRA asset to spread the associated risks and 
cross-subsidise social housing from surpluses earned. There is a strong argument 
for changing government borrowing rules to exclude HRA borrowing for 
investment in housing from controls imposed on general government borrowing 
bringing the UK into line with international practice. However there is no indication 
at this stage, within the current austerity measures, that the Government will relax 
borrowing constraints by lifting the HRA debt cap. 

  
5.2 As well as starting to build again in the HRA, councils are beginning to explore a 

variety of arrangements to circumnavigate the HRA debt cap and provide new 
housing “outside the HRA”, including local authority companies and partnerships 
of various types with private sector and housing association partners. These 
arrangements have a role to play but they are acknowledged to be legally complex 
and carry a financial overhead in their set up and management. These 
arrangements come in a variety of forms but have a number of features in 
common.  
 

5.3 They involve a partnership or joint venture between a council and one or more 
partners, typically a developer and sometimes a housing association – sometimes 
an institutional investor. The council contributes land and sometimes access to 
borrowing through the General Fund and shares the risks (and benefits) of 
developing the land for housing.  A recent LGA report “supporting housing 
investment: A case study guide”  identified the following types of model: 

• Local Housing Company (LHC) – a form of joint venture between a council 
and private developer. 

• Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) – council provides the land, private sector 
developer partner provides finance and carries risk; dwellings provided on 
long lease so that land may eventually revert back to the council. 

• Local Asset Backed Vehicle (LABV)  – council provides land, partner 
provides finance and skills and capacity to deliver 

• Joint Venture Company (JVC) – council and private commercial venture; 
council provides land, partner provides funding; risk and rewards shared 
between partners 

• Institutional Investment   - financial model to attract long term institutional 
investment. Council usually provides the land to increase viability of model.  
Investor requires minimum rate of return on capital 

  
5.4 All of these partnership arrangements involve formal long-term partnerships or the 

establishment of some form of development company in which the council is 
normally a minority shareholder depending on the agreement regarding the level 
of risk and rewards of development to be shared appropriately between the 

133



partners.  Most models rely on a degree of “cross-subsidy” in provided homes for 
sale, including shared ownership, or letting at market or sub-market rents. Several 
local housing companies have been designated as Registered Providers allowing 
them to access Social Housing Grant from the Homes & Communities Agency 
(HCA). 

  
5.5 All examples rely on the council contributing land it already owns and whilst such 

models are beginning to develop new homes they are likely to be less attractive to 
smaller authorities looking at smaller sites and programmes where the cost of 
opening up small sites for development coupled with the set up and overhead 
costs may form a significant obstacle.  Most of the successful models developed 
so far have been in the south and south east of England where high land values, 
increasing market values and high rent levels have underpinned the viability of the 
models. 
 

5.6 Prospects for setting up a similar model in Lincoln to develop housing “outside the 
HRA” will be limited by the value and extent of land that the council owns and is 
willing to put into such arrangements and the willingness of private partners to 
invest in housing development and the rate of return they expect on their 
investment against rental income streams that can be achieved at local rent levels 
and local market prices that can be realised on any housing built for sale. 
 

5.7 Set up and governance costs associated with these partnerships can be 
substantial and the associated legal issues are complex and will require specialist 
advice and support as illustrated by the following comments from 2 authorities who 
have so far pioneered these types of partnership: 

• Barking & Dagenham – “setting up a partnership with an institutional 
investor takes time and money. It takes longer and is more complicated 
than using traditional forms of borrowing such as the Public Works Loan 
Board” 

• Barton Oxford LLP – “A joint venture requires resourcing by the council. 
Oxford have committed a lot of time to the partnership and other councils 
considering this approach will need to think about the demands on officer 
and member time. The skills and commercial experience needed to set up a 
successful joint venture will also be critical to the process.” 

 
However the City Council does have some experience in setting up partnership 
models of this type (albeit not on this scale) as exampled by the establishment of 
the Investors In Lincoln partnership. 
  

 (ii) Local authority-controlled companies 
5.8 A number of councils have set up arms-length companies that they wholly own or 

control to develop housing for sale or rent – sometimes in conjunction with the 
development of commercial properties.   
 

5.9 Housing provided under this type of arrangement is outside the HRA and, if let, is 
let on assured tenancies. Such housing companies are classed as a trading 
activity which generally means that the councils can only do it through a company, 
however the set up and operating costs of such companies can be much lower 
than those of a joint venture with a private partner, particularly where the council is 
the only shareholder. However any borrowing by a wholly owned council company 
would count as public borrowing and in effect form part of the council’s overall 

134



General Fund borrowing and subject therefore to prudential guidelines. However 
because it is outside the HRA, it is not subject to the strict debt caps imposed on 
HRA borrowing. The risks, however, rest entirely with the council and need to be 
considered carefully – especially given the overall constraints on public sector 
financing in the General Fund. 
 

5.10 Housing developed by the company could draw on the management expertise of 
the council’s mainstream council housing landlord services to provide a cost 
effective management and maintenance service to the company.  
 

5.11 The risks associated with both the partnership models and the housing company 
model could be mitigated by having in reserve the option of using the HRA 
borrowing headroom to acquire a proportion of the new homes through the HRA to 
add to the council housing stock if market conditions make this advisable. 
 

6. Municipal House-building Programme: Proposed way forward 
 

6.1 Taking into account the debt cap and limitations on building inside the HRA and 
having regard to the emerging models for building outside the HRA as 
summarised in this report I would recommend the following strategy as a way 
forward: 

• Executive should at this stage commit £10m of the £15m HRA resources 
currently available for continuation of the council house building 
programme and earmark the balance for future schemes (possibly 
supporting building outside the HRA). £10m could provide some 100 plus 
dwellings depending on type and sites. 

• The next phase of the council house building programme should focus on 
developing a comprehensive suite of small and medium size schemes of 
sheltered housing & warden assisted bungalows and flats for older people 
and the disabled.  Such dwellings are likely to be exempt from the RTB and 
the Council should prioritise the letting of such properties to existing council 
tenants under-occupying family accommodation in the existing council 
housing stock to free up such accommodation for family households on the 
waiting list. 

• The Council should continue its undertaking with Procurement Lincolnshire 
to enter into a collaborative procurement arrangement with other local 
councils via Procurement Lincolnshire to maximise the savings in 
procurement costs. This process will develop a standard specification for 
the design and build based on achieving the highest level (A rated) energy 
efficiency for the dwellings to minimise energy costs for tenants.  

• A detailed programme be submitted to the next meeting of the Executive 
identifying the specific sites to be included in the programme and the 
dwelling types to be built on each site.  

• The Housing & Community Services Directorate undertake further research 
on the level of under-occupation amongst existing council tenants age 60+ 
in order to identify the specific need & demand to let the dwellings on a site 
by site basis. 

• The Council consider a limited selective RTB “buy back” scheme (and 
possibly even open market purchase) to meet the demand & need for 
larger 4/5 bedroom properties (see separate report on this proposal).     

  
6.2 Whilst developing this next phase of the council house building programme the 

135



Council should also commission further work, including if necessary the 
procurement of  external advice, to examine in more detail the options and models 
for building municipal housing for rent outside the HRA including the identification 
of the area(s) of land and other assets that could potentially be put into some form 
of partnership model/development company with a view to reporting in Autumn 
2014 on the detailed options and a preferred model for building outside the HRA.  
 

7. Strategic priorities  
 

7.1 The bringing forward of resources of £15.070million in the HRA Business Plan for 
investment in a programme of municipal housing will contribute to the City 
Council’s Strategic Plan priority of Increasing the Supply of Affordable Housing 
and Improving the Council’s Landlord Services. 
 

8. Organisational Impacts 
 

 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.2 

(i) Finance  
 
The resources to support increased investment in the council house building 
programme have been identified and brought forward within the 30-year HRA 
Business Plan and will be managed through the Housing Investment Programme.  
It may be necessary to appoint a specific contract manager within the Directorate’s 
Investment Team to oversee the commissioning and delivery of the contract(s) for 
an accelerated new build programme. Such costs would be charged as 
“professional fees” to the Housing Investment Programme in accordance with the 
value of the contracts managed. 
 
If the Council should decide to pursue the option of building municipal housing 
outside the HRA there may be a need to commission specialist legal and 
commercial advice which would need to be funded through the General Fund but 
there are not expected to be any immediate budgetary implications in exploring  
and reporting in more detail on these options. 
 

 
 
8.3 
 
 
 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.5 

(ii) Legal & Procurement Implications 
 
There are no immediate legal implications associated with the recommendations 
to accelerate the council house building programme however there would be 
significant workload implications for the Council’s Legal Services Team and a 
need to commission specialist legal advice if the option of setting up a 
development company was pursued. 
 
As with the legal implications above, there is no immediate procurement 
implication in respect of the setting up of a development partnership. However it 
should be noted that once a decision is made as to the preferred option there will 
be a considerable impact as the procuring of such a partner can take between 12-
18 months to put in place and given the complexity of the work it would require the 
use of external specialists. 
 
There is however the immediate procurement implications with regard to the 
implementation of the Procurement Lincolnshire collaborative arrangement. Whilst 
the procurement process will be managed by Procurement Lincolnshire there will 
be a considerable resource requirement on internal officer time to feed into the 

136



process. 
 

 
 
8.6 
 
 
8.7 

(iii) Equality, diversity & human rights 
 
The development of an increased council house building programme will assist 
those households identified as being in significant housing need. 
 
A copy of this report is to be presented for comment to the Lincoln Tenants Panel 
at its scheduled meeting on 11 June 2014 and any views and comments 
expressed by the Tenants Panel on the recommendations in this report will be 
reported verbally at the Executive meeting. 
 

9. Risk implications 
 

 
 
9.1 

(i)        Options explored  
 
This report recommends an outline strategy to accelerate the existing council 
house building programme and the risks associated with doing so will be managed 
through the Council’s HRA Business Plan. 
 

 
 
9.2 

(ii)        Key risks associated with the preferred approach 
 
There are potentially significant risks in pursuing the option of building outside the 
HRA through a partnership or local authority controlled company. These risks will 
be examined by the Short Life Working Group and will form part of any report and 
recommendations emerging from that Group. 
 

10. Recommendation  
 

10.1 
 

Executive is asked to approve the strategy for accelerating the council house 
building programme and exploring in more detail the option of building outside the 
HRA as set out in paragraphs 6.1 and 6.2 of this report. 

  
Is this a key decision? 
 

No 
 

Do the exempt information 
categories apply? 
 

No 
 

Does rule 15 of the scrutiny 
procedure rules (call-in and 
urgency) apply? 
 

No 

How many appendices does 
the report contain? 
 
 

0 

List of background papers: 
 

None 
 

 
Lead officer: John Bibby 
 

137



138

This page is intentionally blank.



EXECUTIVE  16 JUNE 2014  
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

LINCOLN CHRISTMAS MARKET FEES AND CHARGES 2014/15 

 
REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CLAIRE THOMPSON, PRINCIPAL EVENTS AND CULTURE 
OFFICER 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 For Executive to recommend to Council the proposed fees and charges for the 

2014 Lincoln Christmas Market attached as Appendix ‘A’. 
 

1.2 To make Executive aware of changes to the Christmas Market that will have a 
bearing on the overall amount of income that can be generated and therefore the 
budget for the event. 
 

2. Executive Summary 
 

2.1 The Christmas Market for 2013 was budgeted to make a trading surplus of £81k, 
the actual surplus generated was only £4k, a shortfall of £77k.  This was partially 
due to a £67k shortfall in income (£494k achieved against a budget of £561k). This 
was due mainly to a fall in stall income and coach bookings. The continued 
refurbishment of Lincoln Castle meant there were less stalls in this area and 
reduced income as a result. 
 

2.2 Appendix ‘A’ sets out the current and proposed Fees and Charges for 2014.  If 
the recommended 12% fees and charges increase were approved it is forecasted 
that stalls fees and charges would generate £316k.It is also recommended that the 
Park and Ride fees and charges remain the same as 2013; this would generate an 
estimated £115k.  Taking these recommendations into consideration and Including 
other income sources, i.e. coach parking, catering, this would result in estimated 
income of £476k for the 2014 event, against a budget of £554k, still leaving an 
estimated shortfall of £78k. 
 

2.3 The financial performance outturn report, appearing elsewhere on the Executive’s 
agenda, proposes the allocation of £90k from the 2013/14 General Fund under 
spend towards the funding of the 2014 Market.  The future financial requirements 
of the Market will be taken into consideration following the production of a 
Business Plan which is to be produced later this year. 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 The trading position of the Christmas Market for 2013 was budgeted to make a 
surplus of £81k; however the actual surplus achieved was only £4k, a shortfall of 
£77k. When taking into account central overhead costs, the 2013 Market was 
budgeted to have an overall cost to the Council of £16k; however the actual total 
cost £83k, a variance of £67k.The actual outturn position for the 2013 market is 

Item No. 12

139



shown below: 
 

  
Revised 
Budget 

Actual Variance 

  £ £ £ 
Employees           38,930            23,182          (15,748)  
Premises              7,430              4,679            (2,751)  
Transport                200                 976                 776  
Supplies and Services          168,290            75,560          (92,730)  

Third Party Payments          265,250  
         

385,590  
       

120,340  

Income 
       

(560,730)  
       

(493,783)            66,947  
Total Inside Cash Limit 
Budget         (80,630)            (3,796)            76,834  
        
Employees 0                 269                 269  
Supplies and Services           96,100            86,515            (9,585)  
Support Services                  30                    1                 (29)  
Total Outside Cash Limit 
Budget           96,130            86,785            (9,345)  

        

Total Overall           15,500            82,989            67,489  

 
 

3.2 
 

The income achieved from the market can be broken down across three major 
strands: 

• stall rental charges (estimated £307k based on 2013) 

• charges for visiting coaches (£25k based on 2013) 

• park and ride fees (£116k based on 2013) 
 

These charges are reviewed on an annual basis in advance of each year’s Market.  
In recent years the income generated from Park & Ride has remained consistent 
with a slight increase in the number of users in 2013 compared to 2012.  Coach 
numbers, on the other hand have declined over recent years and 2013 saw a 
significant decrease in the number of coaches visiting and therefore the income 
generated, despite an increase in fees. 
 
Council in March of this year approved an increase in coach fees combined with a 
number of early booking discounts designed to encourage coach numbers. 
 

3.3 
 

Stall income was fundamentally reviewed before the 2012 event and a number of 
changes made to the schedule of charges and the application of discounts.  
However, over the last two years we have seen a decline in the number of stalls at 
the event, and thus a decrease in the income generated.  Some of this decline 
may be the result of traders not being willing to pay the increases introduced in 
recent years but in 2013 a significant factor was the work at the Castle and as a  
consequence a loss of trading space, that same situation will apply in 2014. 
 

3.4 
 

As well as looking at income generation, officers have been undertaking a review 
of the costs of organising the event. This is reflected in Appendix B, showing both 
the outgoings for market infrastructure against the income for each zone of the 
market.  There have now been two rounds of event contract procurement, both of 

140



which have brought some savings (whilst some costs have increased) but the 
demands of organising a safe event have continued to drive up the overall cost. It 
is estimated that a revised layout, annual increase in venue hire and additional 
essential infrastructure (including additional lighting towers required as a result of 
the 2013 power cut) that running costs will increase by 8k. Some of the major cost 
elements are unaffected by any reduction in the number of stalls, for example 
stewarding and policing costs, which are driven by potential & actual visitor 
numbers. Both the loss of stalls and an increase in some of the infrastructure 
costs, is a key factor in the deficit in the overall budget in recent years.   
 

3.5 Officers have also considered what measures are necessary to maintain and 
develop the event to ensure we attract the visitor numbers that are essential to 
delivering the overall economic benefit.  As part of this we have also listened to 
feedback from visitors.  In 2013 we carried out a visitor survey in partnership with 
the University of Lincoln. As a result of feedback there are proposals for changes 
in 2014 to include greater use of wooden structures to replace small tented stalls & 
a different approach to entertainment.  Any such proposals will be the subject of a 
further report to the Executive in due course; there may however be further 
financial implications associated with these proposals. 
 

3.6 Officers are currently working on a 5-year Business Plan for the Market, taking into 
account the issues addressed above, which it is planned to have ready by the 
autumn of this year with options for changes from the 2015 event onwards.  
 

3.7 In addition to this already anticipated shortfall there is a further specific risk in 
relation to the 2014 event, that has been known about for a number of years, that 
will further impact on the number of stalls and the income generated. 
 
As Members will know the Lincoln Suite in the Lawn has been used as a trading 
area for a number of years and is a high net income generating area. Members will 
also be aware that the Council is currently in the process of marketing the Lawn 
site for disposals and as such the Lincoln Suite is unlikely to be available for 2014 
and future years’ markets.  The loss of this trading area also has a significant 
impact on the movement of visitors in the areas outside the Lawn and officers are 
currently working on revised layouts of the external stalls on the grassed areas. 
 
As a consequence there will be a further loss of potential stalls in 2014 resulting in 
a loss of net income of £24k. Any costs of changes to the layout are not currently 
known but we anticipate they will be minor. 
 

3.8 Taken into consideration all of the above without a change to fees and charges in 
excessive of the standard 3% assumed in the MTFS, the 2014 Market could face a 
shortfall against its income budgets of c£91k. 
 

4. Fees and Charges 
 

4.1 In the context outlined above, determining the Fees and Charges for 2014 has 
presented some challenges and as a result officers have considered a number of 
scenarios.   
 
A key consideration in determining the level of overall fee increase is the risk that 
too great an increase will actually deter some stallholders from attending the 

141



event, thus reducing the income generated but also the overall appeal of the event 
resulting in yet fewer visitors in future years.   
 

4.2 Officers have considered a variety of options to improve the economic viability of 
the Christmas Market. This includes; 

1) Raising fees and charges by 10% (including a contribution for infrastructure 
developments ) 

2) Raising fees and charges by 12% (including a contribution for infrastructure 
developments)  

3) Raising fees and charges by 14% (including a contribution for infrastructure 
developments)  

4) Raising fees and charges by 19% (including a contribution for infrastructure 
developments) 

5) Reducing or capping the discounts, and/or increasing surcharges for food 
traders, storage spaces, sockets, alcohol levy etc  

6) A combination of increasing the fees coupled with increasing surcharges 
and reducing discounts.  

 
Appendix C titled ‘stalls sensitivity analysis’ identifies the potential income from the 
proposed options 1-4 above. Forecasting the 2014 stallholders’ income based on 
the loss of The Lawn and on option 2 a 12% increase would result in income of 
£314k, an increase of only £6k from the 2013 event.  Even at option 4 a 19% 
increase would only achieve an additional £19k (in excess of the 12% options) and 
it would still be a significant shortfall against the budget. 
 

4.3 As set out above, under option 5, the council could also implement changes to the 
additional costs associated with the market; the following options have been 
considered: 
  

1) An increase to the ‘Corner Plot Premium’. This is currently charged at 20% 
of a standard stall. This could be increased to 25% or higher, and would 
generate approximately £1075 based on 18 number or corner plots. We 
would recommend this increase. 

2) An increase on additional socket outlets. Both 16 and 32 amp sockets are 
currently charged at £60.Providing a 32amp socket for electric could allow 
an additional charge. Currently traders do not have metered charges, and 
therefore a trader with high electric usage is paying the same as someone 
with low usage. This method would recoup some costs associated to the 
market. We would recommend this increase. 

3) An additional increase on the surcharge for Food Traders. At present this is 
split is as 50% and 100% on two separate schedules. Increasing both to 
100%, or further 125% of stalls hire would generate additional income. This 
increase could be justified on the waste generated from food litter around 
the city, and could compliment the costs of clean up. However this is not a 
recommendation as it may result in a lesser range of specialist foods.  

4) An increase on the alcohol levy. This is currently charged at £250. This 
could be increased and in doing so to £300 rather than a standard 5% at 
£12.50, would generate an additional £850. We would recommend this 
increase. 

5) We would recommend a cap in the discounts for charity stalls. Capping the 
amount to 8 stalls the amount allocated in 2013 would prevent a further loss 
of income generated. 

142



 
4.4 Further suggestions reviewed that could be implemented include: 

1) Introducing an early booking discount  
2) Introducing an early payment discount 
3) Introducing a late booking fee 
4) Introducing a late payment charge  

 
We are however at this stage not recommending a change to the application of 
discounts for 2014 but will include this in the preparation of the Business Plan. 
 

4.5 In the context set out above officers are recommending that for stall fees in 2014 
the increase applied is 12%.   
 

4.6 Consultation  
The Events and Culture Team have consulted the Christmas Market stakeholders 
group on their thoughts of an increase. There has been an understanding from the 
group that an increase of fees and charges will be required to support the 2014 
market. 
 

5 Conclusions 
 

5.1 In recent years the Lincoln Christmas Market has not met the targets set out in the 
MTFS and whilst there are a number of significant external factors that have had 
an impact on this (2010 weather, 2011 impact of large numbers of visitors, 2012 
safety changes, 2013 loss of Castle areas) it is increasingly clear that a 
fundamental review of the Business Plan is required; this will be completed later 
this year. 
 

5.2 However, for 2014 the important objectives have to be to ensure that the scale of 
fees and charges is set to minimise any shortfall, recognising the ongoing loss of 
Castle trading areas and the added loss of the Lincoln Suite.  The proposed 
increases to the stall fees and changes to related charges are designed to mitigate 
some of this shortfall whilst accounting for a contribution to infrastructure 
developments. 
 

6. Strategic Priorities 
 

6.1 Growing the local economy – Following on from the 2012 Lincoln Christmas 
Market the University of Lincoln completed an economic impact assessment which 
estimated that that, based on 300,000 visitors to Lincoln Christmas Market, the 
total visitor spend is around £12 million. 
 
As part of this assessment a business survey was carried out this suggested that 
the value of turnover generated during the Christmas Market is, on average, 26% 
greater than other weeks in the Christmas period. 
 

7. Organisational Impacts  
 

7.1 Finance - The proposed Fees and Charges attempt to close the gap on the 
previous 2013 trading position. However with the additional loss of the Lincoln 
Suite the trading position will be impacted with a further loss of £24k from this 
area.  

143



 
Even with the proposed Fees and Charges increases of 12%, the shortfall on the 
2014 Christmas Market Income will still impact on the MTFS with an estimated 
shortfall of £78k against the income targets. This can not realistically be funded 
any further via additional increases within the Market. 
 

Year 2013 2014 

Type £ £ 

Stall Holder Income 307,750 314,000 

Park & Ride 116,967 115,000 

Coach Parking 24,929 25,850 

Express Catering 16,688 16,667 

JPC Marquees 2,000 2,000 

Corner Plot Premium 0 1,075 

Alcohol Levy 0 850 

Total 468,334 475,442 

   

Total Amount of stalls 195 174 

   

MTFS  537,730 553,860 

   

Shortfall 69,397 78,418 

 
The financial performance outturn report, to be considered by the Executive 
elsewhere on this agenda, proposes that an allocation of £90k from the General 
Fund under spend for 2013/14 be set aside in an earmarked reserve in order to 
provide additional financial capacity to the Market in 2014.  Subject to the approval 
of the Executive these monies will be held in a reserve and drawn down as 
required.  This allocation is on a one-off basis only. 
 

 The financial implications for future markets, beyond 2014, will be considered as 
part of the development of Business Plan which is due to be produced later this 
year.  It should however be borne in mind that there may be further financial 
implications to be considered for the 2014 market in relation to expenditure costs 
regarding matters such as the use of wooden chalets and increased infrastructure 
costs, this will require a separate report to the Executive in due course.  The first 
call on financing these additional costs will be the £90k that is proposed to be set 
aside as an earmarked reserve. 
 

7.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules – The Event and Culture Team 
are undertaking the procurement of chalets to improve the look and feel and visitor 
experience.  
 

7.3 Land, property and accommodation –  
There are no direct property implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
The impact of the sale of the Lawn means the Lincoln Suite can no longer be used 
as a trading space. This has also impacted upon a redesign of The Lawn outdoor. 
 

7.4 Human Resources – Nothing directly from the report. 

144



 
7.5 Equality, Diversity & Human Rights (including the outcome of the EA attached, if 

required) – Nothing directly from the report. 
 

8. Risk Implications 
 

8.1 (i)        Options Explored - these are set out in the body of the report. 
 

8.2 (ii)        Key risks associated with the preferred approach – 
 
These increases could in turn affect the number of traders attending, as well as 
the quality of the market provided should we reduce our standards to fill the vacant 
spaces. 
 
The additional increases could significantly affect the number of applications 
received for the market, and therefore could provide a larger deficit, as the costs 
would remain largely the same.  
 

9. Recommendation  
 

9.1 
 

Executive are asked to; 
1. recommend the fees and charges for the 2014 Christmas Market to 

Council for approval as set out at Appendix ‘A’ 
2. Note the proposed allocation of £90k to an earmarked reserve to provide 

additional financial capacity to the 2014 Market (subject to separate 
approval by this Committee) 

 
  
Key Decision 
 

No 
 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply? 
 

No 
 

Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which Rule 
15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

No 

How many appendices 
does the report contain? 
 
 

 
3 

List of Background 
Papers: 
 

None. 

Lead Officer: Telephone 873 503 
 
 
 

145



146

This page is intentionally blank.



SERVICE:

CHRISTMAS MARKET

PREVIOUS 

2012/13

PREVIOUS 

2013/14

PROPOSED 

2014/15

10% 

Increase

12% 

Increase

14% 

Increase

19% 

increase

Stall Income

 - Castle Square £1,100.00 £1,155.00 £1,271.00 £1,294.00 £1,317.00 £1,374.00

 -Food Court £1,200.00 £1,260.00 £1,386.00 £1,411.00 £1,436.00 £1,499.00

 - Castle Grounds £1,200.00 £1,260.00 £1,386.00 £1,411.00 £1,436.00 £1,499.00

 - The Lawn (Outdoor) £900.00 £945.00 £1,040.00 £1,058.00 £1,077.00 £1,125.00

 - The Lawn (Lincoln Suite) £1,000.00 £1,050.00 Not in use

 - Christmas Bazaar £950.00 £997.50 £1,097.00 £1,117.00 £1,137.00 £1,187.00

 - Lincolnshire Larder £950.00 £997.50 £1,097.00 £1,117.00 £1,137.00 £1,187.00

 - Westgate (Outdoor) £900.00 £945.00 £1,040.00 £1,058.00 £1,077.00 £1,125.00

 - Westgate Marquees £950.00 £997.50 £1,097.00 £1,117.00 £1,137.00 £1,187.00

 - Perfect Presents £950.00 £997.50 £1,097.00 £1,117.00 £1,137.00 £1,187.00

 - Eastgate £800.00 £880.00 £896.00 £912.00 £952.00

 - Additional Sq metre (all areas) £160.00 £168.00 £185.00 £188.00 £192.00 £200.00

 - Corner Plot Premium (all areas)*

 plus 20% of 

stall rent 

 plus 20% 

of stall rent 

 plus 25% 

of stall rent 

 plus 25% of 

stall rent 

 plus 25% 

of stall rent 

 plus 25% 

of stall rent 

Backup Storage Spaces (all areas)

 - per square metre £60.00 £60.00 £66.00 £67.00 £68.00 £71.00

Additional Socket Outlets (all areas)

 - Additional 13amp Socket £60.00 £60.00 £66.00 £67.00 £68.00 £71.00

 -  Additional 32amp Socket* £60.00 £60.00 £100.00 £100.00 £100.00 £100.00

Surcharge on Food Traders

 - Catering 1

plus 50% of 

stall fee

plus 50% of 

stall fee

plus 50% of 

stall fee

plus 50% of 

stall fee

plus 50% of 

stall fee

plus 50% of 

stall fee

 - Catering 2

plus 100% 

of stall fee

plus 100% 

of stall fee

plus 100% 

of stall fee

plus 100% 

of stall fee

plus 100% 

of stall fee

plus 100% 

of stall fee

 - Alcohol Levy* £250.00 £250.00 £300.00 £300.00 £300.00 £300.00

Discounts (only taken off basic stall fee) (%)

 - Charity Discount 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

 - Non UK Stallholders 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

 - Craft/ Fairtrade Discount 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

 - Local Traders – within Lincoln City Boundary 15% 15% 20% 20% 20% 20%

 - Local Traders – within Lincolnshire 10% 10% 15% 15% 15% 15%

Stallholder Vehicle Parking at Designated Areas

 -  per vehicle * 105 £110 £110 £110 £110 £110

* These fees have been increased but not inline with the percentages given at the top of this document

REGENERATION & TOURISM- FEES AND CHARGES 2013/14

TOURISM (DDES) cont.

NOT SUBJECT TO VAT UNLESS STATED IN END COLUMN

Appendix A

147



LINCOLN CHRISTMAS MARKET- FEES AND CHARGES 2014/15

NOT SUBJECT TO VAT UNLESS STATED IN END COLUMN

PREVIOUS 

2011/12

PREVIOUS 

2012/13

CURRENT 

2013/14

PROPOSED 

2014/15

Park & Ride 

Prebooking Online All Days £12.00 £12.00 £12.00 £12.00 inc VAT *

None pre-booked Thursday £12.00 £12.00 £12.00 £12.00 inc VAT *

Friday £13.00 £13.00 £13.00 £13.00 inc VAT *

Saturday £15.00 £15.00 £15.00 £15.00 inc VAT *

Sunday £14.00 £14.00 £14.00 £14.00 inc VAT *

Mini Bus All Days £25.00 £25.00 £25.00 £25.00 inc VAT *

 * VAT element applies to "park" element only 

Appendix A

148



Appendix B

Costs per zone 2013

Area Outgoings Income Difference Notes

Castle Square Total £284.36 -£17,441.55 -£17,157.19 Outgoings include charges such as electrical meters

Castle Square Food Court Total £4,409.12 -£30,708.30 -£26,299.18 Outgoings include marquee hire, cleansing and barriers

Blue Zone Other Fees Total £10,029.50 £0.00 £10,029.50 Outgoings include stewards and CCTV

Grand Total for Blue Zone £14,722.98 -£48,149.85 -£33,426.87

Castle Total £34,779.01 -£96,725.00 -£61,945.99

Outgoings include generators, towerlights, flooring, toilets, 

fire breaks, cleansing, venue hire, signage, CCTV, barriers 

and stewards

Grand Total for Red Zone £34,779.01 -£96,725.00 -£61,945.99

Lawn Outdoor Total £1,556.94 -£16,931.15 -£15,374.21
Outgoings include towerlights, electrical meters and 

cleansing

Lincoln Suite & Shop Units Total £933.35 -£24,598.50 -£23,665.15 Outgoings include cleansing and table hire

Christmas Bazaar Total £8,803.37 -£35,538.09 -£26,734.72
Outgoings include generators, marquee hire, barriers and 

flooring

Lincolnshire Larder Total £5,584.20 -£29,813.18 -£24,228.98
Outgoings include generators, marquee hire, barriers and 

flooring

Yellow Zone Other Fees £8,208.70 £0.00 £8,208.70 Outgoings include stewarding, cctv, signage and barriers

Grand Total for Yellow Zone £25,086.56 -£106,880.92 -£81,794.36

Westgate Car Park 3 Total £423.41 -£16,687.50 -£16,264.09
Outgoings include car park barrier removal, electrical 

meter and barriers

Westgate Car Park 2 Total £3,129.86 -£20,800.50 -£17,670.64
Outgoings include marquee hire, electrical meters and car 

park barrier removal

Wickham Gardens Total £0.00 -£735.00 -£735.00

Westgate Car Park 3 Total £2,705.00 -£31,173.69 -£28,468.69
Outgoings include marquee hire and car park barrier 

removal

Perfect Presents Total £2,697.89 -£13,427.45 -£10,729.56
Outgoings include marquee hire, electrical meters and 

barriers

Green Zone Other Fees Total £4,262.48 -£5,000.00 £4,262.48 Outgoings include stewards and barriers

Grand Total for Green Zone £15,718.64 -£92,114.14 -£76,395.50

Cathedral Outdoor Total £2,905.47 -£1,730.00 £1,175.47
Outgoings include generators, infrastructure hire, lighting 

towers and CCTV

Purple Zone Other Fees Total £12,118.00 £0.00 £12,118.00 Outgoings include stewards and CCTV

Grand Total for Purple Zone £15,023.47 -£1,730.00 £13,293.47

Coaches Total £46,120.37 -£25,161.37 £20,959.00
Outgoings include venue hire, generators, towerlights, 

policing, porta cabins, stewards, barriers and CCTV

Park and Ride Total £94,701.31 -£116,619.71 -£21,918.40

Outgoings include towerlights, staffing of sales, bus 

service, signage, traffic management, steward, venue hire, 

CCTV, toilets and barriers

Opening Ceremony Total £339.72 £0.00 £339.72

Passes and Newsletters Total £2,624.00 £0.00 £2,624.00 Outgoings include printing and delivery

Stall Infrastructure Total £49,076.90 £0.00 £49,076.90
Outgoings include electrical infrastructure, generators and 

towerlights

Traffic Management Total £18,121.11 £0.00 £18,121.11 Outgoings include barriers, policing and stewards

Safety Total £82,291.48 £0.00 £82,291.48
Outgoings include first aid, policing, fire marshals, 

stewards, barriers and CCTV

Stallholder Parking Total £3,700.00 -£5,390.00 -£1,690.00 Outgoings include venue hire

Other Costs Total £69,240.45 -£4,000.00 £65,240.45
Outgoings include cleansing, venue hire, toilets, radios, 

PA system and electrical usage

£362,515.34 -£146,881.08 £215,634.26

Grand Total £467,846.01 -£492,480.99 -£24,634.98

149



150

This page is intentionally blank.



Stalls Sensitivity Analysis- If all areas remained the same as 2013 *

Description Type Amount of stalls PREVIOUS 2013/14 10% Increase 12% Increase 14% Increase 19% increase

Castle Square 001-049

Castle Square Stall Fees Stalls 11 -£17,441.55 -£19,117.30 -£19,438.50 -£19,782.65 -£20,607.50

Castle Square Food Court 050-099

Castle Square Food Court Stall Fees Stalls 11 -£30,708.30 -£33,849.69 -£34,434.11 -£35,054.95 -£36,551.41

Castle 100-199

Castle Stall Fees Stalls 45 -£93,817.50 -£103,046.70 -£104,799.71 -£106,761.20 -£111,305.31

Lawn Outdoor 200-249

Lawn Stall Fees Stalls 10 -£10,881.15 -£11,982.00 -£12,179.30 -£12,406.45 -£12,933.25

Lincoln Suite 250-299

Lincoln Suite Stall Fees (21) Stalls 21 -£21,598.50 -£23,961.01 -£24,390.20 -£24,819.41 -£25,894.94

Lawn Shop Units -£3,000.00 -£7,000.00 -£7,000.00 -£7,000.00 -£7,000.00

Christmas Bazaar 300-349

Christmas Bazaar Stall Fees Stalls 26 -£35,538.09 -£39,491.77 -£40,179.16 -£40,919.76 -£42,669.32

Lincolnshire Larder 350-399

Lincolnshire Larder Stall Fees Stalls 14 -£29,813.18 -£32,800.95 -£33,350.26 -£33,979.66 -£35,398.96

Westgate Car Park 2 400-405 450-499

Westgate Outdoor Stall Fees Stalls 6 -£7,245.00 -£8,041.00 -£8,177.30 -£8,330.45 -£8,695.25

Westgate Craft Marquee Stall Fees Stalls 15 -£13,555.50 -£14,952.65 -£15,224.65 -£15,496.65 -£16,178.15

Westgate Gardens

Wickham Gardens Stalls 1 -£735.00 -£820.00 -£829.00 -£838.50 -£862.50

Westgate Car Park 3 407-414 500-549

Westgate Outdoor Stall Fees Stalls 6 -£6,454.10 -£7,026.50 -£7,145.85 -£7,280.53 -£7,599.13

Westgate Big Wheel Marquee Stall Fees Stalls 13 -£12,569.59 -£13,877.05 -£14,126.94 -£14,383.54 -£15,013.12

Perfect Presents 550-599

Perfect Presents Marquee Stall Fees Stalls 14 -£13,427.45 -£14,707.57 -£14,948.82 -£15,190.07 -£15,793.19

Cathedral Outdoor

Eastgate Outdoor 2 -£3,435.20 -£3,781.00 -£3,845.60 -£3,921.60 -£4,088.80

Stallholder Vehicle parking
Stallholder Vehicle parking at designated areas -£5,610.00 -£5,610.00 -£5,610.00 -£5,610.00 -£5,610.00

195 -£305,830.11 -£340,065.19 -£345,679.40 -£351,775.42 -£366,200.83

* income totals above do not include fees from the food franchise area, fairground, showground or Minster Yard area

Appendix C

151



Stalls Sensitivity Analysis- 2014 Forecast*

Description Type Amount of stalls PREVIOUS 2013/14 10% Increase 12% Increase 14% Increase 19% increase

Castle Square 001-049

Castle Square Stall Fees Stalls 11 -£17,441.55 -£19,117.30 -£19,438.50 -£19,782.65 -£20,607.50

Castle Square Food Court 050-099

Castle Square Food Court Stall Fees Stalls 11 -£30,708.30 -£33,849.69 -£34,434.11 -£35,054.95 -£36,551.41

Castle 100-199

Castle Stall Fees Stalls 45 -£93,817.50 -£103,046.70 -£104,799.71 -£106,761.20 -£111,305.31

Lawn Outdoor 200-249

Lawn Stall Fees Stalls 10 -£10,881.15 -£11,982.00 -£12,179.30 -£12,406.45 -£12,933.25

Christmas Bazaar 300-349

Christmas Bazaar Stall Fees Stalls 26 -£35,538.09 -£39,491.77 -£40,179.16 -£40,919.76 -£42,669.32

Lincolnshire Larder 350-399

Lincolnshire Larder Stall Fees Stalls 14 -£29,813.18 -£32,800.95 -£33,350.26 -£33,979.66 -£35,398.96

Westgate Car Park 2 400-405 450-499

Westgate Outdoor Stall Fees Stalls 6 -£7,245.00 -£8,041.00 -£8,177.30 -£8,330.45 -£8,695.25

Westgate Craft Marquee Stall Fees Stalls 15 -£13,555.50 -£14,952.65 -£15,224.65 -£15,496.65 -£16,178.15

Westgate Gardens

Wickham Gardens Stalls 1 -£735.00 -£820.00 -£829.00 -£838.50 -£862.50

Westgate Car Park 3 407-414 500-549

Westgate Outdoor Stall Fees Stalls 6 -£6,454.10 -£7,026.50 -£7,145.85 -£7,280.53 -£7,599.13

Westgate Big Wheel Marquee Stall Fees Stalls 13 -£12,569.59 -£13,877.05 -£14,126.94 -£14,383.54 -£15,013.12

Perfect Presents 550-599

Perfect Presents Marquee Stall Fees Stalls 14 -£13,427.45 -£14,707.57 -£14,948.82 -£15,190.07 -£15,793.19

Cathedral Outdoor

Eastgate Outdoor 2 -£3,435.20 -£3,781.00 -£3,845.60 -£3,921.60 -£4,088.80

Stallholder Vehicle parking
Stallholder Vehicle parking at designated areas -£5,610.00 -£5,610.00 -£5,610.00 -£5,610.00 -£5,610.00

174 -£281,231.61 -£309,104.18 -£314,289.20 -£319,956.01 -£333,305.89

* income totals above do not include fees from the food franchise area, fairground, showground or Minster Yard area

Appendix C

152



 EXECUTIVE                    16 JUNE 2014 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

LINCOLN GROWTH STRATEGY: BUILDING OUR FUTURE ON 
STRONG FOUNDATIONS 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

NEIL CUTTELL, REGENERATION MANAGER 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 The report proposes the endorsement of the Growth Strategy for Lincoln.  

 
2. Executive Summary     

 
2.1 The Growth Strategy introduces five priorities of: Great Place, Great Access, Great 

People, Great Partnerships and Great Innovations. The purpose of the strategy is 
to be a driver for economic growth for the city. To enable economic growth Lincoln 
will look to develop its human capital, enhance its physical environment, provide 
employment growth and reduce poverty. The strategy will bring together local 
stakeholders to have a shared vision that articulates key priorities and objectives, 
and creates beneficial change for the city. The Growth Strategy and Growth 
Strategy Summary are attached as Appendices A and B.  
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 
 

The Growth Strategy has been developed and is complementary to the Lincoln 
City Masterplan. The Strategy and the priorities included have been developed 
through ongoing consultation with the City’s key stakeholders from the public, 
private and voluntary sectors.  
 

3.2 
 

This Strategy provides an agreed vision of:  
 
“Lincoln will evolve into a beautifully engineered world class historic city becoming 
internationally renowned for its enterprise, heritage and educational excellence, 
whilst demonstrating that being a competitive city does not equal compromising on 
people, values or culture.” 
 

4. Main Body of Report 
 

4.1 The structure of the Strategy has been developed in consultation with the City 
Council’s key partners and considers the other strategic documents for Lincoln in 
its formation. The Local Enterprises Partnership’s Strategic Economic Plan, as 
well as the City of Lincoln Council’s Strategic Priorities are both aligned with the 
Growth Strategy.  
 
The Strategy sets out the Vision, and articulates five priorities of: Great Place, 
Great Access, Great People, Great Partnerships and Great Innovations. These are 
built on the ambitions of: 

Item No. 13

153



 

• A significant increase in quality job creation and retention across a wide 
distribution of employment opportunities, supporting the growth of existing 
companies and attracting new investment. 

• Creation of more high-quality homes through successful integrated delivery 
of three sustainable urban extensions, supplementary housing schemes 
and improvement of existing housing provision. 

• Making Lincoln the place to be for business, residents, students and visitors 
(a balanced approach to the delivery of economic, social and environmental 
benefits). 

• Global recognition of the city’s exceptional manufacturing/engineering 
expertise and further expansion of the sector. 

• Substantial growth in the city’s visitor economy and increased global 
awareness. 

• Improving educational attainment to a high standard, addressing skill gaps 
at all levels, resulting in work ready individuals and satisfying local employer 
requirements. 

• Home to a world class university and science and innovation park, a UK 
leader in knowledge creation and transfer. 

• Low carbon Lincoln - ground breaking approaches on energy provision. 

• Public and private sector working together to identify common goals to drive 
economic growth for Lincoln. 

• Infrastructure provision and improvement recognising the importance of 
connectivity to a primary urban centre for the region 

 
The Growth Strategy has been created in three different mediums. The first is a 
short concise marketing summary that provides the reader with the key vision, 
priorities and ambitions. The second document provides further details as to the 
objectives, and action plan highlights. The third document is an evidential study 
that provides economic data and information as to why the priorities have been 
chosen, and why the City must act on the identified priorities. This report only 
provides the first two mediums of the Growth Strategy.  
 
The Growth Strategy has identified a number of actions and how to achieve them. 
Principal amongst these actions is the creation of a robust and comprehensive 
governance structure to oversee the Strategy. It has been agreed that whilst the 
City of Lincoln Council will facilitate the development of the Strategy, the strategy 
and actions that will see the vision achieved are owned by all stakeholders, there 
is a common agreement to want to deliver a prosperous Lincoln. The creation of a 
Growth Board and Growth Forum will oversee the delivery of the Strategy, its 
actions and monitor delivery.   
 
The Growth Strategy will also be a very useful tool in articulating the shared vision 
to Government, Whitehall, other Local Authorities, Inward Investors, Developers 
and External funders. It will yield external funding, new business, new housing, 
new jobs and improved partnerships working. 
 
The Regeneration Team have created a Service Plan and Delivery Plan that are 
grounded in the priorities of the Growth Strategy, and will provide the actions that 
the City of Lincoln Council’s regeneration team will deliver to for the Growth 
Strategy. 

154



 
The next steps for the delivery of the Growth Strategy are: 

1) To host a launch event to promote the completed strategy to stakeholders 
in summer 2014 

2) To set up a regular programme of Growth Board Meetings and bi-annual 
Growth Forum Meetings 

3) To develop and agree an action plan for delivery from the Growth Forum 
that is inclusive of all partners delivery programmes 

4) To agree a monitoring programme for delivery of projects and initiatives  
 

5. Strategic Priorities  
 

5.1 Growing the local economy  
 

5.2 Protecting the poorest people in Lincoln 
 

5.3 Increasing the supply of affordable housing 
 

6. Organisational Impacts  
 

6.1 Finance  
 
There are no financial impacts for the creation and endorsement of the Growth 
Strategy. The projects identified, and undertaken by the City Council will follow the 
SPIT procedure, and will follow the appropriate governance routes that require 
City Council funding before starting.  
 

6.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules 
 
There are no procurement implications in the creation and endorsement of the 
Growth Strategy. The Strategy does not contain any legal implications in its 
development; however the creation of governance structures and ownership of 
projects may have legal implications at a later date.   
 

6.3 Land, Property and Accommodation 
 
There are no direct estates implications in the creation and endorsement of the 
Growth Strategy. 
 

6.4 Human Resources 
 
There are no direct human resource implications in the creation and endorsement 
of the Growth Strategy. 
 

6.5 Equality, Diversity & Human Rights (including the outcome of the EA attached, if 
required) 
 
An equality impact assessment is completed and attached as Appendix C 
 

6.6 Significant Community Impact  
 
 

155



7. Risk Implications 
 

7.1 (i)        Options Explored  
 
The Council could not support the development of a Growth Strategy which would 
mean that partners will continue to see development occur on a sporadic basis. 
The creation of the Growth Strategy provides stakeholder in the city a focus on 
which to deliver.  
 

7.2 (ii)        Key risks associated with the preferred approach 
 

a) A primary risk is lack of support for the vision and priorities of the Growth 
Strategy from partners. This can be mitigated by regular reviews and the 
creation of a Growth Board and Growth Forum. 

 
b) That the identified priorities are incorrect. The consultation has suggested 

that the priorities are supported; however ongoing communication is 
paramount to ensuring support in the future. 

 
8. Recommendation  

 
8.1 
 
 
8.2 
 

That Council be recommended to incorporate the Lincoln Growth Strategy within 
the Constitution’s Policy Framework. 
 
That Council be recommended to approve the Lincoln Growth Strategy. 
 

  
Is this a key decision? 
 

No 
 

Do the exempt information 
categories apply? 
 

No 
 

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (call-in and 
urgency) apply? 
 

Yes 

How many appendices does 
the report contain? 
 
 

1) Growth Strategy for Lincoln 
2) Summary Version of Growth Strategy 
3) Equal Opportunities Impact Assessment 

List of Background Papers: 
 

None 
 
 

Lead Officer: Kate Ellis, Assistant Director 
Neil Cuttell, Regeneration Manager 

 
 
 
 

156



Building our future on 

strong foundations
A Growth Strategy for  

Lincoln 2014-2034

157



Page 2

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Growth Strategy for Lincoln

A ‘BEAUTIFULLY ENGINEERED WORLD CLASS 
HISTORIC CITY’

Foreword
Cllr Richard Metcalfe, Leader, City of Lincoln Council
“Cities are complex and often need to adapt to respond to change and 
uncertainty. They have a clear vision stating their ambitions for the future, with 

“A competitive city encourages enterprise and innovation; develops and retains 
a skilled workforce; achieves strong connectivity; nurtures diversity; values and 
enhances quality of life; creates capacity to implement long-term development 
plans; and fosters a vibrant business environment. 

“There is no doubt that Lincoln could become a world class historic city, a hub for 
advanced engineering, international learning and innovation; a place brimming 
with history and vibrancy, with proud communities devoted to the city and its 
culture. 

“We are determined that economic growth will bring with it social well-being and 
sustainability, lifting people out of poverty and ensuring that future generations 

“In order to achieve our goals we need to pull together; build on and create 
new partnerships across all sectors. Without strong governance, leadership and 
collaboration our aspirations will not be realised.’ 

Andrew Taylor, Chief Executive, City of Lincoln Council

will do to establish Lincoln as a primary economic driver for Greater Lincolnshire. 

“Lincoln’s population will increase substantially over the next 20 years, with more 
than quality new homes in the pipeline, increased employment opportunities,  
new educational facilities, and infrastructure improvements transforming 
movement through the city and beyond; hence a planned approach to growth is 
essential. 

“Our unique city offer is already impressive; great heritage; a resilient retail sector; 
excellent companies across a broad range of sectors; high quality cultural facilities;  
two successful universities and a highly performing college; and an abundance 
of green spaces. Lincoln is valued greatly by residents, students, employees and 
visitors who are aware of its beauty and appeal, however the city currently lacks 
national and global awareness. 

“We want our city to be a key place to visit, work, study and live within, competing 
strongly with other popular heritage cities and towns throughout the world.”

158



Page 3

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Professor Mary Stuart, Vice Chancellor, University of Lincoln   
“The University of Lincoln is a young, dynamic institution and has come a long 
way in a short time. Our establishment and growth have been driven by local 
partnership, with employers and key stakeholders. 

with our Lincoln community, helping to drive innovation and growth across the 
city and beyond through the creation of purposeful knowledge, research and 
creative graduates. 

“The Lincoln Growth Strategy gives structure to our partnership, linking the shared 
ambitions of the city and the university.”

Dr Rona Mackenzie, Principal, Lincoln University Technical College
“Lincoln University Technical College is part of an education revolution. Known as 
Lincoln UTC, our brand new college will welcome 14-18 year olds from across the 
Lincolnshire region. 

“Lincolnshire has an enviable reputation for engineering and science industries. 

and Science, alongside technically-oriented studies including engineering and 
computer science. 

“Our students will study a bespoke curriculum, fully integrating technical and 

academic, technical and vocational elements. 

“This fresh approach to education offers outstanding opportunities for young 
people across the region, particularly those with an interest in engineering and 
science. With a wide variety of bridging and enrichment activities, we will ensure 
our students receive a fully-rounded, holistic education.

“Our unique collaboration with businesses will enable our students to complete 
their education and seamlessly start their chosen career in engineering and 
science. By working in close association with local employers and business, 
through projects, mentoring and regular work experience, Lincoln UTC will 
ensure its students are suitably matched to an evolving job market and are highly 
employable.”

Barry Jackson, General Manager, Bifrangi UK Ltd   
“Bifrangi is an Italian family-owned manufacturing business with operational 

Bifrangi UK was formed in November 2001. 

“In 2011 the Bifrangi board announced their intention to invest in a new high-
tech, forging facility unique to the western world. Lincoln along with several other 

initial £50 million investment. 

“We were delighted that the local authorities, business development, the city 

joined our campaign to help secure this investment for Lincoln. 

159



Page 4

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

“Lincoln’s engineering heritage spans many generations and the unique skills the 
city has to offer cannot easily be found elsewhere. 

demonstrate their commitment to the company through their reaction to business 
need. 

successful organisation. Recognising the value of your workforce is crucial, as 
without employees that believe in your company and are prepared to work with 
you to achieve common goals, you are unlikely to succeed. 

“The number one motive behind our decision to invest in Lincoln was people. 
The city has an exceptional quality of life not found in many places and this 
is congruent with recruiting and retaining a healthy, content and committed 
workforce.

“It is this special combination of engineering expertise, the promise of well-being 
and the support and enthusiasm of the local authorities that particularly appealed 
to Bifrangi’s owners.

“Following on from the phase one investment program, local management 

training centre to underpin forging activity and develop new product lines and 
processes. 

“To help fund this we applied for Regional Growth Fund support; once again the 
support we received from the greater Lincoln establishment played a major part in 
our successful bid.  

“As a direct result of this success we are now committed to the development 
of a £15.1million research and development centre and training program; this 
will extend our product range, enhance our competitive edge, increase export 
opportunities and ultimately create high value sustainable jobs.

“We are aware that future growth is reliant on appropriate infrastructure, and 
in manufacturing terms key state of the art equipment together with a constant 
supply of appropriately trained dedicated staff. 

“Once again the City of Lincoln have been proactive and demonstrated their 
understanding of this need by the creation of the Lincoln Engineering Academy.

“There are many elements to consider in growing a prosperous city; however the 
economic welfare of any location is highly dependent on its business success. 

“We are extremely pleased that Lincoln is developing a new Growth Forum, 
bringing together a broad range of stakeholders from across the city and Bifrangi 

“Being a major energy consumer we welcome Lincoln’s exploration of alternative 
approaches to energy generation and will continue to explore measures which help 
us to more effectively manage our power requirements as the company expands.”

160



Page 5

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Our vision

      Lincoln will evolve into a beautifully engineered 
world class historic city becoming internationally 
renowned for its enterprise, heritage and educational 
excellence, whilst demonstrating that being a 
competitive city does not equal compromising on 
people, values or culture.

      “  

”

161



Page 6

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Our priorities

Great Place

Great Access

Great People

economy

develop a range of programmes to ensure people are work-ready

graduates in the city

Great Partnerships

collaborative working between the private and public sector;

Great Innovations

cheaper energy costs thus creating a lower carbon footprint city, tackling fuel poverty and responding to 
future energy challenges

research, development and employment

162



Page 7

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Introduction
Cities are drivers of economic growth; however they often also encompass areas of poverty, suggesting 
that deprivation is not automatically addressed through economic growth. 

This strategy for growth will look to demonstrate how employment growth might lead to a decrease in 
poverty and the importance of some of our key sectors to support this reduction such as retail, healthcare 
and construction. 

Analysis informs us that output growth has no short-term impact on poverty and that employment 
growth will more readily and quickly lead to much-needed changes. Though job creation does not always 
lead to employment for local residents, there is some evidence that new high-skilled jobs can lead to jobs 
in other sectors of the local economy.

To enable economic growth Lincoln will look to develop its human capital, providing opportunities to 
improve skill levels and offering a range of vocational education that responds to local employment 
needs. 

The city will enhance its physical environment, from housing and employment land availability to 
infrastructure enhancements and better-quality public realm. Innovation and enterprise is vital for growth 
and we will work with local businesses to support innovative approaches. 

delivery, Lincoln will undoubtedly see entrepreneurship thrive. In short, having an understanding of a city’s 
core identity and values and the importance of branding these effectively to capitalise on its strengths, is 
the key to sustainable economic growth. 

Lincoln has weathered the recession storm relatively well, however the challenge will be to continue to 
grow and develop whilst remaining competitive as the economy recovers and other cities respond.

163



Page 8

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Key challenges facing Lincoln
Lincoln’s strategy for growth must consider how current challenges will be addressed if it is to succeed in 
achieving its goals and ambitions. These challenges are:

Employment

appropriate quality responding to, and sympathetic to, local needs and economically viable

the broad spectrum of local job opportunities

promoting employment growth in expanding sectors and providing targeted training within our local 
communities

Housing

appropriate quality responding to, and sympathetic to, local needs and economically viable

Connectivity

urban centre for the Greater Lincolnshire area

Sustainability

Equality

communities

Skills

Recognition

164



Page 9

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Our ambitions

opportunities, supporting the growth of existing companies and attracting new investment

extensions, supplementary housing schemes and improvement of existing housing provision

of the sector

work-ready individuals and satisfying local employer requirements

and transfer

Lincoln

centre for the region

165



Page 10

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Principles behind investment for growth 

DIVERSITY
A single-minded approach 

to investment will not 
achieve the mix of land/

assets a truly competitive 
city requires

PLANNED GROWTH
Ensure that future 

development opportunities 
are not compromised by 

piecemeal land purchases, 
and that proposals meet 
high quality standards

CREATIVITY
Developing approaches 
and solutions to growth 

which respond to Lincoln’s 
needs; being open to new 

ideas

RISK TOLERANCE
Decisions should balance 
expectation and ambition 

with viability

SUSTAINABILITY
Growth achieved needs 

to have longevity, 
not just economically 
but also socially and 

environmentally

INCLUSIVITY
Ensuring all local 

communities benefit as 
a result of investment 

decisions with 
demonstrable impact in 
our most deprived areas

PARTNERSHIP
Working in partnership 

and sharing a clear 
combined message about 
what the city has to offer

TARGETED PROMOTION
To attract inward 

investment there needs 
to be an understanding 
of the sector involved 

and what an investor is 
likely to require i.e. supply 
chain opportunities, skilled 
workforce, quality of life.

IMPARTIALITY
The right investment 
decisions are not just 

about capital gain. Wider 
economic impacts may be 
generated in the longer 
term from an investment 
which appears initially to 

lack value for money

COMMITMENT
Whilst remaining flexible to 
market forces, not allowing 

economic changes or 
financial pressures to steer 

partners away from key 
strategic investments

166



Page 11

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Identify and bring to the 
market new employment land, 
including sector specific sites.

Great innovations

Great place

Complete an employment land survey 
and work in partnership with landowners 
across the city to determine future uses of 
strategic sites, reviewing land allocation 
decisions and unlocking growth potential.

Support local companies with 
growth/expansion plans

Great people

Great innovations 

Local investment teams will work directly 
with companies in Lincoln to identify their 
key barriers to growth and what can be 
done to mitigate them.

Work with existing and new companies 
to ensure that job opportunities are 
highlighted to the local population.

Provide workspace/grow on units for 
businesses to grow into.

Strengthen supply chain 
opportunities and connections

Great innovations Map existing supply chains for Lincoln’s key 
growth sectors, identifying opportunities 
for local suppliers and strengthening 
current networks.

Identify gaps in knowledge and cross 
cutting themes around supply chains 
and innovation through local economic 
assessments and engagement with local 
businesses.

Work to resolve issues associated with 
international ownership, availability of 
skilled labour, export/import restrictions i.e. 
visas, SME access into the supply chain and 
legislation.

Provide/identify funding 
support for new investors and 
existing companies wishing to 
expand and develop

Great partnerships

Great innovations

Highlight national and local funding 
opportunities to local businesses as they 
arise, maximizing the use of the Lincolnshire 
Investment Network and Government 
schemes such as Regional Growth Fund.

Improve support for inward investors, 
developing local relationships with UKTI 
and the Government Department for 
Business, Innovation, and Skills. 

Provide workspace options for 
SMEs of all sizes and experience

Great place

Great innovations

Promote Lincoln’s workspace provision 
online, clearly identifying any flexible lease 
terms or wider services available.

Undertake an assessment of the quality 
of office space available across the city, 
agreeing minimum standards and investing 
in improvements where necessary.

A significant increase in quality job creation and retention across a wide distribution of employment opportunities, 
supporting the growth of existing companies and attracting new investment.

Achieving our ambitions

Key Facts

Forecast labour 
demand in Lincoln by 
2025 shows significant 
growth requirements 
for Science/technical 
professionals (70%), 
caring personal service 
occupations (25%), 
corporate managers 
(19.2%), health 
professionals (200%) and 
sales related occupations 
(21.3%). (Cambridge 
Econometrics, July 2012)

Initiatives through 
organisations such as 
the Technology Strategy 
Board can help UK 
companies strengthen 
their supply chains i.e. 
Advanced Manufacturing 
Supply Chain Initiative 
(AMSCI).

Lincoln is developing 
a Business Charter to 
clarify local and national 
funding opportunities.

Lincoln’s estimated GVA 
in 2014 is £1.9 billion 
and it is projected to 
increase to £2.6 billion 
by 2030.

Most organisations in 
Lincoln are small with 
less than five employees, 
only 0.2% of enterprises 
in the city have one 
thousand or more 
employees.

Quality office space 
availability is generally 
low in Lincoln; a detailed 
city council report in 
February 2010 identified 
only 20% of premises 
being available. Returns 
are less than other 
locations as the rentals 
are low (average Lincoln 

167



Page 12

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Encourage innovative 
development and delivery

Great partnerships

Great innovations

Encourage business engagement with 
local support programmes such as LINBIS, 
Innovation Lincolnshire, SUSTAIN, Robust 
Futures.

Promote a culture of enterprise across the 
wider community and provide targeted 
training for disadvantaged groups to 
enable them to access the job market.

Match educational provision 
to job skill requirements of our 
local economy

Great people Adapt vocational training and education to 
help support needs within the local labour 
market.

Develop employer led training programmes 
to help those on low pay and provide 
targeted training for disadvantaged 
groups enabling access to the job market, 
recognising that employment growth has 
a more immediate impact on poverty than 
general output growth.

Create more affordable 
childcare solutions

Great place

Great innovations

Recognise the employment opportunities 
that increased childcare will generate by 
providing additional childcare facilities/
schemes and ensuring that affordable 
options are included. 

rental prices are £8.66 
per sqft in comparison to 
£13.29 in Oxford).

In May 2013, 8,530 
Lincoln residents 
were experiencing 
worklessness. (State of 
the Lincoln Economy, 
Nov 2013)

The city’s unemployment 
claimant rate is currently 
1.2% over the national 
average.

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Successful delivery of quality 
new homes to a high standard 
over the Local Plan period to 
meet our growth needs

Great partnerships

Great place

The Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment has identified a number of 
sites for potential development. Working 
in partnership across the city we will 
take forward development within these 
locations and will obtain additional sites 
currently occupied for other uses.

Creation of three new 
sustainable urban extensions 
to the west, north-east and 
south-east of the City, which 
seamlessly interface with 
existing communities

Great partnerships

Great place

Development of 2,700 new dwellings 
with supporting infrastructure including 
a mixed-use employment site and new 
leisure/community facilities on the 
Western Growth Corridor by 2034.

Development of up to 1,400 new dwellings 
in the North-East Quadrant once the 
Lincoln Eastern Bypass scheme has been 
completed, providing an eastern outer ring 
road for the city.

Development of up to 2,800 dwellings 
in the South-East Quadrant between 
Bracebridge Heath and Canwick in the 
local plan period and a further 3,200 
beyond. This scheme is also largely 
dependent on the completion of the 
Eastern Bypass access road.
Integration of existing communities in 
relation to access, infrastructure, and 
public realm.

Creation of more high-quality homes through successful integrated delivery of three sustainable urban extensions, 
supplementary housing schemes and improvement of existing housing provision.

Key Facts

Between 1982 and 2012 
Lincoln’s population 
grew considerably 
from 76,800 to 94,600 
residents. Notably 29% 
of the population are 
aged 15- 29.

Housing and economic 
growth are inextricably 
linked. The housing 
sector and associated 
industries provide 
significant employment 
opportunities. Currently 
1.3% of employees in 
Lincoln work for the 
construction sector.

168



Page 13

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Deliver additional open 
market housing across the 
city

Great partnerships

Great place

Great innovations

Develop up to 8,000 new private 
residential homes in the Lincoln area by 
2034, ensuring that there is a sufficient 
mix to accommodate likely future 
demand. 

Explore the potential of delivering 
additional sustainable urban extensions 
in and around the city.

Increase supply of housing/hotel 
spaces available to meet the demands 
of business clients, employees and 
investors, working with local companies 
to understand requirements.

Develop 50 new homes under 
the local authority house 
building programme and take 
forward a council housing 
new build initiative

Great partnerships

Great place

Develop a new build programme for 
additional council housing.

Deliver additional social rented homes.

 

Provide early pre-planning 
advice to developers

Great innovations Create a pre-application advice service 
for new housing proposals to help avoid 
unnecessary constraints post application

Improve existing housing 
stock to meet the needs of 
residents

Great partnerships

Great place

Explore rebuild options in key locations 
to maximise the number of properties 
available and develop a temporary 
rehousing plan.

CoLC to explore the potential to carry 
out a renewal area assessment and 
subsequent regeneration project.

Reduce levels of non-decent 
dwellings within the private 
sector

Great partnerships

Great innovations

Private sector landlords and owner 
occupiers to reduce levels of non-
decent homes identified within the 
Private Sector Housing Condition Survey 
(December 2009).

Improve the standards of 
private sector rented housing

Great partnerships Work with private landlords to 
significantly reduce the number of non-
decent private rented homes in the City, 
responding to Lincoln Condition Survey 
standards and eradicating Category 1 
failures.

Raise awareness of landlord 
and tenant responsibilities

Great innovations Full accreditation scheme for landlords 
and/or properties in place.

Develop a welcome pack highlighting 
landlord/tenant rights and advice.

Ensure availability and access 
into the private rented sector 
for households where this is a 
viable option

Great innovations COLC to fund and run a deposit 
guarantee scheme to assist priority 
homeless households into the private 
rented sector.

Every £1 spent 
on housing and 
construction generates 
£2.84 of value to the 
economy. Construction 
is one of the best ways 
of stimulating economic 
activity.

Despite relatively 
low housing prices in 
Lincoln/Lincolnshire 
(average selling price 
for a terraced house in 
Lincolnshire as of July 
2012 was £77,385), 
affordability for many 
local people remains an 
issue. 

There is potential to 
provide homes in and 
around Lincoln which 
are attractive to the full 
working spectrum thus 
encouraging future 
investment. The most 
dominant categories 
relating to residents 
of Lincoln are lower 
income workers in 
urban terraces in often 
diverse areas (16.6%); 
young, well-educated 
city dwellers (15.5%); and 
middle-income families 
living in moderate 
suburban semis (9.28%). 
(Lincolnshire Research 
observatory, 2013).

169



Page 14

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Improve the City Council’s 
landlord function

Great partnerships Involvement and empowerment of 
tenants, enabling influence of how 
national standards are achieved.

HCA, developers, Housing Associations 
and COLC to develop a higher quality 
Lincoln standard for decent homes.

Significantly reduce the 
number of empty homes in 
Lincoln

Great place

Great partnerships

Create an action plan for homes that have 
been empty for more than two years to 
return the properties to use, and explore 
the introduction of an early intervention 
scheme.

Implement a short-term loan scheme for 
developers to improve properties to be 
brought back into use or sold.

Establish partnership schemes 
for affordable housing 
development

Great partnerships Develop a programme of schemes through 
the Strategic Housing Group and through 
wider partnership working, for example via 
Community Land Trusts, local asset backed 
vehicles, cross subsidy and joint ventures.

Utilise City Council land for additional 
housing developments where possible.
Meet the affordable housing targets set 
out in the Local Plan.

Increase the provision of 
appropriately located students 
and manage the impact of 
growth on existing residential 
communities

Great place

Great partnerships

Increase the supply of new purpose 
built accommodation in the city, with 
an integrated approach to existing 
development.  

Developers and planners to work in 
partnership with the city’s universities to 
understand quantity and quality of student 
housing required

Engage key stakeholders (e.g. Student 
Unions) when developing student housing 
proposals for new and existing areas.

Provide support for owner 
occupiers

Great innovations Deliver a loan scheme to ensure recyclable 
funding for sustainability of assistance for 
owner-occupiers.

Increase homeowner knowledge on 
improvements, defect identification, and 
employing contractors.

Identify funding sources to 
support affordable housing 
development

Great partnerships HCA, Housing Associations and Greater 
Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership to 
develop specific funding support for local 
housing schemes whilst demonstrating 
viability.

In 2009 31 per cent 
of privately owned 
properties in Lincoln 
were regarded as  
long-term empty homes.

The student make-up 
of the city (19,000+) 
currently impacts directly 
on housing, hence 
future student housing 
provision needs to 
consider location and 
offer carefully.

Greater Lincolnshire 
Local Enterprise 
Partnership is working 
with the business 
community to establish 
a Development Charter. 
Lincoln businesses 
secured more than 
£5 million from the 
Regional Growth Fund in 
2013.

170



Page 15

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Develop a cohesive approach 
to retail provision across the 
City, including an enhanced 
market offer

Great place

Great innovations

Identify in partnership with retail 
investors key locations and options for 
retail expansion within Lincoln, agreeing 
timescales for delivery and mitigating 
potential displacement.

Explore viable options for retail units which 
have remained empty for more than a year.

Enhance Lincoln’s market offer through 
investment to improve facilities/access and 
greater co-ordination of regular market 
events.

Enhance the City’s public 
realm, improving gateways and 
underused/derelict spaces

Great place

Great innovations

Improve public realm sites throughout the 
city i.e. former churchyard sites, new and 
existing squares.

Promote use of existing green spaces/
parks in and around the city i.e. 
Hartsholme, Arboretum.

Continue to develop the 
cultural quarter and strengthen 
Lincoln’s cultural offer/
connections

Great place

Great partnerships

Develop a cultural destination partnership.

Create greater connectivity between 
cultural locations through improved 
signage, co-ordination of events and 
investment in public realm.

Enhance, preserve and 
promote Lincoln’s unique 
heritage

Great place Complete the Lincoln Castle Revealed and 
Lincoln Cathedral Connected programmes, 
developing collaborative marketing 
options for the Uphill/Bailgate area in its 
entirety and connecting into a Visit Lincoln 
wider promotional campaign.

Work with English Heritage to identify 
ways in which key historic buildings/
locations might be enhanced, or more 
effectively promoted.

Support the diversity of 
Lincoln’s population.

Great people

Great place

Continue to provide community support 
to meet local needs i.e. health care and 
well-being.

With the expansion of our universities 
and emergence of a new University 
Technical College there is a need to 
respond to student requirements within 
the city by improving sports and leisure 
facilities; providing innovative course 
options; increasing cycle provision/routes; 
strengthening the cultural offer; and 
improving bus/rail connections.

Making Lincoln the place to be for business, residents, students, and visitors (a balanced approach to the delivery of 
economic, social and environmental benefits).

Key Facts

The Lincoln economy has 
shown great resilience in 
the retail sector despite 
many places across 
country experiencing 
issues with empty shops 
and failing high streets 
during recent years. A 
detailed city council 
office vacancy report in 
Feb 2010 identified 478 
(14 per cent) business 
related properties in 
Lincoln as being vacant.

‘A high quality public 
environment can have 
a significant impact on 
the economic life of 
urban centres and is 
an essential part of any 
regeneration strategy’ 
(CABE 2004).

It is important to 
remember the significant 
role that culture can 
play in ensuring a 
city’s attractiveness 
and competitiveness. 
It not only helps shape 
community-led initiatives 
but also influences how 
a place evolves.

171



Page 16

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Increase leisure facilities and 
sports provision within the city

Great place

Great innovations

Work with local schools, colleges and 
sport/fitness providers to recognise new 
leisure trends, in particular for younger 
people, and identify potential locations for 
bespoke facilities if required.

Create a new leisure village for the city.

Work with partners to promote water as an 
asset to the city, including leisure facilities, 
development and increased use.

Encourage further investment 
in hotels and restaurants to 
meet future requirements

Great place

Great innovations

Respond to market demands driven by 
increased population and visitor numbers.

Look at potential assets within the city 
which may accommodate more suitable 
uses for supporting a thriving visitor 
economy.

Lincoln provides around 
1000 hotel rooms 
and 500+ rooms with 
independent bed and 
breakfasts/guest houses.

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Increase manufacturing/ 
engineering employment, 
output and investment

Great innovations Promote key employment sites within 
and on the outskirts of the city to 
potential investors.

Explore expansion opportunities with 
existing companies, including long-term 
lease options.

Support the growth of our 
existing manufacturing/ 
engineering companies

Great place

Great innovations

Planners and developers to ensure that 
pre-application processes include short 
and long-term plans for commercial 
land/site development.

Provide/identify access to finance.

Improve wider infrastructure 
to support distribution and 
export activity

Great access Work with the GLLEP to improve road 
and rail connectivity from Lincoln 
to major cities, ports (Grimsby and 
Immingham) and airports.

Support the development of 
new overseas markets

Great partnerships Local investment teams to meet 
regularly with manufacturing/ 
engineering companies to discuss market 
development potential, provide advice 
and support where possible.

Strengthen local manufacturing/
engineering company relationships with 
UKTI and BIS.

Global recognition of the city’s exceptional manufacturing/engineering expertise and further expansion of the 
sector.

Key Facts

Lincoln has a very strong 
engineering heritage 
which has influenced 
the evolvement of many 
world class companies 
within the area today.

The manufacturing 
sector delivers a direct 
economic value to the 
Greater Lincolnshire 
economy of £1.8 
billion per year within a 
number of key growth 
areas.  

Through facilities such 
as the Engineering Hub, 
Lincoln is committed to 
merging the expertise 
of educational providers 
with the knowledge of 

172



Page 17

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Promote Lincoln’s engineering 
expertise

Great innovations Host a national conference to raise 
awareness of Lincoln’s engineering 
heritage and knowledge, inviting world 
leaders in advanced engineering to 
speak.

Support the future of the 
sector by providing bespoke 
educational facilities and 
helpful careers advice

Great people Expand the Engineering Hub in Lincoln 
and tailor courses/training to meet the 
needs of local engineering companies.

Work with training/education providers 
to reduce specific local skills gaps in 
mid-technical expertise i.e. production 
engineers. 

Encourage schools, colleges and 
universities to place more emphasis on 
scientific and computer based skills.

Continue to develop the 
existing engineering company 
network within the city

Great partnerships Attract new engineering companies 
to the network and the collaborative 
opportunities that it creates.

Highlight the wider benefits 
of locating in Lincoln 
to manufacturing and 
engineering companies

Great place Promote the city’s wider offer to investors 
by highlighting the range of benefits 
available for employees and their families/
investment partners. i.e. quality of life/
potential supply chains.

industry, encouraging 
interaction and building 
new networks.

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Promote and enhance Lincoln’s 
diverse visitor offer

Great place Take forward a two year focused 
marketing campaign via Visit Lincoln.
Participate in national/international 
campaign activity with Visit England, Visit 
Britain, and Britain’s Heritage Cities.

Manage, develop and sell 
Lincoln as a visitor destination

Great place Take forward actions identified within 
Lincoln’s Destination Management Plan 
2015 and Beyond.

Local businesses and hotel/B&B providers 
to promote Lincoln within their own 
marketing approaches, getting behind the 
single brand identified for the main Lincoln 
campaign.

Continue to make the most 
of the benefits of Lincoln’s 
existing relationship with 
international cities 

Great partnerships Build on linkages already in place with 
cities such as Tangshan, Nanchang and 
Neustadt.

Substantial growth in the city’s visitor economy and increased global awareness.

Key Facts

In a recent Visit England 
survey, 90% of people 
asked had no opinion on 
Lincoln.

The visitor economy is 
worth 97bn a year to 
England.
Lincoln currently attracts 
3.3 million visitors per 
annum, generating more 
than £130m to the local 
economy.

173



Page 18

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Improve graduate 
employability and levels of 
graduate retention, responding 
to local business needs

Great people

Great innovations

Bring employers and students together 
through local initiatives such as the Lincoln 
Engineering Hub and Lincoln Science 
and Innovation Park, enabling knowledge 
transfer and identifying future business 
requirements.

Through Enterprise@Lincoln, BG futures 
and Sparkhouse promote graduate 
enterprise, encouraging new business 
spin-outs.

Further expansion of the 
University of Lincoln campus

Great place Support the development of the Brayford 
site as an ‘innovation campus’ with 
academia and business diffuse throughout.

Provide training and education 
to support the needs of our 
local businesses

Great people Increase the number of apprenticeship 
programmes and related support, in 
particular higher-level apprenticeships to 
meet demand for technician-level jobs. 

Align training programmes with Lincoln’s 
growth sectors and improve employer 
involvement in the development of 
curricula.

Work with local schools to introduce more 
targeted careers advice responding to 
expertise requirements of local growth 
sectors and where possible encourage/
support business interaction with schools 
to highlight future job opportunities and 
enable work readiness.

Educational providers to work with 
recruitment agencies and employers to 
identify future skills needs of Lincoln’s 
businesses.

Improve community access to education 
and training providers, in particular 
developing training programmes to 
support unemployed adults back in to 
work.

Provide high-skilled training 
for knowledge-based jobs

Great people

Great innovations

Identify bespoke courses with universities 
and local companies to respond to local 
requirements.

Foster an innovative environment, creating 
spaces and locations that might attract 
creative individuals.

Improving educational attainment to a high standard, addressing skills gaps at all levels, resulting in work ready 
individuals and satisfying local employer requirements

Key Facts

The University of Lincoln 
hosts almost 13,000 
students and 1,350 staff 
and is worth more than 
£250 million to the local 
economy.

More than 90% of 
students that graduated 
in 2009/10 went on to 
further study, with many 
finding employment in 
Lincoln or close by. 
 
The University of 
Lincoln has established 
partnerships with major 
universities and colleges 
across China and India, 
and there are plans 
to further extend the 
International Study 
Centre’s global reach.
Educational attainment 
varies greatly across the 
city, with Key Stage 4 
levels (49%) generally on 
par with the remainder 
of Lincolnshire.
‘A balance and 
range of skills is 
particularly important 
in both ensuring urban 
economic growth and 
reducing poverty’ 
(Joseph Rowntree 
Foundation Feb 2014)

Apprenticeship schemes, 
bursaries, university 
collaboration all play a 
vital role in improving 
sector skills.

174



Page 19

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Establish a world class science 
and innovation park within the 
heart of the city

Great innovations

Great place

Support the options identified within the 
Lincoln Science & Innovation Park (LSIP) 
Masterplan (completion August 2014).

Create the conditions associated with an 
‘enterprise zone’ for the identified site and 
occupants.

Deliver the LSIP Gateway scheme by 
December 2015.

Support the development of a 3,000m2 
Technology Centre on LSIP, by 2016 that 
will provide high quality, multi occupancy, 
mixed laboratory-office space for 
established growth businesses.

Promote new facility to attract investment 
from businesses.

Ensure that the development of the 
Western Growth Corridor links effectively 
with LSIP, particularly the integration of 
employment sites and transport solutions.
Continue to encourage knowledge transfer 
between industry and our universities by 
providing shared on site R&D and training 
facilities.

Support the continued growth 
and progress of the University 
of Lincoln to become a Top 
40 UK HEI, ensuring effective 
translation of these benefits to 
the city

Great people

Great place

The University of Lincoln, by 2016, will 
be recognised internationally as having a 
distinctive reputation for a strong ethos of 
partnership with industry and students and 
providing a research-engaged academic 
experience which has at its heart a personal 
student experience.

Support the development of the Brayford 
site as an ‘innovation campus’ with 
academia and business diffuse throughout.

Support improvement in student 
satisfaction levels through the provision 
of a high quality student experience with 
accommodation, employer engaged 
courses etc.

Raise national and international awareness 
to support recruitment of high quality 
students, staff and employer links through 
effective stakeholder marketing and 
communications.

Support the development of a Greater 
Lincolnshire-wide, innovation network, 
centred on the university to drive 
knowledge exchange benefits to the wider 
community.

Home to a world-class university and science and innovation park, a UK leader in knowledge creation and transfer.

Key Facts

Science parks are a local 
economy focus. They can 
attract national/overseas 
companies, but they are 
rarely the first to arrive, 
with average employee 
numbers in the early 
years being 10-12.

The University of Lincoln 
is currently ranked 52nd 
in the UK University 
League Tables

175



Page 20

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Work in partnership to 
tackle climate change and 
sustainability, while reducing 
Lincoln’s carbon footprint. 
Introduce reliable, sustainable 
energy generation to secure 
Lincoln’s economic future

Great innovations

Great partnerships

Work with partners to develop an energy 
scheme. Establish an Energy Service 
Company (ESCO), thus decreasing 
CO2 emissions, reducing fuel poverty, 
stabilising energy supply in light of 
fluctuating energy markets and enabling 
development to achieve building 
regulations.

Working in partnership with the Carbon 
Trust look at feasibility and viability of 
the development of a combined heat and 
power plant on Western Growth Corridor.

Reduce the city council’s 
carbon dioxide emissions from 
its own estate and services by 
34%

Great innovations Identify and target existing buildings 
within the city for cost effective energy 
efficiency measures.

Attract inward investment 
to provide environmentally 
friendly jobs and commerce 
especially in green 
technologies

Great place Promote the city and key employment 
sites to potential investors, particularly the 
Lincoln Science and Innovation Park.

Deliver key projects identified 
within the Low Carbon Lincoln 
Plan 2012 - 2020

Great innovations

Great partnerships

Work closely with businesses that have 
high energy consumption and identify how 
they might contribute towards new energy 
solutions/reduce levels required.

Develop a ‘decentralised generation’ Pilot 
project that Lincoln can learn from.

Improve transport, health, 
education and leisure choices 
while emphasising zero carbon 
and energy efficiency

Great access

Great innovations

Great partnerships

Develop relationships with the energy 
from waste plant in Hykeham to further 
discussions around use of the heat from 
the plant.

Explore the introduction of bio-fuel buses.

Consider energy efficient approaches to 
new leisure facilities within the city.
Create local energy saving forums to 
discuss potential opportunities i.e. 
improving renewable energy use.

Ensure green infrastructure 
and historic landscapes, 
biodiversity, water, flood and 
waste issues are managed in 
an environmentally sustainable 
way.

Great place

Great partnerships

Work with the Environment Agency 
and Canal and Rivers trust to manage 
waterways in and around the city 
effectively, i.e. boating access and facilities, 
dredging.

Develop a bespoke 
programme to help address 
fuel poverty

Great innovations Take forward key actions identified within 
the City and County Fuel Poverty Strategy 
2009 – 2016.

Low carbon Lincoln - ground breaking approaches on energy provision.

Key Facts

City emissions continue 
to reduce year on year, 
with Lincoln having 
one of the lowest 
estimated emissions 
per capita amongst its 
nearest neighbours. 
Between 2008/09 and 
2012/13 CO2 equivalent 
emissions reduced by 
25.4 per cent to 1,866 
tonnes.

The UK Government 
has put the low carbon 
economy at the heart of 
its strategy for growth. It 
accounts for more than 
£120 billion in annual 
sales employing around 
one million people.

‘Small businesses 
account for more than 
90 per cent of the low 
carbon sector. SMEs 
are therefore critical to, 
and a key indicator for, 
the present success and 
future potential of the 
low carbon economy.’ 
(Carbon Trust 2013)

16.3% of Lincoln 
households are 
estimated to be in fuel 
poverty

176



Page 21

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Establish a City Growth Board 
and Growth Forum to drive 
forward and deliver the 
strategy and actions

Great partnerships Bring together quarterly a City Growth 
Board and twice yearly a City Growth 
Forum with public/private/voluntary 
sector representation to discuss emerging 
barriers to growth, potential solutions, and 
new growth opportunities for the city.

Work together to create an agreed 
branding shell to market the city.

Create an ambassador programme/
case study promotion to sell the city to 
regional/national/international businesses/
people/tourists/visitors.

Objectives Contribution to 
priorities

How we will achieve them –  
Action Plan highlights

Infrastructure provision and 
improvement recognising the 
importance of connectivity to 
a primary urban centre for the 
region

Great access

Great innovations

Complete development of the East-West 
Link Road and the Eastern Bypass.

Develop the Lincoln Central Transport Hub 
taking into consideration road, rail, cycle 
and pedestrian connectivity both into and 
across the city.

Improve frequency and number of rail 
services to/from other major cities and 
towns by working closely with network rail 
and rail operators to identify opportunities.
Enhance road/rail connectivity to ports 
and airports.

Work with local transport providers to 
improve direct public transport between 
employment hubs in the city.

Undertake a car parking strategy and 
implement agreed recommendations.

Make superfast broadband 
available to all businesses and 
homes across the city

Great access

Great innovations

Work with the On Lincolnshire programme 
and broadband providers to greatly 
increase broadband speeds/accessibility 
within Lincoln.

Public and private sector working together to identify common goals to drive economic growth for Lincoln.

Infrastructure provision and improvement recognising the importance of connectivity to a primary urban centre for 
the region

Key Facts

Partnership working 
encourages more 
effective asset 
management; can 
help enhance funding 
opportunities; and 
enables a cohesive 
approach to how a place 
evolves.

Key Facts

‘There is clear evidence 
for the economic 
benefits of increasing 
connectivity between 
employment and 
population centres 
and transport 
hubs. ‘ (Investing in 
Opportunity, East 
Midlands Councils)

Lincolnshire’s £50m 
BDUK superfast 
broadband scheme 
is being rolled out in 
Lincoln this year and 
is one of the largest 
projects nationally.

177



Page 22

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

National growth agenda

consumption, resulting in substantial debt, which in turn outstripped any contributions of business 
investment and net trade to UK economic growth. Between 2008 and 2009 the UK economy contracted in 
real terms by 7.2 per cent. We certainly need to learn from the mistakes of the past and the Government 

advanced manufacturing, construction, digital and creative industries, retail, professional and business 

The government has set out four ambitions to support the growth of the economy:
1. Create the most competitive tax system in the G20

3. Encourage investment and exports as a route to  more balance economy

procurement, skills and technology. 

Sectors highlighted are: aerospace, agricultural technologies, automotive, construction, information 
economy, international education, life sciences, nuclear, off-shore wind, oil and gas and professional and 
business services. 

This resonates well for Lincoln having a university focused on life sciences and catering for international 

to emerging agricultural technologies.   

Local growth agenda

functional economic areas. It is important that the drivers of our local economy remain well structured 

relationships.  

Lincoln’s manufacturing and engineering heritage is second to none and many world class advanced 
engineering companies are based within and around the city as a result. Add to this a bespoke 

178



Page 23

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

engineering school based at the University of Lincoln, a new University Technical College in the heart of 

The visitor economy is of vital importance to Lincoln and its contribution to the wider Greater Lincolnshire 
area should not be under-estimated. Lincoln is one of nine Heritage Cities in Britain and is home to one of 
the most spectacular gothic cathedrals in the world.  

due to complete in summer 2015. 

Factor in beautiful historic surroundings, a thriving retail sector and picturesque waterways and you have 
a ‘hidden gem’ of a place people want to visit and return to.

Lincoln is exploring the development of a care sector employment hub, which would incorporate a new 

care providers, including Lincoln County Hospital, and has recently opened a school of pharmacy within 
its science and innovation park.

urban centre and economic driver for the area in their delivery. 
The priorities are:

In terms of enabling infrastructure and unlocking growth, development of the new Lincoln east-west link 
road is about to start and the £96 million Eastern Bypass scheme is likely to begin in autumn 2014. We 

December 2014. Superfast broadband will play a crucial part in local economic growth, encouraging new 

The City has supported a number of apprenticeship schemes over recent years and continues to work 
closely with employers and educational providers to understand and meet skills gaps accordingly. The 
new University Technical College is a good example of encouraging vocational skills and planning for 
future sector requirements.

greater opportunity for attracting inward investment. Key areas for consideration will be the Western 

its intention to invest £600 million in ‘eight great technologies’, creating exciting opportunities for our 
universities and businesses regarding research and development. 

opportunities to address need and encourage economic growth.

179



Page 24

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Growth strategy in context

Greater Lincolnshire
Strategic Economic 

Plan

Growth Strategy for 
Lincoln

Prospectus for 
Growth

Linking Lincoln City 
Centre Masterplan

Destination  
Management Plan

Anti-Poverty  
Strategy

Renewal Strategy

Growth Action Plan

Lincoln Business Charter
Giving helpful advice to our businesses and investors is extremely important, hence Lincoln has developed 
its own Business Charter, signposting companies to informative web links and useful contacts.

Areas covered within the Charter are:

   www.lincoln.gov.uk    

   www.businesslincolnshire.com   

   www.greaterlincolnshirelep.co.uk

   www.lincoln.gov.uk 

 

180



Page 25

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Governance

Working together for growth

Lincoln Growth Board and Growth Forum

Lincoln Growth Implementation Team

City of Lincoln Council Growth Board

Individual Programme/Project Teams

Public/Private Partnership - Strategic Focus Board Quarterly/Forum Twice Yearly

Public/Private Partnership - Delivery Focus Quarterly meetings

City of Lincoln Council Monthly meetings

Attendees dependent on project As required

181



Page 26

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

182



Page 27

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

183



Page 28

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

184



Page 31

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034

Evidence Base
Below are listed the main documents which have informed this strategy for growth. A more detailed 
version of the Growth Strategy with detailed evidence base information is available at City of Lincoln 
Council for perusal for those interested.

   2012

   2012

Innovation and Skills, October 2013

November 2010

   2013

   2010

   2013.

185



186



Building our future on 

strong foundations
A summary of the Growth Strategy 

for Lincoln 2014-2034

187



Page 2

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034 summary

Introduction
Cities are drivers of economic growth; however they often also encompass areas of poverty, suggesting 
that deprivation is not automatically addressed through economic growth. This strategy for growth 

economy and subsequent reductions in poverty.

To enable economic growth Lincoln will:

“We are determined that with strong leadership Lincoln’s 
economic growth will bring with it social well-being and 
sustainability, lifting people out of poverty and ensuring that 
future generations continue to enjoy and benefit from our 
remarkable city.”

“There is no doubt that Lincoln could become a world class 
historic city, a hub for advanced engineering, international 
learning and innovation; a place brimming with history and 
vibrancy, with proud communities devoted to the city and its 
culture.”

188



Page 3

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034 summary

Our vision
Lincoln will evolve into a beautifully engineered world class historic city becoming internationally 
renowned for its enterprise, heritage and educational excellence, whilst demonstrating that being a 
competitive city does not equal compromising on people, values or culture.

Our priorities

Great Place

areas such as with the City Centre Masterplan)

Great Access

improvements)

Great People

economy

graduates in the city

Great Partnerships

collaborative working between the private and public sector;

Great Innovations

cheaper energy costs thus creating a lower carbon footprint city, tackling fuel poverty and responding to 
future energy challenges

research, development and employment

189



Page 4

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034 summary

Key challenges facing Lincoln

achieving its goals and ambitions. These challenges are:

effectively

Housing

Plan period

opportunities

Connectivity

train services

to and around the city 

areas

“As our reputation grows, we can continue to share the 
benefits of our expansion with our Lincoln community, 
helping to drive innovation and growth across the city and 
beyond through the creation of purposeful knowledge, 
research and creative graduates.”

190



activities, demonstrating how we will accomplish each of our ambitions for Lincoln. 

Page 5

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034 summary

“Lincoln UTC is proud to be opening in the heart of the city of Lincoln, 
providing world class education for the next generation of scientists 
and engineers. Our provision is underpinned by a wealth of expertise 
from our sponsors the University of Lincoln, Lincoln College and 
Siemens, and a vast array of local industry partners. These relationships 
ensure our educational offer is highly academic, technical and fully 
prepares our students for careers in both education and industry.”

191



Page 6

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034 summary

“The number one motive behind our decision to invest in 
Lincoln was people. The city has an exceptional quality of 
life not found in many places and this is congruent with 
recruiting and retaining a healthy, content and committed 
workforce. It is this special combination of engineering 
expertise, the promise of well-being and the support and 
enthusiasm of the local authorities that particularly appealed 
to Bifrangi’s owners.”

opportunities, supporting the growth of existing companies and attracting new investment 

extensions, supplementary housing schemes and improvement of existing housing provision

of the sector

work ready individuals and responding to local employer requirements

and transfer

Lincoln

centre for the region

192



Page 7

Growth Strategy for Lincoln 2014-2034 summary

has a key role to play as the primary urban centre and economic driver for the area in their delivery. 

The priorities are:

 

If you are interested in 

and its delivery please visit 

193



194



  

SECTION A 

 
Name of policy / project / service 
 
 
 

Lincoln Growth Strategy ‘Building a Future on Strong Foundations  

Background and aims of policy / 
project / service at outset 
 
 
 
 

The City Council is committed to ensuring planned growth takes place in Lincoln in a sustainable and 
inclusive manner. By working in partnership we will take a creative approach to growth that is impartial, and 
decisions will be made that balance expectation and ambition with viability. To attract the inward 
investment needed to encourage growth we will use targeted promotion whilst using a diverse approach to 
our work.  

Person(s) responsible for policy or 
decision, or advising on decision, 
and also responsible for equality 
analysis 
 

Director DDES 
Assistant Director (Planning & Regeneration) 
Regeneration Manager 
Planning Manager  

Key people involved i.e. decision-
makers, staff implementing it 
 
 
 
 

Regeneration Team 
Planning Team 
Neighbourhoods Team 
Legal Team 
Financial Team 
Housing Team 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 

195



  

SECTION B 

This is to be completed and reviewed as policy / project / service development progresses 
 Is the likely effect positive or 

negative? (please tick all 
that apply) 

Please describe the effect and evidence that 
supports this?* 
 

Is action 
possible to 
mitigate 
adverse 
impacts? 

Details of action planned 
including dates, or why action 
is not possible 
 Positive Negative None 

Age 
 

Yes  Yes  The growth strategy identifies beneficial actions in future 
delivery of student accommodation, leisure facilities for 
younger people, targeting careers advice, as well as 
supporting young people into employment.  

Not applicable Actions are identified due to a 
need identified within the 
evidential study to support young 
people into employment.   

Disability 
including 
carers (see 
Glossary of 
Terms) 
 

  Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of disability. 

Not applicable  None required  

Gender re-
assignment 

  Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of gender reassignment  

Not applicable  None required  

Pregnancy 
and maternity 

  Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of pregnancy/maternity  

Not applicable  None required  

Race 
 

  Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of race 

Not applicable  None required  

Religion or 
belief 

  Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of religion or belief  

Not applicable  None required  

Sex 
 

  Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of sex 

Not applicable  None required  

Sexual 
orientation 

  Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of sexual orientation  

Not applicable  None required  

Marriage / 
civil 
partnership 

  Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of marriage/civil partnership 

Not applicable  None required  

Human Rights 
(see page 8) 

 
 

 Yes The growth strategy does not affect nor disaffect on the 
grounds of human rights 

Not applicable  None required  

• Evidence could include information from consultations; voluntary group feedback; satisfaction and usage data (i.e. complaints, surveys, 
and service data); and reviews of previous strategies 

196



  

 
 

SECTION C 
Decision Point - Outcome of Assessment so far: 

 
Based on the information in section B, what is the decision of the responsible officer (please select one option below): 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  Tick here  

• No equality or human right Impact (your analysis shows there is no impact) -  sign assessment below                       [  ]    

• No major change required (your analysis shows no potential for unlawful discrimination, harassment)- sign assessment below         [  ]  

• Adverse Impact but continue (record objective justification for continuing despite the impact)-complete sections below         [  ] 

• Adjust the policy (Change the proposal to mitigate potential effect) -progress below only AFTER changes made           [  ]  

• Put Policy on hold (seek advice from the E&D officer as adverse effects can’t be justified or mitigated) -STOP progress            [  ] 
 
Conclusion of Equality Analysis 
(describe objective justification for 
continuing) 
 
 

The creation of a Growth Strategy for Lincoln does not positively or negatively affect people based on the 
issues above specifically. However projects that stem from the Growth Strategy may have a direct impact on 
certain groups. i.e. the development of car homes or student housing is likely to affect certain age groups 
more than others. It is envisaged that any project directly managed or funded through the City Council will 
undertake an equality impact assessment.  

 
When and how will you review and 
measure the impact after 
implementation?* 
 
 

The Strategy will be reviewed at regular periods by the Growth Board and Growth Forum. This group which 
encompasses Council members and officers will consider any changes that affect the EQIA defined groups.  

 
Checked and approved by 
responsible officer(s) 
(Sign and Print Name) 

 Date June 2014 

Checked and approved by Assistant 
Director 
(Sign and Print Name) 

 Date June 2014  

When completed, please send to info.equality@lincoln.gov.uk and include in Committee Reports which are to be sent to the relevant officer in 
Democratic Services 

Did any information 
gaps exist? 

Y/N/NA If so what were they and what will you do to fill these? 

 
No 
 

Not applicable   

197



198

T
his page is intentionally blank.



 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

DIRECTORATE OF RESOURCES 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER, MONITORING OFFICER 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To advise members that any agenda items following this report are considered to 

contain exempt or confidential information for the reasons specified on the front 
page of the agenda for this meeting. 
 

2. Recommendation  
 

2.1 
 

It is recommended that the press and public be excluded from the meeting at this 
point as it is likely that if members of the press or public were present there would 
be disclosure to them of exempt or confidential information. 

 

Item No. 14

199



200

This page is intentionally blank.



Item No. 15

201

Document is Restricted



204

This page is intentionally blank.



205

Document is Restricted



206

This page is intentionally blank.



Item No. 16

207

Document is Restricted



214

This page is intentionally blank.


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 6 May 2014
	3 Executive Work Programme
	Executive Work Programme - Appendix A

	4 Strategic Plan Progress - Outturn 2013/14
	5 Financial Performance - Outturn 2013/14
	6 Q4 2013-14 Operational Performance Report
	7 Strategic Risk Register - Quarterly Review
	Strategic Risk Register - Quarterly Review - Appendix A

	8 Treasury Management Stewardship and Actual Prudential Indicators Report 2013/14 (Outturn)
	9 Public Toilets / Urinals: Proposed Closures
	Public Toilets  Urinals Proposed Closures - Appendix A

	10 Selective Buy Back Policy for Former Council Housing
	Selective Buy Back Policy for Former Council Housing - Appendix A

	11 Municipal House Building Programme: Resources & Strategic Options
	12 Lincoln Christmas Market Fees and Charges 2014/15
	Lincoln Christmas Market Fees and Charges 2014-15 - Appendix A
	Lincoln Christmas Market Fees and Charges 2014-15 - Appendix B
	Lincoln Christmas Market Fees and Charges 2014-15 - Appendix C

	13 Lincoln Growth Strategy: Building Our Future on Strong Foundations
	Lincoln Growth Strategy - Appendix A
	Lincoln Growth Strategy - Appendix B
	Lincoln Growth Strategy - Appendix C

	14 Exclusion of the Press and Public
	15 Loan of Two Railway Locomotives to Great Northern and Eastern Lincolnshire Railway Company PLC
	Loan of Two Railway Locomotives to Great Northern and Eastern Lincolnshire Railway Company PLC - Appendix 1

	16 Update on Major Capital Improvement Schemes

